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July 15, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Governing Council, and Citizens of the

City of Santa Fe: State law requires the State Auditor to promulgate reasonable
regulations necessary to carry out the duties of the office. These duties include
regulations that require all municipalities in the

State of New Mexico to submit a complete set of financial statements. These statements
should be presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). They should also be audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants for the previous fiscal year
ending June 30. Pursuant to that requirement we hereby issue the comprehensive annual
financial report of the City of Santa Fe for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City
of Santa Fe. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable
basis for making these representations, management of the City of Santa Fe has
established a comprehensive internal control framework. It is designed both to protect
the City’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information
for the preparation of the City of Santa Fe’s financial statements in conformity with
GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City
of Santa Fe’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement. As management, we assert that to the best of our knowledge and
belief this financial report is complete and reliable in 21l material respects.

The City of Santa Fe’s financial statements have been audited by Atkinson & Co. Ltd., a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Santa Fe for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded based upon the audit, that there was a
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reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Santa Fe’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Santa Fe was part of a
broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal
grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving
the administration of federal awards. These reports are available herein as a separately
issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF GOVERNMENT:

The City of Santa Fe was founded in 1609 and chartered as a town in 1891 under
territorial law. It is located in the central northern part of the state and is the oldest
capital in the United States. It currently has a population of approximately 67,947
people. The City in December 1997, by electoral vote, approved a Municipal Charter
which became effective in March 1998. The City is empowered to levy a property fax on
real properties located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to
extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed
appropriate by the governing body.

The City of Santa Fe has operated under the mayor-council-city manager form of
government since 1954. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the
governing body cousisting of the mayor and eight city councilors. The governing body
serves as the principal policy maker of the City. The goveming body is responsible for
passing ordinances, management of City finances and property, adopting the budget and
creation or abolishment of departments. The mayor appoints and may remove the city
manager, the city attomey, the city clerk and members of advisory commissions, subject
to the approval of the governing body. The city manager is the chief administrative
officer of the City and is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances
approved by the governing body. In addition to overseeing the day-to-day operations of
the City, the city manager also appoints the directors of the various departments, the
preparation of the annual budget and keeps the governing body informed of the financial
condition and needs of the City. The governing body is elected on a non-partisan basis.
City council members serve four-year staggered terms with four city councilors elected
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every two years; the eight council members are elected by districts. The mayor is elected
at large in addition to serving a four-year term.

The City provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection, public
works, highways and streets, wastewater operations, refuse collection and transport,
water services, transit, parking facilities operations, convention center services,
recreational activities, cultural events, community welfare and municipa! airport. The
City is responsible for one component unit — Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority. The
component unit is included in the reporting entity because of the significance of its
operational or financial relationship with the City. The City is financially accountable for
the component unit since the mayor, with approval of the city council, appoints a voting
majority of the governing board and can impose its will on the entity. The component
unit is discretely presented in the City’s financial statements with additional information
in the notes to the financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Santa Fe’s financial planning
and control. All departments of the City are required to submit requests for
appropriations to the city manager in March of each year. The city manager uses these
requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget for the upcoming fiscal
year. The city manager then presents this proposed budget to the finance committee
(composed of five city councilors) in April through a series of public meetings. The city
council reviews the finance committee’s recommended budget for adoption of a final
budget by June 1 for the fiscal year commencing July 1. The appropriated budget is
prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and division (e.g., water). The city
manager may approve transfers of appropriations within a department up to $50,000.
Transfers over $50,000 or between funds and budget increases require city council
approval. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report at the function level
for the general fund, at the fund leve!l for the special revenue and capital improvement
funds and at the division level for the proprietary funds for which an appropriated annual
budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is presented on pages 23
through 25 as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental funds. For
funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is
presented in the fund subsections of this report.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION:

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it
is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the
City of Santa Fe operates.

Local Economy. The City of Santa Fe has a relatively stable economy. As the state
capital it benefits from a stable, educated work force working in all level of government
totaling 18,500 people which is 28% of the workforce. Its residents also work at Los
Alamos National Laboratory, one of the country’s premier scientific research centers.

The City is also named as one of the top ten tourist destinations in the country by Travel
and Leisure magazine. Further more, it is in the top five art markets in the world and is
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second only to New York City in the nation. The City’s spectacular setting and abundant
cultural resources, including over 200 art galleries, four star hotels and resorts, its
nationally recognized opera company, music festivals, performance arts organizations
and art museums draw visitors and second home owners from all over the world. These
assets create a robust business epvironment.

Like other communities the City continued to suffer a revenue decline and is taking
measures to reduce expenditures and prioritize services and projects. The City’s reliance
on gross receipts tax as a strong funding source for many decades has made it vulnerable
to reductions in consumer spending in the current economy. In addition, the City’s
appeal to retirees and high-income vacation homeowners has produced high housing
prices. The high prices have made it difficult for local workers to afford homes in Santa
Fe and many live in lower cost communities and commute to Santa Fe. The City has
established reserves as a buffer against economic slow downs and funds nearly 60% of its
total expenditures from utility rates, fees and grants.

The City Council is confident that a broad ranging program of cost reduction,
organizational change and service improvements, coupled with prudent use of reserves
will allow the City to deal with long term decline in revenues if the national economy
recovers slowly. By investing in the community the City made significant investments in
the long-term health of the City. These include completion of a beautiful Convention
Center and the successful completion of the Railyard Redevelopment Project area. Both
the Railyard and the Convention Center are supported by dedicated gross receipts tax
increments in addition to program revenues.

In fiscal 2009 commuter rail connections linked Santa Fe to Albuquerque and other
communities. In addition, a major airline began direct commercial air service to Santa
Fe. These changes will help offset the reduction of economic activity resulting from the
national downturn. Unemployment in the region (which includes the City of Santa Fe
and the surrounding unincorporated areas within the same county) was at 7.1% compared
to 3.3% in 2008. The region unemployment rate still remains lower than the state
unemployment rate of 8.4% and the national rate of 9.6% for 2010.

There was a continued “softening” of the market in terms of the number of sales of
homes from 575 in 2008 to 489 in 2009 or a 15% decrease. The median home sales price
in the City decreased 10% to $308,000 from $344,000 in 2008 using an average of the
four quarterly medians. In 2010, the number of homes sold increased to 525 with a
redian price of $300,000. In January 2009, the minimum wage in the City was increased
from $9.50 per hour to $9.85 per hour based on the average increase of the consumer
price index for 2008.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING:

The City completed the Santa Fe Community and Convention Center and the Railyard
projects. Furthermore, the City has completed construction on a Rio Grande River
Diversion project, the Buckman Diversion Dam, in partnership with Santa Fe County and
a private development, Las Campanas. Funding for this $216 million project will come
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from cash accumulated by the City’s Water Division for this project, City and County
bond proceeds, cash from Las Campanas and State and Federal grants and low interest
loans. The City Council adopted a ten-year financial plan for the Water Division that
includes annual rate increase of 8.2% for five years beginning in 2009.

The City is also completing ten-year plans for its Wastewater Division and a five-year
plan for the Solid Waste Division. In addition, the City has implemented five year
planning models for other City funds and enterprises beginning in fiscal 2010, In fiscal
2010 the City plans to issue water revenue bonds and gross receipts tax revenue bonds for
the Buckman Diversion Project. Other financial planning updates include a study of
utility expansion charges and development impact fees, water service costs and indirect
cost allocations to be completed in fiscal 2010. These planning efforts will assure that
the City maintains the financial soundness of its enterprise operations and increases the
resilience and flexibility of its governmental activities.

CASH MANANGEMENT POLICITES AND PRACTICES:

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, certificates of
deposit, securities issued by the United States Government or its agencies or
instrumentalities, money market savings accounts and the New Mexico State Treasurer
Local Government Investment Poo) (LGIP). The length of investment maturities, range
from 6 months to 5 years, with an average maturity of 213 days. The average yield on
investments was 1.58%.

PROCUREMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES:

As a home rule city, the City of Santa Fe has in place a comprehensive procurement
manual to guide and control all procurement done by the City and has a centralized
purchasing office that reviews essentially all procurements for compliance. The
procurement manual is updated regularly as needed to adopt changes in policies and to
address issues that may arise over time. It also includes sections on federal procurement
which may supersede the city policies and procedures when federal regulations are
required to be complied with. The procurement manual and any changes are reviewed,
approved and adopted by the City Finance Committee and the City Counecil.

Risk Management. The risk management programs include workers’ compensation,
comprehensive loss coverages, medical and other employee coverages and safety
programs. As part of this comprehensive plan, resources are accumulated in internal
service funds from premiums assessed to all departments and funds to cover the costs of
potential losses. In addition, with the third party administrators certain controls are used
including safety checks, employee prevention and reporting training, reviews to
recognize liability exposure, health and wellness information and other cost controls.

Pension and Other Post Employment Benefits. The City of Santa Fe participates in the
State of New Mexico Public Employees Retirement plan. Substantially all of the City’s
full-time employees participate in the retirement system authorized under the Public
Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1978). The Public Employees
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Retirement Association (PERA) is the administrator of the plan. The City fully funds the
required payments as determined by PERA through City and member contributions.
GAAP do not require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in
connection with an employer’s obligation to provide these benefits.

The City also provides a Retiree Health Care Program through City and member
contributions to the fund. As of January 1, 2006, the program was transferred to the State-
sponsored New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority.

Additional information of the City’s pension arrangements and postemployment benefits
can be found in Notes V. E. and F. on pages 73-74.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City
of Santa Fe for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 1988-95, 1997-99, and 2001-06. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
CAFR. This report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

In addition, the government also received the GFOA'’s Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award for its annual budget document dated June 30, 2009 (as well as the previous years
since FY 86/87). In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award,
the government’s budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories,
including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a
communications device.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to
express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and contributed
to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the mayor and the
governing body for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the City’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

7
Robert P. Romero, Kathryn L. Raveling,
City Manager Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

City of Santa Fe

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Honorable Mayor and City Council
and

Hector H. Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the
respective budgetary comparison for the general fund of City of Santa Fe as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’'s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents. We have also audited the financial statements of each of the City of
Santa Fe, New Mexico’s nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service
funds and respective budgetary comparisons presented as supplementary information in the
accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Santa Fe’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority,
which is a discretely presented component unit of the City of Santa Fe, which reflects 2.60%
percent, 3.52% percent, and 8.97% percent, respectively, of the assets, net assets, and
revenues of the governmental and business type activities. Those financia! statements were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority, is based
on the report of the other auditors,

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and
the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Santa Fe as of June
30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof and the budgetary comparisons for the general fund for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. in addition, in our opinion, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service



funds of the City of Santa Fe, New Mexico, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in
the financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and the respective budgetary
comparisons of the major capital project and debt service funds and the nonmajor governmental
and enterprise funds presented as supplementary information for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 15,
2011, on our consideration of the City of Santa Fe's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that festing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 17 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements,
and the combining and individual fund financial statements and budgetary comparisons
presented as supplementary information. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis required by the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The additional
schedules listed as “other supplementary information”, “other supplementary financial data”, and
the capital assets schedules in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements,
an in our opinion is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. This information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us
and other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

AD K 2 & (0./@?

Atkinson & Co,, Ltd.
Albuguerque, New Mexico
July 15, 2011



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(UNAUDITED)

As management of the City of Santa Fe (“City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have fumished in our
letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i through vi of this report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $585,491,828 (net assets). Of this amount, $205,253,254 (unrestricted net assets)
may be used to meet the City’s obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City’s total assets increased by $109,103,536 prnimarily because of significant
construction activity for the Buckman Direct Diversion Project and the City’s
acquisition of the College of Santa Fe in September of 2009.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $74,459,073 a decrease of $26,762,445 in
comparison with the prior year. This primarily reflected the expenditures of capital
funds for parks and other projects financed through bonds the previous fiscal year and
use of beginning year fund balances to finance the costs of current year operations in
response to declines in gross receipts tax revenues.

Approximately 90 % of total governmental fund balances of $74.459,073 is reserved or
designated for specific purposes. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved
and undesignated fund balance is $7,314,057 and 1s available for spending at the City’s
discretion.

The City’s total long-term liabilities increased by $55,752,847 during the current fiscal
year. This reflected the issuance of the 2009A and 2009B Water Utility System/Capital
Outlay Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds to be used to fund a portion of the City’s
share of the regional Buckman Direct Diversion Project and the loans received from
NMFA to finance the cost of acquiring the College of Santa Fe and projects related to
the Buckman Direct Diversion Project and other water treatment facility improvements
and upgrades. In December of 2009 the City issued $59,970,000 Water Utility/Capital
Outlay Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds for the purpose of constructing various
water infrastructure projects and to fund the City’s share of the regional Buckman
Direct Diversion Water Project. In September 2009 the City closed on a loan from the
New Mexico Finance Authority in the amount of $29,615,000 to purchase the facilities
of the College of Santa Fe which were leased to Laureate Education, Inc. with the lease
amounts to pay the annual debt service.



e On December 1* 2010 the City closed on both the 2010A Gross Receipts Tax
Refunding Revenue Bonds and 2010B Subordinate Lien Gross Receipts Tax Refunding
Revenue Bonds. The 2010A bonds, maturing 6/1/2015, were issued in the amount of
$15,005,000 and refunded the 2002 GRT bonds. The 2010A bonds, maturing in
6/1/2023, were issued in the amount of $10,490,000 and refunded two New Mexico
Finance Authority loans issued for the railyard development.

¢ On November 1, 2010, the City issued the 2010 General Obligation bonds, the second
part of the general obligation bonds approved in 2008 by the voters. This was a
$10,300,000 issue designated solely for parks.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information
in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
Slows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacations leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The govermmental activities of the
City include general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic
development, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include
the operations of water, wastewater, solid waste, airport, convention center, transit, railyard
property and two recreation facilities.



The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the
primary government), but also a legally separate Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority for
which the City is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is
reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government
itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18 and 19 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund 1s a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, 1t is useful to compare the information presented for government funds
with similar information presented for government activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the govemment’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The City maintains 51 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the CIP 1/2%
Gross Receipt Tax Fund, and the Debt Service Fund, all of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other 48 governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for all its funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 through 25 of
this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of propnetary funds. Enterprise
Junds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the



government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its
Santa Fe Convention Center, Parking Operations, College of Santa Fe, Solid Waste
Management, Water Management, Transit Operations, Wastewater Management,
Municipal Recreation Complex, Genoveva Chavez Community Center, Railyard Property
and Airport. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses intemal service
funds to account for its Employee and Retiree Health Care and Dental program, Risk
Management Administration, Workers’ Compensation and Union Sick Leave Bank. As the
service of these funds listed predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the govemment-wide
financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Water Management, Wastewater Management, Solid Waste
Management, College of Santa Fe, Railyard Property, and the Santa Fe Convention Center,
all of which are considered major funds of the City. Internal service funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.
Individual fund data for the intemal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26 through 31 of the
report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 32
through 77 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govermment’s
financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $585,491,828 at the
close of the most recent fiscal year.

A portion of the City’s net assets (62 %) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., Jand,
buildings, machinery, infrastructure, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services
to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.



CITY OF SANTA FE's
NET ASSETS

For Fiscal Years Ending June 20, 2010 and 2009

Govermeatal Business-type
Activities Activilles Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2809
Currenl snd cther 3sets % 108484656 S 138,184,370 S 141.558.845 § 110,410,697 $ 250043301 § 248,575,067
Capital assets 309.367.770 303,637,384 456.186.069 354,281,153 765,583.838 657,918,537
Total assets 417852 428 441,801.754 597,744,714 464,691,850 1,015,597 110 906,493,604
Long-term lability 117.963,794 138,924.177 259,862,208 185,149,178 377,826.202 322,073,355
Other Nabilities 31.517.617 22,371,138 20,761,693 7.154.905 52,276,110 29,530,143
Total habilities *49,481,411 159,295.315 280,623,501 ~ 92,308,183 430,105,312 351,603,488
Nei g55015:
Invesied in capltal gssels,
agt of telgted debl 188,345,882 178,547,796 174,237,581 160.986.556 362,583,463 358,534,352
Resticled 10,693,806 10.299,331 8,961,305 1.232,286 7,655,111 11,522,617
Unrestricted 69,331,327 93,668,312 135,921,927 110.184.825 205,253,254 203,833,137
Total nat assets $ 2688371015 § 282,506,430 S 317,320,813 % 272,283,667 $ 585491828 § 554,890,106

An additional portion of the City’s net assets (3.0%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance ot unrestricted net
assets ($205,253,254) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City has maintained positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities, however, it should be noted that net assets in the
City’s Municipal Recreation Complex (MRC) Fund show negative net asset balances of
$6,456,558.

For the Municipal Recreation Complex fund this results from the excess of long term
bonds payable over capital assets net of depreciation. MRC operations are supplemented
by an annual transfer for debt service and operations from the Capital Improvement
Program Gross Receipts Tax Fund.

The City’s net assets increased by $30,601,722 during the current fiscal year. This growth
largely reflects increases in capital assets in business-type activities related to the Buckman
Direct Diversion Project and the City’s acquisition of the College of Santa Fe during fiscal
year 2010.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by
$14,135,424. This was primarily due to a 7.8% reduction in gross receipts taxes and use of
prior year fund balance in the general fund to offset cost of current year operations. Taxes
provide 78% of governmental activities revenues. 80% of the taxes is provided by a gross
receipts tax (GRT) levied on goods and services in the amount of $76,345,768. This was
down 7.8% from the gross receipts tax revenues received in 2009 in the amount of
$82,800,905.



CITY OF SANTA FE's Changes in Net Assets
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

Govemmental Business-type
Aclivities Activities Tolal
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenues:
Prcgram revenues:;

Charges for services S 8109597 § 8567670 § 81932944 § 53626964 § 70042541 § 62,194,634

Operating grants ang contributions 8,388,100 5,308,983 1,021,037 1120734 9,409,437 6519717

Capilal grants and contributions 7,059,698 11,487,085 16,201,128 8,438,382 23,260,826 17,905,467
General revenues:

Sales taxes 76,345,768 82,800,905 10,451,588 11,055,744 86,797,356 93,858,619

Other taxes 18,321,908 16,055,016 18,321,608 16,055,016

Donated Lang and Building 16,683,838 16,683,838 -
QOther 2418408 4,948,564 1,422,950 5,324,829 3541358 10,273,483

Tolal revenues 120,843,479 129,238.223 107,413 485 77.566,723 228,056,964 208,804,946

Expenses:

General Govemment 27,660,875 29 566,386 27,880,875 28,566,386

Public Safety 38,313,141 38,118,398 38,313,141 38,118,398

Public Works 15,869,603 15,713,517 15,869,603 15,718,517

Community Development 15,145,394 12,974,275 15,145,394 12,874,275

Culture and Recreation 13,580,296 13,417,827 13,580,296 13,417,927

Educalion 2,988,945 2,899,570 2,988,945 2,806.570

nterest on long-lem debt 5,485,853 5.456,528 5.485,953 5456528

Wastewater Management 12,312.850 12,475,625 12,312,850 12,475,825

Water Management 22,369,231 22,862,185 22,369,231 22,882,185

Solid Waste Management - 9,942,608 9,576,135 5,942,600 9,576,135

Callege of Santa Fe - 2,436,088 2.436,088

Railyarg Center 1,741,983 1,373,796 1,741,983 1,373,796

Santa Fe Convention Center 5,280,908 4,763,648 5,280,908 4,763 846

Al other proprietary funds 24,327,366 24,382.823 24,327,368 24,382,823
Tolal expenses 119,044,207 118,151,601 78,411,035 75454,210 197,455,242 183605811
Increase in nel assests before transfers: 1,598,272 11,088,622 29,002,450 2,112,513 30,801,722 13,199,135
Transfers nel (15,734,896} (20,489,446} 15,734,696 20,489,446
Increase (derrease) in nel assels (14,135,424) (9,402,324) 44737146 22,601,959 30,601,722 13,199,135
Beginning balance 282 506,439 291,905,263 272,383,667 249,781,708 554,890,106 541,690,971
Ending balance $ 208371015 § 262506438  § 317120813 § 272383667 § 685491828 §  554,890.108




CITY OF SANTA FE
Fiscal Year 09/10
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CITY OF SANTA FE
Fiscal Year 09/10

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activity

Charges for services 6.72%

Otheot 2.00% Operating granls and

contributions 6.95%

Caprtal grants ang
contributions 5.86%

Grpss Receipts 63.28% BCharges for services 8.72%

B Operating grants and ibLtkens & 96%

OCapilal grants and contributians 5 56%
OGross Recelpts B3 28%

BProparty texes 5.52%

B0thar laxes @ 87%

HOther 2 00%

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased net assets by $44,737,146.
The increase, net of transfers from Governmental activities, was $29,002,450. Transfers
from Governmental activities total $15,734,696. Increase in Business type activities were
primarily attributed to utility rate increases in the Water and Wastewater Divisions and
excess tracts of land received by the City surrounding the College of Santa Fe’s campus.
These tracts of land were accounted for as donated land and recorded at fair market value.
The appraised value of excess tracts of land received was $16,683,838 equal to the Donated
Land recorded in the City’s Statement of Activities. In funds where revenues exceed
operating expenses, rate revenues are set at a level that in combination with net assets
support long term capital investment programs and maintenance of prudent reserves. Much
of the accumulated cash in the Water, Wastewater, Convention Center and other business
type activities are being drawn down as large capital projects begin or are completed.
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CITY OF SANTA FE
Fiscal Year 09/10

Revenue by Source- Business-Type Activites

®Changes for sendces 57.7%
Donsted lan 15.5% e 0-10%
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Capitat grants and mDanaied l2nd 15 5%

contributions 15.0% ®Other 0.10%

oaontributions 1.0%
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Fonds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s govemnmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $74,459,073 a decrease of $26,762,445 in comparison with the
prior year. Most of the ending fund balance is total amount ($67,145,016) constitutes
reserved and designated fund balance. Uses of these funds are limited to various degrees
by legal, contractual and policy restrictions.

Unlike government-wide financial statements debt is not included in fund financial
statements and expenditures for capital assets are not capitalized. Expenditures of fund

12



balances and revenues in special revenue funds, capital project funds and debt related funds
are generally subject to legal restrictions that limit use of those funds to specific purposes.
The balance in those funds are considered designated as are amounts set aside by the City
Council to provide funding for economic uncertainties and contingencies or liabilities not
accrued in the fund balance sheet under the principles of modified accrual accounting.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund for the City, At the end of the current fiscal
year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $7,314,057 while total fund balance
was $15,671,833. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 10.76 % of total expenditures.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund decreased by $5,294,998 during the current
fiscal year. A key factor in this decrease was the decrease in revenues from $52,535,205 to
$49,838,955 because of a significant decrease in gross receipts tax revenues.

Debt service fund has a total fund balance of $6,444,922 all of which is reserved for
projects and the payment of debt service. The net decrease in fund balance during the
current year in the debt service fund was $2,491,386 due to the distnbution of funds for
park improvements and capital projects from bond proceeds from debt issued in the prior
fiscal year.

Proprietary funds. The City’s enterprise funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets at the end of the year amounted to $135,921,927 of which 56 % is
for water management. In total, net assets for enterprise funds increased by $44,737,146.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were relatively
minor (82,913,975 increase in appropriations) and can be briefly summarized as follows:

o § 743,134 increase in general government

e $1,289,470 increase in public safety

o $§ 70,675 increase in public works

$ 157,398 increase in community development
$ 156,744 increase in culture & recreation

$§ 47,735 increase in education
$
$

[ ]
. 432,243 increase in transfers in from other programs

. (16,576) increase in transfers out to other programs

The increase in transfers in from other funds covered some of the budgeted increases,
however, cash balances funded the difference, which included carryover commitments
from the prior fiscal year. With some cost control measures enacted during the fiscal year
as it became apparent that revenues (particularly gross receipts tax revenues) would not be

13



realized, actual expenditures were 5.9% below the final budget in the amount of
$4,279,891. Although the budgeted revenues were decreased by 4.1% during the fiscal
year, actual revenues were still another 4.1% lower. The actual revenues for the General
Fund were $2,661,329 below budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2010 amounts to $765,553,839 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and systems,
improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure, and park facilities. The
total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 16%
(a2 1% increase for governmental activities and 15% increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

s Construction in progress in various City facilities totaled $185,169,795 in both
governmental-type and business-type funds. This is a increase from the previous
fiscal year due primarily to increases in construction activity related to the
Buckman Direct Diversion Project.

o General City projects in progress included street paving, signalization, river channel

Improvements, park improvements, building renovations, and street traffic calming
projects for a total amount of $17.1 million.

14



CITY OF SANTA FE's Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation)
For Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2010 and 2009
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land ang Water Rights $ 169.582.174 § 167,563,753 41893052 3 27268833 § 211,455226 § 184,832,686
Constructlon in Pragress 17,132,182 43,927,407 188.037.613 116,876,241 185,169,795 180.803.648
Art 922,920 922,920 185,971 185,971 1,108,891 1,108,891
Buildings and Systems 43,442,222 33.811.708 154.080.682 157,608,738 197,532,904 191,420,448
Improvements 17,169,481 5,802,008 25,885,488 28,008,104 43,058,969 33,810,110
Sewerlnes 50.662,427 9.050.074 50,662,427 9,050,074
Equigment and Machinary 2,419,264 2,828,125 6,585,215 6,804,588 9,004,475 9,630,713
Fornture ang Fidures 346,026 125.988 41,734 44,948 387,757 170,936
Vehicles 7.142.634 7,407,622 7,616,384 7,752,880 14,755.018 15,160,502
Dala Processing and Sofwars 4.408.849 5.103.120 1,183,506 680,676 5,590,155 5,783,796
Traffic Signals 2,873,685 2,486,546 - 2.873.685 2,486,548
Sireels and Bridges 43.850.533 33,660,180 43,950,533 33,660,189
Total S 309,387,770 § 303.637,384 456,186,063 S 354,281,153 3 765,553,839 § 657,918,537

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note IV-D on pages

50 and 51 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total revenue bonded
debt outstanding of $281,205,000. Of this amount, $78,660,000 comprised debt backed by
gross receipts tax revenues and lodgers tax, and $202,545,000 was for various business-
type bonds backed by specified operational revenue sources. In addition, the City had
$19,400,000 of outstanding general obligation debt.

CITY OF SANTA FE'S OUTSTANDING DEBT
Revenue Bonds
For Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2010 and 2009

CGovermmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total

2010 2009

2010

2008

Revenue bonds  $ 78,660,000 $§ 85435000 $ 202545000 § 148,620,000 §

2010

2008

281,205,000 § 234,055,000

In March 2008 the voters approved a $30,300,000 general obligation bond issue for parks
and trails improvements. Due to the number of construction projects underway at the time
and the investment climate, the decision was made to split the issue. The first issue of
$20,000,000 closed in June 2008. The second issuance of bonds for $10,300,000 was

issued November 2010.
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As of June 30, 2010, the City had eight outstanding issues that were not insured. The Series
1997B Wastewater Variable Rate Bond Rating has been reaffirmed at AA/A-1+ from
Standard and Poor’s (S&P), and Aa2/VMIGI by Moody’s. The Series 2008 General
Obligation Bonds were issued on June 10, 2008, and were rated AA and Aa3 by S&P and
Moody'’s, respectively. The 2008B Gross Receipts Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, rated
AA+ and Al, were issued December 18, 2008, reflected a rating upgrade by S&P On
December 15, 2009, the City issued the Series 2009A&B Water Utility System Bonds in
the amount of $59,970,000 to assist in funding a portion of the Buckman Direct Diversion
Water Project. This bond issue was rated AAA by Fitch and AA+ by S&P. After
June 30, 2010, the City issued the Series 2010 General Obligation Bonds, the second phase
of the 2008 voter approved parks bonds. Issued in the amount of $10,300,000, they
received a rating of AA+ from Fitch and AA from S&P. On December 14, 2010, the City
issued the $15,005,000 Series 2010A GRT Refunding Bonds and the $10,490,000 Series
2010B Subordinate Lien GRT Refunding Bonds. The 2010A Bonds advance refunded the
2002 GRT Bonds and were rated AA+ by Fitch and AA+ by S&P. The 2010B bonds
refunded two New Mexico Finance Authority loans and were rated AA by Fitch and AA by
S&P.

The rest of the City’s bonds were issued with insurance. Major changes in the bond market
resulted in the following effects on these bond insurance firms.

S&P/Moody's S&P/Moody's
Firm 6/30/02010 Current
AMBAC R/Caa Withdrawn/Withdrawn
MBIA BB+/B3 B/B3
FSA/Assured Guaranty Municipal AAA/Aa3 AA+/Aa3
XL Capital Assurance/ Syncora Guarantee R/Ca Withdrawn/Ca

Source: First Southwest Company

With the exception of the City’s three issues insured by FSA/Assured Guaranty Municipal,
the significant drops in the ratings of the insurance firms have made the City’s underlying
ratings higher than those of the bond insurers.

S&P/Moody's/Fitch  S&P/Moody's/Fitch

Bond Type 06/30/2010 Current
General Obligation AA/Aa2/NR AA/Aa2/AA+
Senior Lien Gross Receipts Tax AA+/Aa3/NR AA+/Aa3/AA+
Water System Revenues AA+H/AQ2/AAA AA+/Aa2/AAA
Subordinate Lien Gross Receipts Tax AAJATINR AA/A1/AA

Source: First Southwest Company

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue
to 4% of its total assessed valuation. The cwrent debt limitation for the City is
approximately $147 million, which is significantly in excess of the City’s total proposed
revenue bond capital improvement project debt of $30,300,000.
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Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note IV-H on pages 57
through 66 of this report,

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

o The unemployment rate for the Santa Fe MSA continues to compare favorably with
rest of the state although it increased from 6.2 to 7.1% in 2010. This compares
favorably to the state’s current unemployment rate of 8.4% and the national average
rate of 9.6%.

e During the latter part of 2009 and into 2010, significant declines in fair value
occwred in worldwide securities markets and various real estate markets. As the
general economy remains in recession. The City has seen significant impact on
gross receipts tax, lodgers’ tax and certain other revenue categories during periods
subsequent to June 30, 2010. City management has responded with various actions
including budget, project and policy adjustments and continues to review future
plans and budgets. Current economic conditions are volatile, difficult to predict and
subject to ongoing changes which may affect the current financial condition and
results of operations in the future. All of these factors were considered in preparing
the City’s budget for fiscal year 10/11.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances. Complete financial statements for the
comporent unit may be obtained as the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority, 64 Alta Vista,
Santa Fe, NM 87505. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance
Director, P.O. Box 909, City of Santa Fe, NM 87504,
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Statement of Net Assats
June 390, 2010

Primary Government

Component Unit

ASSETS

Cash, investments and cash gquivalents

Recewables (net of allowance for
uncollectables}
(ntemal balances
(nventories
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Deferred charges
Restricted assels:
Temporaiily resiricted:

Cash,investments and cash equivalenis

Inerest receivable
Inlergovernmental recelvable
Capital assets (nel of accurnulated
depreciation):
Lang, Jand rights, and water nghis
Buildings and structures
Furoiture and fixtures
Improvements
Utility Sysiems
Equipment and machinery
Vehicles
An
Data processing equipment/software
Trafiic signals
Sireats and brdges
Construclion in progress
Accumulaled depreciation

Tolal assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current
liabilities
Accrued interesi payable
Delerred revenue
Unearneg revenue
Liabilities from restricied cash
Longlerm liabilites:
Due within ane year
Due in more than one year
Total lisbilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
celated debl
Restricted for:

Debti service and nonexpendable endowment

State mandated cash balance
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Governmental Business-type Housing
Actlvities Activitios Total Authority
$ 56,548,861 § 118,362,196 § 174,911,057 6,454,010
3,674,571 10,507,806 14,182,377 1,232,740
14,022,831 (14,022,831) - -
485,708 - 485,708 13,456
60,000 9,926,088 9,986,089 99,805
9,428 - 9,429 82.269
1,437,702 3,115,174 4,552,876 -
10,693,806 6,961,305 17,855,111 510,329
263,466 465,734 729,200 -
21,288,282 6,243,172 27,531,454 628.798
169,562,174 41,893,052 211,455,226 1,142,589
54,376,522 183,888,946 238,265,468 31,625927
866,014 775.143 1.641,157 882,914
36,149,085 67,178,233 103,327,318 -
- 102.198.821 102,198,821 -
15,776,439 20,132,570 35,909,008 198,875
20,274.332 21,674,151 41,948,483 379,090
922,920 185,871 1,108,891 -
11,675,769 3,375,153 15,050,922
23,222,047 - 23,222,047 -
163,564,150 - 193,564,150 -
17,132,182 168,037,613 185,169,795 3,765,612
{234,153,864) (153,153,584) (387,307,448) (20,598,383)

417,852,428 597,744,714 1,015,587,140 26,417,431
14,909,865 8,618,437 23,528,302 312,405

727.988 982,527 1,710,618 -
3,283,800 - 3,293,800 507,963
2,854,727 1,391,213 4,245,840 211,835
9,731,237 9,768,316 18,500,553 952,389
117.963,794 259,862,408 377,826,202 3.788.048
149,481,411 280,623,901 _ 430,105,312 _ 5782,640
188,345,882 174,237,581 362,583,463 12,827,540
4,159,930 6,961.305 11,121,295 -
6,533,816 - 6.533.816 -
69,331,327 135,921,927 205,253,254 7.807.251
$ 268,371,015 § 317,120,813  § 585,491.828 20,634,781

The notes to the financial statements are aninlegral pan of Yus statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010

Assets
Casn and investments
Restricted for debt service paymentls
Reslcted for state mandaled cash balance
Restrictes for endowment
Receivables:
State-shared taxes
Local taxes
Property taxes
Interest
Ambulance (nel of allowances)
Granis-restricied
Other receivables (nel of allowance)
Olher assets
Due from other fungs
Supplies inventory

Total Assets

Llabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensaied absences payadle
Accrued wages payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenve:
Uneamed cevenue
Other current liadbibties
Lizbilitles payabdle from restricted assets

Total liabllitles

Fund balances:
Fund balance:
Reserved, reported in;
Endowment
Dedl service
Capital projects
Specal revenue purposes
State mandated cash balance
Inventory
Designaied for:
General fund City's cash balance
Unreserved, undesignated reporied in:
General fund-undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total llabllities and fund balances

Amounis reporied for governmental activities in the statement of net assets

are gifierent because:

Capilal assets used in goveramental activilies are not finanoial resources and.

therefore, are not reporied in ihe funds.

Other long-term assets are not available 1o pay for current-period expendilures and,
therefore are not reported in the (unds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of insurances
to individual funds. The assets and habllities of lhe inlernal service funds are
included in govermmental activities in the slatemeni of net essets

Accrued interest payavte

Major funds
Other Total
General Debt 1/2 % Gross Non Major Governmental
Fund Service Receipts Tax Funds Funds

9 2,967.169 § 2.523,284 S 4,785,224 31,476,532 3 38,752.209
- 3.909,990 - - 3.909,3880
6,533,816 - - - 6.533.818
- - - 250,000 250,000
6,274,955 - 2,472,448 2,328,130 11,075,533
3.187.4561 - - - 3.187.451
34,047 20,692 - 54,739
38,200 56.084 100,222 184,513
865,605 - - - 865,605
782,040 6,188,519 6,870,559
73,410 - 2,735,556 2,808,966
- - - 9,429 9,428
1,148,121 - 13,904,545 - 15,052,666
485,708 - - 485,708
$ 22,390,522 & 6,510.050 $ 18,162,217 43,088,395 $ 90,151,184
8 1,144,107 % 15 @ 8,917 2,946,389 $ 4,099.428
435,188 - 45.253 - 540,441
2,725,359 - 103,042 796,377 3,624,778
- - 1.029.835 1,029,835
93,604 25,113 3,175,083 3,283,800
130,882 40,000 78,220 249,102
2,129,549 - 725,178 2,854,727
6,718,689 65,128 157,212 8,751,082 15,692,111
- - 250,000 250,000
- 5,686,887 - - 5,686,887
- 758,035 18,005,005 17.529.307 36,292,347
- - - 16.558.0086 16,558,006
6,533.816 - - 8,533,816
485,708 - - 485,708
1,338,252 - - 1,338,252
7.314,057 - - 7,314,057
15,671.833 6.444.922 18,005,005 34,337,313 74,459,073

$ 22,390,522 § 6,510,050 § 18,182,217 43,088,395
309,334.937
1.437.702
10,935,963
(727.988)

Long-term liabililies, including bonds and noles payable, are not due and payable
In the current period and Lherefore are not regoned in the funds.
Other long-term liabilile s~compeasated balances

Net assels ot governmental activilies

The aotes to the financial staterents are an intagral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended Suase 30, 2010

Statemant of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Major Funds
Other Total
General Debdt 2 % Gross Non Major Governmaental
Fund Service Reaceipts Tax Funds Funds
Revenues;
Taxes
Gross receipts 49,838,955 § - 14,145,489 $§ 12,361.324 78,345,766
Crgareite 64,255 - - 32.247 96,502
Motor 371,686 - 1,368,077 1,739,783
Lodgers - B - 7.238,114 7,238.114
Propedy 2,658,882 1,701,441 - 2,299,988 6.658,311
Business 231,938 - - - 231,938
Franchise 2,337,757 - - 18.525 2,367,282
Licenses and permits 1,571,947 - - - 1571947
Intergovernmental cevenues 246,206 - - 15,201,592 15,447,798
Fees and charges lor secvices 4,919,485 - 2,418,158 8,537,650
Sale of capital assels - - 215,451 215,451
Fines and forfeiturss 526,845 - - 526.845
Rents, royalties and concessions 39,318 - - 86.725 126,043
Investment income 84,300 156,048 - 267.396 507,744
Other revenves 182,083 158,961 340 543,275 885,859
Tola! revenuves 62,271,665 2,017,448 14,145.829 42,051,671 120,486,813
Expenditures.
Current:
General government 16.790.034 - 2,473,479 6,544,610 285,807,820
Pubfic safety 31.203,998 - - 5,652,998 36,856,896
Pubttc works 3,902,894 - - 2,630,300 6,533,194
Community developmamt 5301519 - - 9,465,474 14,766,893
Cutture and recrealion 7.481.811 - - 4,209,009 11,690,820
Education 2.983.168 - - - 2.9383.168
Total cument expenditures 67663421 . 2,473,179 28,502,391 98,638,991
Capital outlay:
General govemment 177326 - 250,872 3,020,645 3,443,843
Puble safety 56,761 - - 1,850,016 1,906,777
Publi¢ works 1,090 - - 7,877.946 7,879,036
Community development 2,594 - - 850,388 852,982
Culture and recreation 49518 - - 6.879364 8,828,880
Educaton 5777 - - - 5777
Total capital oullay expenditures 293,064 - 250,872 20,478,359 21,022,295
Debt service:
Principal payments 7,673,026 7,673,026
(nlerest and fiscal agent fees 5,784,564 5,784,564
Tolal expenditures 67.956.485 13,457,590 2,724,051 48,880,750 133.118,876
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expendiures (5,684,320) (11,440,142) 11,421,278 (6,928,879) {12,632.063)
Other financing sources (uses):
Teansfers in 6,874,123 12,229,655 19,474 13.104.774 32,228,023
Teansfers out (6.484.301) (3.288,011) (16,688,353) {19,904,852) (46,365,517)
HUD loan payments (flaw thcongh) - 7113 - - 7113
Total other financing sources (uses) 389,822 8,948,757 (16,868,879 (6,800,081) (14,130,381)
Nel change in fund balances (5.294,998) (2.491,385) (5,247,501 (13,728,960) (26.762.444)
Fund baiances, beqnning of year 20,986,831 8,936,307 23,252,106 48,066,273 104,221,517
Fund balances, end of year 15,671,833 § 8,444,922 % 18,005,005 § 34,337,313 & 74,459,073

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes (n Fund Balances of Governmeantal Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds $ (26,762,444)

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 5,231,009

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
decrease in net assets: (47,268)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provided current financial

resources to govermmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-

term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transactions, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, govermmen-

tal funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar

items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and

amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these

differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 7,934,084

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. 823,903
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of insurance
to individual funds. 125,827
The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. (1.440,535)
Change in net assets of govemmental activities $ (14,135,424)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

8udgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
State-shared taxes:
Gross receipls $ 37203840 $ 34,706,659 § 35693468 $ 286,807
Cigaretie 71,000 71.000 64,255 (6,745)
Automobile 408,000 408,000 371.686 (36.314)
Total stale-shared laxes 37,682,840 35,185,658 36,129,407 943,748
Local laxes:
Gross receipls 14,789,213 13,823,293 14,145,489 322,196
Propeny 2,517.007 2,517,077 2,656,882 138,805
Busmess 218.000 218,000 231,936 13,936
Ulility franchise 2,650,000 2.650,000 2.337.757 (312,243)
Tota! local taxes 20,174,220 19.208,370 19,372,064 163,684
Olher Revenues:
Licenses and pemmils 2,218,938 2,218,939 1,571,947 (646,292)
Inlergovernmental revenue 30,000 208,170 246,206 37,036
Fees and charges for services 8,574,167 7,042,167 4,119,485 (2.922,672)
Fines and forfeitures 568,834 615,834 526,845 (88,988}
Royalties, rents and concessions 31,300 31,300 39,318 8,018
Investment income 177,873 84,273 84,300 27
Other revenues 213,000 337.192 182,083 {155,109)
Tolal Other Revenue 9.874,113 10,538,875 6,770,194 (3.768,681)
Total revenues 87.731.173 64,932,904 62,271,665 (2,661,239}
Expenditures-
General governmeal;
Current:
Genearal govemment 2,975,478 2,944,701 1,939,836 1,004,865
Municipal eourt 1,333,159 1,339,583 1,329,323 10,280
Cily cleck 1,260,940 1,254,526 1,053,117 201,409
(nformation technology and tslecommunication 3,445,377 3,859,925 3,255,371 604,554
Personnel 1,174,710 1.219,525 314,903 304,622
Finance 3,249,106 3,443,316 4,555.794 (1,112,478)
Planning 2,044,708 1,992,441 1,770,598 221,843
Facilihes mainienance 2,318,637 2,318.710 1.634,125 684,585
Fleel maintenance 588,480 588.480 336,964 2515186
Total current 18,388,595 18,961,207 16.780.031 2,171,176
Capital oullay:
General government 33,898 25,534 37,442 (11,908)
Municipal Coud - 48,927 60,953 (12,028)
City clerk 8,000 54,126 16.648 37,477
Information technology ang telecommonication - 3,708 48,177 (44.471)
Personnel - 250 250 -
Finance 2,200 4,600 2,028 2,571
Planning - 74.234 7,549 66,685
Faciliies maintenance 2,700 5,843 4,277 1,666
Fleet Maintenece - - - -
Total capital outlay 46,798 217,320 177,326 39,994
Total general government 18,435,393 19,178,527 16,967,357 2.211.470
The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this Statement. {continued)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actuat
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Finat Budget -

Actual Positive
Original Flnal Amounts (Negative)
Public safety:
Current:
Police 18,473,328 19,176,353 18,530,544 645,808
Fire 12,934,420 13,560,831 12,673,454 887.477
Tolal cucreny 31.407.748 32,737,284 31,203.993 1,533,286
Capilal outlay:
Police 10,000 14,472 54,287 (39,815)
Fire 30,065 30,065 2474 27.591
Total capital outlay 40.065 44,537 56,761 (12.224)
Total pubtic safely 31,447 814 32,781,821 31,260,759 1,521,062
Public works:
Current:
Administration 428,061 428,061 258,108 169,952
Highways, suesls and roads 906,080 906,172 907,649 (1.477)
Trafhc engineenng 2,628.818 2,698.311 2.737.136 (38.825)
Total currenl 3.962,359 4,032,544 3.802.894 128,650
Capital oullay;
Highways, sireets and roads - - - -
Traffic Engingering - 1.090 1,090
Total capital oullay - 1.020 1.090 -
Total public works 3.962,859 4,033,634 3,803,984 129,650
Communily development:
Current:
Human needs 1,548,880 1.549.143 1.531.721 17.422
Seniar citizens 18,638 18,638 - 18,638
Community services 1.075.284 1,183,275 1,123,102 60.173
Inspection 1.477.935 1,512,012 1,435,849 76,163
Zonlng 1,187,202 1,193,502 1,210,847 (17,345)
Total current 5,307,948 5,456,570 5,301,519 155,051
Capital outlay:
Human needs - 1,700 1,194 506
(nspection 7.800 5,600 1,400 4,400
Zoning 2,000 11,077 - 11,077
TYolal capital oullay 9,800 18,577 2,594 15,983
Total communpity development 5.317,748 5,475,147 5,304,113 171,034
Culture and recreation:
Current:
Parks/grounds maintenance 5,574,640 5,634,852 5,263,307 371,545
Recreation 2,233.189 2.295.017 2.218.504 76,513
Total current 7.807,829 7.9298,869 7.481,811 448,058
Capial outlay:
Parks/grounds maintenance 14,300 438,004 46,316 2,688
Recreation 5,557 5,557 3,200 2,357
Total capital outlay 19,857 54,561 49,516 5,045
Total culture ang recreation 7.827.688 7,984,430 7.531.327 453,103

The notes to the financial staternenis are an iniegral part of (his statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

General Fund

Statamaent of Rovenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 2010

Education:
Current:
Libranes
Total curecent

Capital outlay:
Libraries
Total capital outlay
Total education

Total expendgitures

Excess {deficlency) of
revenues over expengditures

Otner financing sources (uses).

Trensfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (vses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end cf year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -

Actual Pasitive

Original Finat Amounts (Negative)
2.728.762 2.776.647 2,983.168 {206.521)
2.728.762 2.776.647 2,983.168 {206.521)
6.320 6.170 5.777 393
6.320 6.170 5.777 393
2,735,082 2,782,817 2,988,945 (206,128)
89,726,683 72,236.376 67,966,485 4,279,891
(1,955,510} (7,303,472) (5,684.820) 1,618,652
6,422,148 6.854,391 6,874,123 19,732
(8.467,725) (6,484,301) (6.484,301) -
(45,577) 370,080 388,822 19,732
(2,041,087) (6,933,382) (5,284,998) 1,838,384
26,952,871 19,397,218 20,966,331 (1,569,613)
$ 24911,6B4 § 12,463,836 § 15,671,833 § 3,207,897

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral par of this statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Statement of Net Assets
Enterpnse Funds
June 30, 2010

Busineas-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Waste Sollg
Water Water Waste Rallyard
Menagement Managamant Management Property
Assets
Current assels’
Cash, investmenis and cash equivalents 8 16.959.600 s 73,470,068 §.529,897 $ 886,737
Rastricted cash, cash equwalents and Investraents:

Restricted fer dedt sarvice payments 214,415 5,999,788 108,738 481,972
Granls receivable 185,851 1,587,842 . 10,601
Receivable (net of allowances)

State-zhared laxes 305.412 1,217,772 305,373 -
Accounts 2,248,451 6,276,349 1.712,68)D -
lnterest recewatte 60,374 294,446 32,303 3,155
Prepaid exgenses - 9,828,089 - -
Total current assets 19,954,103 98,772,354 10,683,005 1,361,865
Noncurrent gssets:
Deferred charges (net of amaontizalion) 180,334 1,677,307 273,352 -
Capazl assels.
Lang and (ard nghts 25,488 2,472,860 - 20,145,837
Waler rights - 341278 - -
Buildings and struciures 28,835,185 11,071,845 361,316 4748,214
Sewerlines and ullfity systems 23,396,519 ( 78,772,490 - -
Improvements 19,313,732 8,154,883 533,179 10,322,283
Furailure arg fixtures 17,142 585,001 9,640 -
Equipment and machinery 2,421,134 12,688,300 682,905 .
Vehicles 2418367 1.808.657 7,890,617 -
Intargible plant - 57,6825 ~ -
Data pracessing equprnent fsofwace 230,282 1,673,195 56,904 -
Art . . . .
Carslruction In progress 12,127,476 125,119,372 86,431 17,834 812
Less accumutiated depreciation (49,054,744) (52.446,763) (6,080,317) (1,883,556)
Tolal capilal assets (ret of accumulated depreciation) 39,730,263 (90,299,144 3,540,766 51,167,590
Total eoncurren assels 40,110,601 191,876,451 3.814.118 51,187,590
Total assets 80,064,704 290,748,805 14,503,123 52,529,455
Lizbllitles
Gurreri liablillbes.
Accounts payable 365,074 1,742,205 109,863 93,825
Miscellaneous payabte 38,742 113.273 38,852 -
Compensaled absences payable 84,823 239,155 123,855 -
Accrued wapges payable 234,122 376,952 213,554 2,322
Benefits payable - . - -
Cl2ims and judgemend payabla - - - -
Bonds payable (net of unamortizes discounts) 1,399,927 2,992,975 738,110 -
Notes payabie 749,583 - 647,043
Accrued interest payable 160,665 483,908 48 7368 60.374
Customer deposits payable 116,678 816,510 85,030 -
Other payable . . - -
(nangitle deferred credit - - - -
Due to other lunds - - - -
Total current liabililies 2,338.032 7.614,558 1,357,700 803.564
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds and Noles payable (rel of unamorilzed discounis) 23,484,340 (20,380,886 14,950.805 12,542,934
Comgensated absences payable 254 468 348,360 371,564 -
DOue lo other lunds . 13,624,545 - -
Total noncurrent lizbillttes 23,738,808 134,361,791 12,322.368 12,542,934
Total iabilities 26,076,840 141,966,249 13,680.C88 13,346,498
Net Assets
(nvested n caplital assets, net of related dedbt 120,226 66,175,700 (9,148,149) 37,877,613
Reslricted for debi service 214,415 5,998,788 108,736 481,972
Unrestricted 33,653.223 76,606,968 8,882.467 72372
Total net assets S 33,987,864 S (48,782,456 823,054 S 35,182,957

The nales lo the financlal statemernis are an Integral pan of this statement.
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Governmental

Sants fFe Collega All Other Actlvitles-
Convention of Enterprise Totals Internat
Center Banta Fe Funds Service Funds

7.555.520 7,046,852 3.083,722 118,382,198 S 17,796,652
48.848 10 107,536 6,961,305 -
. 2,850,921 4,414,815 -
- - - 4,828,557 -
- . 270,316 10,507,806 .
31,738 23,314 14,598 465,734 88,953
- - - 9,926,088 £0.000
7.636.106 7,975,778 6.077.093 152,486,302 17,925,606
485,049 - 285,128 3.115.174 -
- 14,456,000 4,454,778 44551773 -

. . - 341,279
62,756,363 21,924,038 54,134,380 183,831,321 -
- B 29,820 102,198,821 -
. - 28,854,156 67.178.233 .
51,038 - 72,322 775,143 34,818
278,085 - 4,060,456 20,132,570 12,810
29,815 - 9,626,685 21,874,151 35,829
R . R 57,625 -
120,019 - 1,294,752 3,375,153 5,307
5,000 - 180,971 185,971 -
151,271 6,095,860 6,822,691 168,037,613 -
(2.856,938) (727,998) (10.303,268) (153.153.584) (56,031)
80,775,653 41,747,900 68,924,753 456,186,069 32.833
51,274,702 41,747 900 89.208.884 459,301,243 32,833
68.910.808 49,723,676 75,286,974 611,767,545 17,958 438
174,027 3,368,382 1,044,348 6.897,724 467,993
- - 18,573 207,140 -
15,364 - 231,830 685,027 85918
39,610 - 647,013 1,513,573 32,961
- - - . 6,435,382
- - 807,286 5,938,298 -
1,124,365 615,000 - 3,135,991 -
113,344 133.831 41,702 382,527 -
248,320 - 24,674 1,391,213 -
- - - - 224
- - 398,286 398.288 -
1,715,000 4117,213 3,213,712 21,159,773 702,475
49,709,753 29,000.0C0 11,078,711 258,148,429 -
46,092 - 685,485 1,713,879 -
- - 13,624.£45 -
49,755,845 29,002,000 11,775,206 273,486,953 -
51,470,845 33.117.213 14,988,918 204,646,732 7,022,475
34,841,535 12,132,900 57.037,756 174,237,581 22,333
48,848 10 107,538 6,961,305 -
7,449,580 4,473 553 3,152,764 135,821,927 10,803,130
17,439,963 16,606,463 60,298,056 317,120,813 S 10,835,963

Current gssets”
Cash, investments angd cash equivalents
Restricted cash, cash equivalents ard lavestment
Resiricted Jor debl service payments
Grants receivable
Raceivable {net of allowances)
State-shared taxes
Accounts
{nleresl recewable
Prepad experses

Total current assets

Naneurrent assets:

Deferred ctiacges (net of amonzation)

Capnsl assels:
Land and (an3 cghns
Water rights
Buildings ang siructures
Sewerlines and utility sysiems
Jmprovements
Furniture and fitures
Equipment and machinery
Vehicles
(mangible pfarnt
Dals processing egupment /softwore
Ant
Construction in progress
Less accumulated deprecialion

Tolal capial assets (net of accumulated deprecialtos

Tolal noncurrert assets
Total assets

Liabilities

Current Jisbilities:
Accounts payable
Miscellanecus payatie
Comgpensated abserces payable
Accrued wages pgyable
Benelits paysble
Claims and jusgernent payable
Bords payable (net of unamortized discounts)

Notes payable

Acerueg Interesi payable
Customer depasits payable
Other payatite
(ntangible deferred credh
Oue to other funds

Total current habilities

Noncurrent (abilies.
Bonds payable (nat of unamonized discounts)
Gornpensated absences payable
Oue lo other funds

Toral noncurrent liabllites
Tolal liabLities

Net Assets
(nvestes in capital azsets, net of refated debt
Reslricied for debl service
Unrestricted

Total net assets



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In Fund Net Assets

Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:
User fees
Facilities rentals
Other revenue
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits
Contractual services and utilities
Repalrs end maintenance
Supplies
Capital outlay-inventory exempt items
Depreciation
Amortization expense
Insurance
Other

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Intergovernmental

State-shared taxes

Grants
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Donated Land and Building
Interest expense
Prem(Discount) debt service expense
Other non-operating expenses

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income(loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Transfers out
Change in net assets

Total net assets. beginning of year

Total net assets-end of year

The notes to the financisl statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activitles-
Enterprise Funds

Waste Solid
Water Water Waste Railyard
Management Management Management Property
$ 10,292,213 30,023,803 $ 8,111,508 § -
- - - 561,147
7,158 212.958 66,581 -
10,299,371 30.236.761 9,178,089 561,147
4,646,307 8,082,221 4,212,503 -
970,422 4,248,559 1,986,883 59,538
731,892 794,214 389,125 -
583,739 967,731 580,249 -
21,754 63,276 250,708 -
3,663,342 5,460,438 875,807 1,127,192
34,639 93,747 21,163 -
319,675 338,686 157.004 -
941,581 1,783,448 865,581 5.003
11,913,351 21,832,321 9,349,003 1,191,733
(1,613,980) 8,404.440 (170,814) (630,586)
138,777 674,811 78,895 8,902
1,747,318 6,957,220 1,747,049 -
180,749 8,812,197 - 50,154
(3,902) 4.403 11,714 .
(434,426) (674,811) (611.716) (550,250)
34,927 137,801 18,110 -
1,663,444 15,911,721 1,242,052 (491,194)
48,464 24,318,161 1,071,138 (1,121,780)
63,654 85,209 53.366 1,181,126
(33,338) (259,901) - (352,430)
79,785 24,141,469 1,124,504 (293.084)
33,908,079 124,640,987 (301,450) 39.476,041
$ 33,987,864 148,782,456 $ 823,054 $§ 39,182,957




Governmental

User fees
Facliities rentals
Other revenue
Tolal operating revenues

Sataries, wages and benefits
Confractual services and utifities
Repairs and maintenance

Supplies

Capital outlay-inventory exempt iterms
Depreciation expense

Amortization expense

Insurance

Cther

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Investment income
Intergovernmental

State-shared taxes

Grants
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Donated Land and Building
Interest expense
Prem(Discount) debt service expense
Other non-operating expenses

Total non-operating revenues (expenses

Income(loss) before transfers

Transfers in

(1,597,828) Transfers out

(1.314,708) Change In net assets

Santa Fe All Other Actlvities-
Convention College of Enterprise Totals Internal

Center Santa Fe Funds Service Funds

$ 397,688 $ - & 7678287 $ 57503507 § -

- - - 561,147 -

11,060 2.092.884 1,477,649 3,868,290 20.796,196

408.746 2.092,884 9,155,946 61,832,944 20,796,196

773,829 - 12,894,078 30,608,938 817,295

498,045 307,057 2,887,970 10,968,474 924,278

32,156 1,175,403 778,134 3,910,924 1,119

88,165 232 889,021 3,089,137 65.309

64,888 - 473,221 873,847 1,832

1,297,639 727,998 2,087,483 16,139,909 13,355

19,861 - 16,670 189,180 -

81,372 9,258 618,070 1,524,068 18,825,831

170,677 100,310 2,291,862 6,158,443 21,352

3,028,732 2,320,259 23,829,518 73,462,918 20,670,368

(2,617,986) (227,375) (14,673,573) (11,529,974) 126,827

72,196 115,829 22,919 1,110,328 156,867

- - - 10,451,588 -

55,532 - 8,123,533 17,222,165 -

- - 406 12,621 -

- 16,683,838 - 16,683,838 -

(2.343.541) (115,829) (526.553) (5.257,126) -

89,365 - 17,286 297,589 -

- - 11,420 11,420 -

(2.126,448) 16,683,838 7,649,011 40,532,424 156,687

(4.744,434) 16,456,483 (7.024,562) 29,002,450 282,494

4,333,354 150,000 10,545,823 16,412,532 626
(26,741) - (5.431) (677,838)
(437,821) 16,606.463 3,615,830 44,737.146

17,877,784 - 56.782,226 272,383,667 12,250,671

$ 17,439,963 ¢ 16,606,463 $ 60,298,056 $ 317,120,813 $ 10,935,963

Total net assets, beginning of year

Total net agsets, end of year



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Cash flows from operaling activilies:
Cash receivad from customers
Cash received from inlerfund services provided and used
Cash payments (o suppliecs for goods and services
Cash paid for Interfung services provided and used
Cash payments to employees lor services

Nel cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
(ntergovemmental

Transfecs-iv. from other funds
Transfers-out to olher fungds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash fiows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and consiruction of capital assets
Proceeds (Loss) from sale of capital asseis
Contribulag capital
Proceeds from sale of bonds net of issvance costs
Bond issuance cost paid
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and notes payable
Inierest pald on revenue bonds and notes payable

Nel cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash Tlows from investing activilies:
Interesi and dividends on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Nel increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash, investmenis and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash, Investments and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconcillation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (vsed) by opecaling adlivities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustrents to reconcile ogerating income (l0ss) to
net cash provided (used) by operaiing activities:

Depreciation/amonization

Change In assets and (iabilities:
(Increase) decrease n accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in acoounis payable
Increase (decrease) in miscellaneous payable
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages payabie
Increase (decrease) in escrow
Increase (Gecrease)n due to other funds
(Increase) decrease in claims payable

Total adjustrmenis

Net cash provided (used) by operating actlvities

Waste Salid
Water Water Waste Railyard
Managemant Management Management Property
9,809.250 § 29,263,525 $ 8306238 § 561,147
(2,882,203) (8.348,352) (3.508,983) $ (59.535)
(853,176) (1.302,384) (775,872) (5,002)
(4,666,064) (7.998,485) (4,062,780} 877
1,507,807 11,614,304 960,603 497,483
1,777,741 14,203,926 1,752,033 590,483
63,654 85,208 53,368 1,181,126
(33,333) (258.901) . (352,430)
1,808,082 14,029,234 1.805.399 1,419,179
(2,350,573) (61.676,102) (594,4086) (668,141)
(3,902) 4,403 13,714 -
62,348,916 -
- (345.000) - -
(1,240,000) (5.025,546) (890,000) (625,113)
(439,255) (4.18%.,398) (614,161) (552.5632)
(4.033,730) (8.882,725) (1.886,853) (1,845,786)
165,612 755,011 80,640 121
165,612 755,011 80,640 11,124
(552.249) 17,515,824 959,789 81,997
17,726,264 61,954,032 7,678,844 1,266.712
17,174,015 79,469,856 8,838,633 § 1,348,709
(1,613,280) 8,404,440 (170,314) § (630,586)
3,697,984 5,564,185 896,870 1,127,192
(390,121) (488,582) 169,314 -
- (2,195,100} . 877
(154,654) 962,707 52,202 -
16,201 (222,428) (95,527) -
(62.577) 24,272 109,766 -
42,820 59,464 39,857 -
(27.863) (504,654) (31,165) -
3,121,787 3,209,864 1,131,517 1,128,069
1,607,807 § 11,814,304 § 960,603 § 497,483

Noncash disclosure: The City's College of Santa Fe fund received $16,683,838 (n donated land and buildings in fiscal year 2010,

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of ihis statement



Governmental

Santa Fe College All Other Actlvities-
Convention of Enterprise Totals Internal
Center Santa Fe Funds Service Funds
Cash lows from operaiing activites:
408,746 $ 2092884 § 9383933 § 60,825,723 § 15,420,114 Cash recelved from cuslomers
- - - - 5,376.082 Cash received from interfund services proviged and used
(604,650) (1.492,285) (7.315,019) (24,209,011) {19,625,901)  Cash payments {0 suppliers for goods and services
(151,548) (99,996) (1,126,020} (4.313.998) - Cash paid for interfund services provided and used
{746.323) - (12,720.063) (30.192.838) (810,104}  Cash payments lo employees for services
{1.093,775) 500,623 (11,777,1869) 2,200,876 360,191 Net cash provided (used) by operaling activibes:
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
100,000 - 8,585,388 27,008,574 - Intergovernmental
4,333,354 150,000 10.545,823 16,412,532 626 Transfers-in trom other funds
(26,741) - (5.431) {677,838) (1,697.828)  Transfers-out to olher lunds
4,406,613 150,000 19,125,780 42,744,267 (1,897.202) Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and relaied financing activities:
{558,795) (21,397,482) (6,105,187) (93.350,686) - Acquisiion and construction of capital assels
- - 406 12,621 - Proceeds (Loss) from sale of capilal assets
- - - - Contnbutea capltal
- 29,615.000 91,963,916 - Proceeds from sale of bonds net of issuance cosis
- - - (345,000) - Bond issvance cosl paid
(1.010.000}) - {760,000) {8,350,659) - Principa) paid on revenue bond malurities and notes payable
(2,345,325) (1.008.184) (528.928) (9,677,791) - Interesi pald on revenue bonds and notes payable
(3,914,120} 7,208,324 (7.393,709) (20,747,599) - Net cash used for capital and relaled financing activitles
Cash flows from Invesling activities:
84.204 86,715 31,931 1,215,234 177,861 [nlersst ang dividends on investmenis
84,204 86,715 31,931 1,215,234 177,861 Nei cash provided by investing activilies
(517.078) 7.946,662 (13,167) 25,421,778 (1,059,150) Net increase (decrease) m cash and cash equivalents
8,121,448 - 3,154,425 99,801,723 18,856,802 Cash, investments and cash equivalents al beginning of year
7,604,268 § 7,046,662 S5 3,141,258 § 125,323,501 $ 17,796,652 Cash, investments and cash equlvalents at end of year

Reconcidlation of operaling income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating aclivitigs:

(2,617,986) & (227,375) $ (14673,573) § (11.529974) § 125,827 Operaling income (loss)
AdJusimenis 1o reconcile operating income ((0ss) {0
nel cash provided (used) by operating activities:
1,317,600 727,998 3,007,163 16,329,089 13,355 Depreclation/amortizatian
Chenge in assets and liabilibes:
- - 227987 (471,402) - (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
- - - {2,194,223) (60.000) (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
104.210 - (180.962) 783,503 160,762 Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
- - 18,573 (283,181} - Increase (decrease} in miscellaneous payable
18,503 - 76,915 166.879 (60.020) Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
9.003 - 78.527 229,771 (9,934) Increase (decrease) in accrued wageés payable
74,885 - 12,771 (476,016) - Increase (decrease) in escrow
- - (344,570) (344,570) - Increase (decrease) in due (0 other funds
- - 180,201 {Increase) decregse in claims payable
1.524,2114 727.998 2,896,404 13,739,850 234,364 Tota) agjusiments
(1.093,775) § 500,623 $ (11,777,189) $ 2,209,876 § 360,191 Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
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City of Santa Fe, New Mexico
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2010

Summary of significant accounting policies
A. Reporting entity

The City of Santa Fe (the “City”) is 2 municipal corporation govemed by an elected mayor
and an eight-member council. The accompanying financial statements present the
govermment and its component unit as an entity for which the City is considered to be
financially accountable. The City has no blended component units that are legally separate
entities, but still in substance part of the govermment’s operations. The discretely presented
component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements
in order to emphasize that it is a legally separate entity from the City (see “discretely
presented component umt” below).

Discretely presented component unit. The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority (a discretely
presented component unit) is comprised of nine programs: The Santa Fe Civic Housing
Authority, Section 8 Housing, La Cieneguita Elderly Housing, the Housing Development
Corporation, the Cielo Azul, the Capital Projects Fund, Mainstream Voucher, Region Il HUD
Voucher, and Mora County HUD Voucher. The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority is
responsible for providing public housing services within the city limits. The Section 8
Housing and La Cieneguita Elderly Housing assistance programs are responsible for
subsidizing low income housing. The Housing Development Corporation is responsible for
providing 100 units of housing for elderly persons who qualify for assistance under Section §
of the United States Housing Act of 1987. The Cielo Azul is used to account for the activity
of an affordable housing project purchased in October 2004. The primary function of Cielo
Azu!l is to house residents whose income is less than or equal to 80% of the area’s median
income. The City is financially accountable for the component unit since the Mayor, with
approval of tlhe City Council, appoints a voting majority of the governing board and can
impose its will on the entity. The component unit is presented as an enterprise-type fund.

Complete financial statements for the component unit may be obtained at the Santa Fe Civic
Housing Authority, 664 Alta Vista, Santa Fe, NM 87505.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
34 “Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis- for State and
Local Governments” which was effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2002. As
a result, there has been a major change in how the City presents its financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of activities) report information on the primary government and its component unit. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Govermmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary govemment is reported
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separately from the legally separate component unit for which the primary govermment is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the basic fund financial
statement. There are no fiduciary funds reported by the City.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earmed and expenses are recorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are received. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment 1s due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Gross receipts taxes are not estimable at the time of the underlying
exchange transactions, and therefore are recorded as revenue at the time the state reports the
amounts collected on behalf of the City. Only the portion of special assessments receivable
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of
the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the government.
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Property taxes are Jevied and collected by the Santa Fe County treasurer on behalf of the
City. The taxes are levied in November and payable in two installments, November 10" and
Aprit 10" The County remits to the City a percentage of the collections made during the
month.

Taxes are considered delinquent and subject to lien, penalty and interest, 30 days after the
date on which they are due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Debt service Funds account for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The 2% Gross Receipts Tax Fund is used to account for the City’s portion of gross
receipts taxes collected by the State of New Mexico per Ordinance No. 1981-45. The
Ordinance dedicates %2 of 1 percent for capital improvements to City facilities and street
and road construction and re-construction to include any future operating expenditures
(i.e. personnel or administrative costs) necessitated by the expansion of the services and
facilities to the public.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Waste Water Management Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s treatment
and sewage system.

The Water Management Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water supply,
transmission and distribution systems.

The Solid Waste Management Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s solid waste
collection service.

The Railyard Property Fund accounts for the development of 50 acres of prime real estate
near the center of the City previously owned by the railroad and a private developer.

The Santa Fe Convention Center Fund (formerly known as Sweeney Convention Center),
accounts for the operation of the City’s convention center.

The College of Santa Fe fund accounts for the lease operations, debt service, and

construction activities associated with the City’s purchase of the college from a not-for-
profit corporation and subsequent lease to Laureate Education Inc. in September of 2009.
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Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Intermal service funds account for the City’s Santa Fe Health Fund, Retiree Health Care
Fund, Risk Management Fund, Workers’ Compensation Fund, Santa Fe Dental Fund and
the Union Sick Leave Bank which are services to City departments on a cost assessment
basis.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and
other charges between the utilities functions and insurance functions of the City. Elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all
taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal serve funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expernses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity
1. Deposits and investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

City funds are invested i{n accordance with New Mexico State Statute 6-10-36, and with the
City of Santa Fe Investment Policy, which states:

City funds shall be invested in accordance with New Mexico Statute 6-10-36 and shall be
equitably distributed among all banks and credit unions having their main or manned branch
offices within the municipal boundaries and who are interested in doing business with the
City, as directed by Statute 6-10-36, Paragraph C. Collateralization will be required on all
deposits in excess of amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or the
National Credit Union Association. The collateralization level will be one hundred two
percent (102%) of the market value of principal, except for deposits with the primary fiscal
agent which will be collateralized at fifty percent (50%) in accordance with New Mexico
Statute 6-10-17. Funds that are declared excess due to the inability of local financial
institutions to accept these deposits may be invested in U.S. Government Securities, or as
otherwise provided by law. The City will diversify use of investment instruments to avoid
incurring unreasonable risks inherent in over-investing in specific instruments or individual
financial institutions and limit maturities to five years or less to avoid interest rate risk.
Certain investments held to accommodate debt reserve requirements may have maturities of
more than five years.

The Investment Policy provides for the following authonzed investments:
1. United States Treasury Securities (Bills, Notes and Bonds).

2. Insured and/or collateralized (with securities of the U.S. Government, its agencies or
instrumentalities, municipal securities, or Letters of Credit from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Dallas) checking or savings accounts, or certificates of deposit of
banks, or credit unions, pursuant to State Board of Finance Collateral Policies.

3. Other securities issued by the United States govemment or its agencies or
instrumentalities that are either direct obligations of the United States, the Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corp., the Federal National Mortgage Assoc., the Federal
Home Loan Bank, the Federal Farm Credit Bank, or the Student Loan Marketing
Assoc., or are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government.
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Mouney market funds that are registered with the SEC, carry an AAA rating, invest
entirely in U.S. government and/or U.S. government agency securities (as defined
above), and maintain total asset size of not less than $100,000,000.

Bonds or negotiable securities of the State of New Mexico or of any county,
municipality or school district which has a taxable valuation of real property of at
least one million dollars and has not defaulted in payment of interest or sinking fund
obligations or failed to pay any bonds at maturity at any time within the past five
years and is rated AA equivalent or better on purchase date. Reasonable prudent
measures will be taken to liquidate an investment that is downgraded to less than the
required minimum rating.

Investments in the New Mexico Local Government Investment Pool (NM LGIP)

(a) The investments are valued at fair value based on quoted market prices as of
the evaluation date;

(b) The NM LGIP is not SEC registered, but does maintain an AAAm rating
(nighest rating for pools) from Standard and Poor’s. Section 6-10-10 I, NMSA
1978, empowers the State Treasurer, with the advice and consent of the State
Board of Finance, to invest money held in the short-term investment fund in
securities that are issued by the United States government or by its
departments or agencies and are either direct obligations of the United States
or are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government or
are agencies sponsored by the United States government. The Local
Government Investment Pool investments are monitored by the same
investment committee and the same policies and procedures that apply to all
other state investments;

(©) The pool does not have unit shares. Per Section 6-10-10.1F, NMSA 1978, at
the end of each month all interest earned is distributed by the State Treasurer
to the accounting entities in amounts directly proportionate to the respective
amounts deposited in the fund and the length of time the amounts were
invested; and

(d) Participation in the Local Government Investment Pool is voluntary.
Repurchase agreements and forward purchase agreements with equivalent collateral

of at least one hundred two percent of the market value of the securities plus accrued
interest.

Interest eamnings on pooled investments are distributed quarterly to all participating funds
based on the average of current vs. previous quarter-end cash balances. Investments for the
City, as well as for its component unit, are stated at fair value.
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2. Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing agreements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are also reported as “due
to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities
and business-type activities are reported in the govemment-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles that is based on
historical collections data.

Property taxes are levied and collected by the Santa Fe County Treasurer on behalf of the
City. Property taxes are levied in November and are payable in two installments. The first
half 1s due on November 10 and becomes delinquent on December 11. The second half is
due on April 10 and becomes delinquent on May 11, which is the lien date. Interest at the
rate of 1% per month is incurred on installments following the delinquency date. By July 1 of
each year, the County Treasurer prepares a property tax delinquency list of all property for
which taxes have been delinquent for more than two years. The Taxation and Revenue
Department receives the tax delinquency list and has the responsibility to take all action
necessary to collect the taxes. The real property on which the taxes are assessed shall be
offered for sale four years after the first date shown on the delinquency list. The County
remits monthly to the City a percentage of the collections made during that period. The
percentage 1s calculated by the County based upon the amounts collected, the mill levy, and
the proportion of City taxpayers to the County as a whole.

3. Inventories and prepaid items

[nventories are valued at cost, which approximates market using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Expenditures in governmental funds and expenses in proprietary funds are recorded
as the inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased. Certain payments to
vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

The City of Santa Fe is a party to a contract with the Bureau of Reclamation, United States of
America which provides certain rights to purchase water from the San Juan Chama
renewable water resource system. Per contract dating from 1976 and made permanent in
2006, the City of Santa Fe has rights to purchase 5,605 acre feet per year from the San Juan
Chama system for which it pays a predetermined rate. The City may utilize the water in the
year it purchases it or in a later year if utilization does not match the annual amount
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purchased. Amount acquired in excess of those amounts utilized are recorded as prepaid
water assets in the statement of net assets. The amount recorded at June 30, 2010 was
$502,189.

The City of Santa Fe was party to a water resource contract with the Jicarilla Tribe and under
the terms of the contract it purchased water resources from Jicarilla during the period 2004
through 2008. None of the purchased water has been utilized and is available for future use.
The purchase amount of the water in the amount of $9,423,900 is recorded as a prepaid water
asset in the financial statements.

4. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate
bank accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.

5. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, furniture, art, software, equipment, vehicles,
and infrastructure, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the govemment-wide financial statements. In fiscal year 2006-2007 the City
increased the cost threshold for capitalization from $1,000 to $5,000. Capital assets are
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individua!l cost of $5,000 or more and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets, if purchased or constructed, are
recorded at historical costs or estimated historical cost if original cost was not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. City land
acquired prior to 1987 was primarily by land grant or donation and is estimated to be 4,217
acres. Because original values are unknown, the parcels are valued at one dollar each.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense,
net of amortization, capitalized by the City’s Water Division and the College of Santa Fe
during the cwrrent fiscal year was $3,771,427 and $1,026,196 respectively.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component unit, are
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:
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Item Years Item Years
Buildings 50 Vehicles 8
Waster Water Plant 20-25 Equipment and Machinery 4-10
Improvements 10 Sewerlines and Utility Systems 25
Furmniture and Fixtures 10 Software 10
Data Processing Equipment 3 Solid Waste Trucks 4
Streets 25 Sewer Rodder/Vactors 10
Traffic Signals 10 Bridges 25

6. Compensated absences

It 1s the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate eamed but unused vacation,
compensatory hours and sick pay benefits. There is a liability for these benefits since the city
has a policy to pay any amount when the employee has eamed the benefits. All vacation and
compensatory hours are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. The sick leave liability is calculated using the vesting method. The
City’s employees can utilize these balances for early retirement, buy out options, or donate
the hours to a sick leave bank to be used by other employees.

7. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statement, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debit.

The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financial sources while discounts on debt issuance are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

8. Fund equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for

use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management
plans that are subject to change.

9. Net Assets
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The government-wide and business types fund financial statements utilize a net asset
presentation. Net assets are categorized as investment in capital assets net of related debt,
restricted and unrestricted.

Investment in Capital Assets net of related debt is intended to reflect the portion of net assets
which are associated with non-liquid, capital assets less outstanding less outstanding capital
asset related debt.

Restricted assets for the City’s bond issues, as defined in the associated bond covenants, are
used for the payment of debt service (one-twelfth of principal, interest or both), and to fund
reserve accounts to be used for final debt service payments. In addition, the City obtains
loans from authorized State agencies for capital projects, the loan documents of which
occasionally require a debt service fund containing capitalized interest used for semi-annual
debt service payments, and a reserve fund for use as the final debt service payment. The City
also has received privately donated endowment funds for the Southside Library, expenditure
of which is limited to interest by the donor and by City resolution. Unrestricted Net Assets
consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital
assets, net of related debt.”

The City allocates expenses to restricted or unrestricted resources based on the budgeted
source of funds. It is the City’s policy to first apply restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

10. Comparative Data/Reclassifications

Comparative data for the prior year have been presented in MD&A in order for management
to provide as explanation of significant changes between years. Certain amounts presented in
the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s
presentation.

11. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements
A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and

the government-wide statement of net assets
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The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term
liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of the $(127,068,671) difference are
as follows:

Bonds Payable $ (98,060,000)
Plus: Bond premuim (to be amortized as interest expense) (3,306,385)
[atergovernmental Notes Payable (19,655,504)
Sub - Total (121,021,889)
Compensated Absences (6,046,783)
Net Adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds ) (127,068,672)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes reconciliation between net changes in fund balance — total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of government activities as reported in the govermment-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report
capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.”
The details of the $ 5,231,009 are as follows:

Capital Outlay $ 21,022,295
Less: Capital Qutlay-Inventory Exempt (4,87],841)
Depreciation Expense (10,919,445)
Net Adjustment to Increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 5,231,009

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds,
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds.” Neither transaction however has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds

report the deferred and amortized amounts in the statement of activities. The details of this
$7,934,084 difference are as follows:

Principal Repayments:
Revenue bond debt 7.375.000
Capital lease payments 261,058
NMFA and HUD Loan agreement payments 268,026

Net Adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental

funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental acrivities $ 7,934,084
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Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement
of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this (823,903) difference are
as follows:

Compeunsated Absenses $ 532,405
Interest Payable 38,534
Amortization of bond premiums 524,776
Amortization of deferred charges (271,812)
Net Adjustment to increase ret changes in fund balances - total governmental

Sunds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 823,903

Stewardship, compliance and accountability
A. Budgetary information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for all funds. Depreciation is not budgeted for enterprise funds. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The City is required to submit a proposed budget, which has been approved by the goveming
body, for each fiscal year on or before June Ist with the State of New Mexico Local
Govermnment Division of the Department of Finance and Administration. Before July Ist, the
Local Government Division approves and certifies an operating budget for use pending
approval of the final budget. Prior to the first Monday in September, the Local
Governmental Division must certify a final budget for the municipality.

The Local Government Division must also approve the following changes throughout the
fiscal year:

budget increases;

transfers of budget between funds;

transfers of cash, both permanent and temporary, between funds; and
any combination of the above.

o=

New Mexico state law prohibits municipalities from making expenditures in excess of the
approved expenditures. State law mandates that municipalities develop and operate within
the confines of a balanced budget. The total amount which the governing body appropriates
in any particular fiscal year cannot exceed the probable amount of money available at the
beginning of the year (cash balance or reserves) plus anticipated revenues during the fiscal
year. As required by the state, the City prepares a budget for all fund types.
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The Housing Authority’s budget (for the PHA-Locally Owned and Home Ownership
Opportunity Programs and the Section 8 Housing Programs) is prepared by management.
The Housing Authority is included in the combined financial statements as a component unit.
The Santa Fe Housing Development Corporation’s [8-month budget is prepared and
approved by the Housing Authority’s goveming board. The Corporation is included in the
combined financial statements as a component unit.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and division. The City manager may
approve requested transfers of appropriations within a fund for amounts less than $30,000.
Transfers of appropriations in excess of $30,000 or between funds and all budget increases
require the approval of the City council. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e. the level at
which expenditure may not legally exceed appropriations) is at the function level for the
general fund, the fund level for special revenue and capital improvement funds and at the
division level for the proprietary funds. The City council approved supplemental budgetary
appropriations during the fiscal year, primarily for new grant awards and additional project
funds, which did not materially affect cash reserves of related funds.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all funds, which represents commitments related to
yet unreceived or unperformed goods or services. Encumbrances (purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments for the expenditure of resources) do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities because the commitments will be re-appropriated and honored during the
subsequent year.

B. Excess of expenditures/expenses over appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2010, expenditures/expenses exceeded appropriations in the
following funds:

The Special Projects Fund, reported as a Capital Improvement Fund, is reporting excess
expenses over appropriations of $397,030. This deficit was caused by the implementation of
a web based financial system costing more that anticipated. The balance of the amount over-
expended will be covered from transfers from enterprise funds to participate in the cost.

The Parking Enterprise Fund is reposting excess expenses over appropriations of $124,335.
The overage was caused by higher than anticipated gross receipts tax payments to the New
Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department

The Worker’s Compensation Fund, reported as an Internal Service Fund, is reporting excess
of expenses over appropriations of $1,094,790. The deficit was caused by the incurred but
not reported (IBNR) cost which is a non-budgeted item. The balance of the amount over-
expended was recovered by available cash balance.

The Union Sick Leave Bank Fund and Santa Fe Dental fund, reported as Internal Service

Funds, are reporting excess of expenses over appropriations of $73,910 and $611,458
respectively. The deficit was caused by the expenditure being budgeted in the employee’s
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individual fund. The balance of the amount over-expended was recovered by available cash
balance.

The education function within General Fund is reporting an excess of expenses over
appropriations of $206,128. The deficit was caused by higher than anticipated expenditures
for personnel costs for fiscal year 2010, Please refer to finding 06-06 for smaller budget
overages.

C. Deficit fund equity

The Municipal Recreation Complex, reported as an Enterprise Fund, has deficit fund equity
ot $6,456,558 as of June 30, 2010. The deficit is the result of a portion of the bond proceeds
being required for start—up costs, including capitalized interest and working capital. The
deficit is expected to be recovered as a result of on-going operations.

The Special Projects Fund, reported as a Capital Improvement Fund, has deficit fund balance
of $476,751, as of June 30, 2010. This deficit was caused by the implementation of a web
based financial system costing more than anticipated. The balance of the amount over-
expended will be covered by cost sharing with the enterprise for the cost of the difference
modules implemented.

Detailed notes on all funds
A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits for the City of Santa Fe was $80,976,820 and
the year-end bank balance was $80,793,558. The total of demand deposits and short term-
term certificates of deposit were covered by Federal Depository Insurance, by collateral held
by the City’s agent in the City’s name, by letters of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank
of Dallas purchased by the depository institution, or by collateral held at appropriate
custodial banks as delivered by the depository institution for the varous certificates of
deposit and investment accounts other than those held by the City’s agent bank. The City’s
sweep accounts, the underlying investments of which are U.S. Government securities, are not
subject to collateralization requirements.

The carrying amount of deposits for the Housing Authority, presented as a component unit,
was $6,823,227 and the bank balance was $6,404,010. Al] bank balances were covered by
both Federal Depository Insurance and by collateral pledged in the Housing Authority’s
name.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of June 30, 2010 none of the
City’s deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk. The total of demand deposits and short-
term certificates of deposit were covered by FDIC, by collateral held by the City’s agent in
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the City’s name, by letters of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas purchased
by the depository institution, or by collateral held at appropriate custodial banks as delivered
by the depository institution for certificates of deposit and investment accounts other than
those held at the City’s agent bank.

The Housing Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June
30, 2010, $1,113,540 of the Authority’s bank balance of $7,386,497 was exposed to custodial
credit risk as follows:

Depository Accounts
Insured $ 3,908,763
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank's trust
department not in the Authorities name 2,364,194
Uninsured and uncollateralized 1,113,540

$  7.386.497

Certain cash balances are restricted by donors, bond agreements or by other legal
requirements. Restricted cash balances are maintained in separate bank accounts.

B. Investments

As of June 30, 2010, the City had the following investments and maturties:

Maturities

Fair Less than
Value 1 year 1-3 years 3 -5 years §-7 years

U. S. Government Agency bonds § 95902808 $ 42377,738 § 53,174,326 § 49887 § 300.857
NM Municipal bonds 11,967,412 6,804,906 3,504,254 1,658,252 -
107,870,220 $ 49,182,644 § 56,678,580 § 1,708,139 § 300,857

Money Markel Funds 2,591,606
NM LGIP 803,748
Towa! [nvestments § 111,265,574

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from
rsing interest rates, the City’s investment policy limits portfolio maturities to five years or
less, though investments held to accommodate debt reserve requirements may have longer
maturities. It further manages exposure by limiting the weighted average maturity of its
investment portfolio to less than one year. The New Mexico Local Government Investment
Pool at June 30, 2010 had a weighted average maturity of 50 days.

Credit Risk. As a charter city, the City’s investment policy is to apply the prudent-person
rule: Investments are made as a prudent person would be expected to act, with discretion and
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intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve capital, and, in general, avoid speculative
investments. The City’s investment policy follows the State of New Mexico statute on
public funds with certain further limitations. While State statute permits investing in
commercial paper and corporate notes, the City limits its investments to securities issued by
the U.S. government or its agencies, money market funds consisting of U.S. government
and/or U.S. government-sponsored agency securities, repurchase agreements, New Mexico
Local Govemment Investment Pool, and New Mexico municipal securities. Also in
compliance with the City Council approved Investment Policy, the City does not purchase
any municipal, U.S. agency or instrumentality, money market or other allowed investment
carrying less than the investment grade ratings offered by Standard and Poors, Moody’s
and/or Fitch.

With the demise of most bond insurance firms and the unprecedented bond market turmoil
that began during FY 2007-2008, the use of municipal bond insurance as a means of
providing municipalities with AAA ratings was severely curtailed. The rating agencies began
reviewing underlying municipal credit ratings and adjusting them as they felt necessary.
Municipals held in the portfolio changed considerably over the past year, allowing the City to
focus on purchases of those with strong underlying ratings as seen in the list of holdings
provided below. The City has adopted a goal of purchasing municipals with equivalent
ratings of AA or above. The City monitors the municipals in its portfolio, and makes
appropriate decisions regarding their retention as needed. Municipals made up 9.4% of the
portfolio at the end of FY 09-10.

Fair Value  S&P Moody's
Albuquerque NM Airport Revenue Bond § 514,650 AAA AA3
Albuquerque NM Gross Receipts Tax Refunding Bond 1,658,252 AAA AA2
Bemalillo County NM Gross Receipts Tax Bond 6,519,695 SP-1+ AA2
Los Alamos County NM Utility Bond 650,732 AAA AA3
NM Mortgage Finance Authority Single Family Mortgage Bond 285,211 AAA N/R
NM Mortgage Finance Authority Single I'amily Mortgage Bond 295,363 AAA N/R
NM Mortgage Finance Authority Single Farily Mortgage Bond 310,372 AAA N/R
NM Mortgage Finance Authority Single Family Mortgage Bond 292,949  AAA N/R
Santa Fe County NM Gross Receipts Capital Outlay Bond 778,992 AA AAl
Southern Sandoval County NM Arroyo Flood Control Bond 661,196 N/R AAD
5 11967412

Concentration of credit risk. Concentration risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of the portfolio’s investment in a single issuer. The City’s investment policy specifies that
the City shall diversify investments to avoid incurring unreasonable risk from concentrating
investments in specific security types and individual financial institutions.

The following table lists the fair value of securities and money market/pools in the City’s
portfolio as of June 30, 2010 with their respective percent of the portfolio, weighted average
maturity and ratings. In addition to municipals and US Treasuries, the City holds FFCB,
FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA agencies. The Wells Fargo Bank money market
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account serves as the repository for cash derved from matured securities and available
proceeds are continuously reinvested into securities.

Agencies

Investment Fair Value % of Portfolio @ WAM (Days) Rating
NM LGIP $ 803,748 0.74% 1 AAAmM
WFB Adv. Govt. Money Market 2,591,606 2.39% )| AAAmM
US Treasuries 10,566,665 9.74% 214 AAA
US Agencies AAA

FFCB 10,767,530 9.92% 362 AAA

FHLB 30,216,080 27.85% 287 AAA

FNMA 24,163,699 22.27% 142 AAA

FHLMC 17,063,090 15.73% 247 AAA

GNMASs 350,744 0.32% 2335 AAA
NM Municipals - Taxable 10,527,224 9.70% 293 AA-AAA
NM Municipals - Tax Exempt 1,440,188 1.33% 561 AA-AA2
TOTAL $ 108,490,574 100.00% 213

The City held uninsured deposits of $66,354,974 at June 30, 2010, of which 61% resided at
Wells Fargo Bank, the City’s primary financial institution. All uninsured funds were
collateralized in compliance with State of New Mexico statute.

All securities owned by the City are held by Wells Fargo Bank as custodian for the City, and
with the exception of municipal securities which carry their own rating, all securities are
registered AAA-rated federal agency securities backed by the full faith and credit of the
federal government. The City invests in money market funds that contain only agency
securities backed by the full faith and credit of the federal government. It has invested in the
New Mexico Local Government Investment Pool which does contain AAA corporate paper
in line with State of New Mexico statute, but the City itself does not hold any corporate

paper.

The Housing Authority, presented as a component unit, had no at-risk investments at June
30, 2010.
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C. Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2010 for the City’s individual major funds, non-major and internal
service funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible
accounts, are as follows:

1n% Waste Solid College  Noumajor

General Debt Gross Water Water Waste Rallyard  SamtaPe  of ang

Fund Service  RecciptTex  Mpmt Mgmi Memt Property  Cemter  SantaFe  Qther Fynds Total
Receivables:
Taxes § 0496453 § 206% $247448 §  S&2 SI20MM 8 03I S - 4 - - § 1RIN T 16146280
Creats 782,040 - . 165851 1,587,842 . 10,001 . - B8040 TSI
Acotuats . . S 252884 2848T81 2,073,220 - - - 29393 12738808
Inlerest 38,200 36,084 . 60374 29444 32,309 s ums Bl 183,70 729,200
Ambulsoce 2,636,034 - . . . . . . . < 2660%
Other 73410 2735556 2808966

Gross Receivables 13,026,137 W6 2412448 3053921 10045841 2410902 1356 318 W4 14380829 4640402
Less: Allowance

Unoallectitle: {1,77042%) . - Q13433 (1369432)  (360,530) - - - (3600 (359743
Tola! Primary

Govenment — $ 1293708 § 16776 S 247048 § LI0058 $9376409 § 2050172 §  133%6 § MW § B § M § 2443mI
Composent Units:

Granls and

lenants § -8 - § - % -5 - 8 -3 - § %Mo 5 964
Other - - - - - - - 1,135,760 1,135,760
Total Componeat

Units; $ - - § - § -4 - - 3 . S840 § 1292140

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental
funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received,
but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred
revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:
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Land Sale Contract - (Special Revenue)

Special Asssessments-(Special Revenue)
Grant-(Special Revenue)

Advarnce for construction (CIP fund)

HUD payment in advance (Debt service)
Reimbursement of Gas line extension - {General Fund)
Liquor Licenses - (General Fund)

Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds

D. Capital assets

Deferred

5 2,512,826
74,775

189,309
398,173

25,113

43,779

49,825

$ 3,253,800

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
Land $ 167,563,753 § 2233421 § (235,000) § 169,562,174
Construction in Progress 43,927,407 13,466,522 (40,261,747) 17,132,182
Ait 922.920 - - 922,920
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated 212,414 080 15,699,943 (40,496,747) 187,617,276
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Bujldings and systems 43,368,881 11,007,641 - 54,376,522
[mprovements 22,412,524 13,736,561 - 36,149,085
Equipment and Machinery 15,304,521 605,524 (133,606) 15,776,439
Furnirure and Fixmres 614,520 251,494 - 866,014
Vehicles 19,552,020 1,373,390 (651,078) 20,274,332
Data Processing and Sofiware 11,242,344 535,944 (102,519) 11,675,769
Traffic Signals 22,554,785 667,262 - 23,222,047
Streets 178,143,566 13,805,097 (493,782) 191,454,881
Bridges 2,109,269 - - 2,109,269
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 315,302,430 41982913 (1,380,985) 355,904,358
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings (9,602,057) (1,332,243) ; (10,934,300)
Improvements (16,617,968) (2,361,636) - (18,979,604)
Equipment and Machinery (12,431,262) (1,050,351) 124,438 (13,357,175)
Furniture and Fixtures (488,532) (31,456) - (519,988)
Vehicles (12,144,398) (1,618,943) 631,643 (13,131,698)
Data Processing and Sofiware (6,139,224) (1,231,877) 101,981 (7.269.120)
Traffic Signals (19,701,940) (646,422) - (20,348,362)
Streets (146,667,701) (2,580,205) (149,247,906)
Bridges (286,044) (79,667) - (365,711)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (224,079,126) (10,932,800) 858,062 (234,153 ,864)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 91,223.304 31,050,113 (522,923) 121,750,494
Governmiental Activities Capital Assets $ 303,637,384 § 46,750,056 § (41,019,670) $ 309,367,770

50



City of Santa Fe, New Mexico
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2010
Beginnlng Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type Activities:
Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
Land $ 27,095,773 § 14,456,000 - 41,551,773
Waier Rights 173,160 168,119 - 341,279
Construction in Progress 116,876,241 79,585,279 (28,423,507) 168,037,613
Art 185.971 - - 185,971
Total Assets not being Depreciated 144 331,145 94,209,398 (28,423,907) 210,116,636
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Buildings and Structures 147,174,760 36,656,561 - 183,831,321
Improvements 64,491,560 2,686,673 - 67,178,233
Sewerlines and Utility Systems 92,020,171 10,180,065 (1,415) 102,198,821
Equipment and Machinery 19,745,358 490,501 (103,289) 20,132,570
Furniture and Fixtures 769,508 8,943 (3,305) 775,143
Vehicles 20,985,506 1,560,178 (871,533) 21,674,151
Intangible Plant 57,625 - - 57,625
Data Processing and Software 2,750,639 687,524 (63,010) 3,375,153
Total Assets being Depreciated 347995124 52,270,445 (1,042,552) 399,223,017
Less Accumulated Depreciaton for:
Buildings and Structures (25,567,750) (4,172,889) - (29,740,639)
Improvements (36,483,456) (4,805,289) - (41,288,745)
Sewerlines and Utility Systems (47,670,933) (3,865,634) 173 (51,536,394)
Equipment and Machinery (12,238,206) (1,411,975) 102,826 (13,547,355)
Furniture and Fixtures (724,557) (11,966) 3,11 (733,412)
Vehicles (13,232,626) (1.687,388) 862,247 (14,057,767)
Intangible Plant (57,625) - - (57,625)
Daia Processing and Sofiware (2,069,963) (184,768) 63,084 (2,191,647)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (138,045,116) (16,139.909) 1,031,441 (153,153,584)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 209,950,008 36,130,536 (11,111) 246,069,433
Business-type Activities Capital Assets § 354,281,153 $ 130,339,934 § (28,435,018) § 456,186,069
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Discretely presented component unit:

Beginning Espanola Decreases/ Ending
Balance Contributions Inereases Reclasses Balance
Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
Land S 865,152 § 277,437 -3 -3 1,142,589
Construction [n Progress 28,952 579,712 3,774,321 (617,373) 3,765,612
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated 894,104 857,149 3,774,321 (617,373 4,908,201
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 28,740,522 10,824,142 1,004,890 (8,943,627 31,625,927
Furniture and Fixtures 243,761 639,153 - - 382,914
Vehicles 240.331 138,759 - - 379,090
Machinery and Equipment 236,391 - 4,318 (41,834) 198,875
Total Capita! Assets being Depreciated 29,461,005 11,602,054 1,009,208  (8,985,461) 33,086,806
Less: Accumulated Depreciation: (19,742,566) (6,379.628) ().535,151) 7,058,962 (20,598,383)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net 9,718,439 5,222,426 (525,943)  (1,926,499) 12,488,423
Discretely Presented Component Unit
Capital Assets, Net ) 10,612,543 § 6,079,575 § 3248378 § (2,543,872) § 17,396,624

Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as

follows:
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Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 1,860,308
Public Safety 1,002,909
Highways and Streets, excluding depreciation of general infrastructure assets 7,433,041
Community Welfare 171,437
Culture and Recreation 451,750
Subtotal 10,919,445
Capital Assets held by the City's Internal Service Funds are charged to the
various functions based on their usage of the Assets 13,355
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 10,932,800
Business - Type Activities:
Santa Fe Convention Center $ 1,297,636
Parking Operations 514,048
Solid Waste Management 875,807
Waste Water Management 3,663,342
Water Managernent 5,460,438
Municipal Recreation Center 235,982
Genoveva Chavez Community Center 515,203
Airport 1,021,207
Transit Operations 701,053
Rajlyard 1,127,192
College of Santa Fe 727,998
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities g 16,139,909

Construction commitments:

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2010. The projects include street and
highway construction, parks and recreation, community welfare, municipal facilities, airport
improvements, and water division facilities improvements, waste water management, rail
yard infrastructure, parking, transit, general govermment, solid waste and GCCC community
center. At year end the City’s commitments with contractors are as follows:
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Spent Remaining
Project to Date Commifments

Street and Highway Construction $ 42432636 §$ 1,453,793
Parks and Recreation 25,086,999 2,387,761
Municipal Facilities Improvements 6,655,722 175,371
Railyard Infrastructurc 27,338,260 509,123
Airport Improvements 17,967,855 1,080,042
Community Welfare 752,944 161,035
Community Development 5,247,559 101,452
Wastewater Management 18,628,623 245,447
Water Division Improvements 119,373,417 11,275,729
Convention Center 62,137,168 371,866
General Government 103,499 2,677
Solid Waste 8,716,990 19,061
GCCC Community Center 188,851 56,254

Totel $ 334,630,523 $§ 17,839,611

The commitment for streets and highways is being financed by grants from Federal Highway
Administration, New Mexico Highway and Transportation Department, New Mexico
Department of Finance and Administration, gross receipts tax revenue bonds, and existing
resources from aerial photo fund, sewer line extension fund, economic development fund and
Tierra Contenta fund, the capital improvements project fund (CIP) and from the American
Reinvestment and Recovery Act (federal stimulus money). The commitment for parks and
recreation is being financed by a grant from New Mexico Department of Finance and
Administration, gross receipt tax revenue bonds and from existing resources of general fund
and the Tierra Contenta fund. The commitment for Municipal facilities is being financed by
CIP re-allocations, and the 2% gross receipts tax fund. The commitment for the Railyard
Infrastucture is being financed by GRT bonds and generated revenues. The commitment for
the Airport is financed by the Federal Aviation Administration grants, bond issues, and from
the New Mexico Highway and Transportation Department. Community welfare is being
financed by grants from the New Mexico State Agency on Aging, gross receipts tax bonds
(GRT), and CIP reallocations. Commitments for the Wastewater treatment facility are
financed by sewer revenues and existing resources from the CIP reallocation fund.
Commitments for the Water division are financed by gross receipts tax revenue bonds to be
paid back from user fees, grants from state and federal agencies, and loans from the New
Mexico Finance Authority. Commitment for the Convention Center is financed by loans
from the New Mexico Finance Authority and transfers from the Convention Center-Lodgers
Tax Fund. Solid Waste commitments are financed by revenue bonds and generated
revenues.

E. Endowment

The City of Santa Fe Library Endowment fund, of which the $250,000 principal must remain
intact in perpetuity, was reinvested in a one-year certificate of deposit for this fiscal year. The
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principal is invested to generate distributable income for the Southside Public Library to be

used for operation and maintenance of the building.

F. Inter-fund receivables, payables, and transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
Primary Government;
Generzal Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
Francise Fee $ 2,725 $ -
Environmental Services 43,239 -
Resource Conservation 80,576 -
Senjor Citizens Grants 249,060 -
NEA 8,905 -
Capital Projects Funds
Other CIP Projects 365,330 -
Enterprise Funds:
Transit Bus System 398,286 -
Special Revenue Funds:
General Fund - 384,505
Capital Improvement Funds
1/2% Gross Receipts Tax - 280,000
Capital Projects Funds
General Fund - 365,330
Special Reverue Funds:
Land Development 280,000 -
Enterprise:
Water Management 13,624,545 -
Enterprise Funds
General Fund: - 398,286
Capital Project Funds:
1/2% Gross Receipts Tax - 13,624,545
Total All Funds § 15,052,666 $ 15,052,666
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Component Unit:
Enterprise Funds
Housing Authority

Santa Fe Housing Development Corporation:
Section 8 - Voucher

La Cieneguita

Esparniola Section 8 Voucher

Celo Azul

Section 8 Voucher

Region II Voucher
SF Housing Development Corp
Espanola Section 8 Voucher

Cielo Azul

Lz Cieneguita
Section 8 - Voucher

Region I

Housing Authority

Espanola Section 8 Voucher

Espanola Housing Operating

Espanola Housing Operating

Housing Operating

Santa Fe Housing Development Corporation:

Cielo Azul

Total All Funds

Inter-fund transfers:

282,155 -
- 105,280

- 113,759

- 38,341

- 24,750

- 25
1,140,927 -
- 416,256

- 400,000

- 324,671

4,625 1,753

- 2,872

39,815 -

- 39,815

363,587 -

- 363,587

23,540 -

- 23,540

500,000 -
- 500,000

$ 2,354,649 S 2,354,649

Transfer In Prom

Fund General Special Capltal Debt Enterprise Internal
Dishursing Fand Revenue Projects Service Pupds Service Totsd
General Fund S - § 2388580 S 3,009,800 § 47,432 § 104,133 8 1,323,978 6,374,123
Special Revepue 6,150,967 1,398,410 1,385,401 309,629 26,74) 43,195 9,514,343
Capital Projecr . 137,443 1,971,041 1,302,511 188,501 10,001 3,609,902
Debt Serviee - 1,847260 9 667,828 362,140 352,430 - 12,226,655
Enterprise Funds 133334 12,672.294 2,481,436 900,000 5,431 220,027 16,412,532
Internal Service - - - - 626 - 626
Total § 6484301 § 18443,992 § 18,515513 § 2,521,712 § 678,461 § 1,597201 48,641,18]
Transfer Qut To
Fund General Special Capttsl Debt Entcrprise Internal
Disbursing Fund Revenue Projects Serviee Funds Service Towad
Geners) Fund S - § 6350967 S - 8 - 8 133334 § - 6,484.301
Spectal Revepue 2,388,580 1,398,410 137,448 1.847,260 12.672,194 18,443,992
Capual Projects 3,000,800 1385401 1,604,741 9,667,825 2,481,446 18,145,213
Debt Service 47,432 309,626 13,022 2,017,928 900,000 3,288,011
Enterprisc Funds 104,333 26,741 38,901 502,430 5,431 - 677,836
[niema) Service 1.323.07% 43195 10.001 - 220,028 626 1.597.828
Toral § 6,874,123 § 9514343  § 1,804 113 § 14035433 § 16,412,533 5 626 43,641,181
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The City has numerous interfund transactions during the course of the fiscal year. These
transactions are treated as follows:

I, Inter-fund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues and
expenditures/expenses in the funds involved. These types of transactions include
administrative overhead charges that are charged to various City departments for
services that are being provided (data processing, accounting, personnel, etc.).
This also includes insurance premiums charged to the various City departments
by the City’s Risk Management Fund which contracts with a third — party
insurance carrier.

2. Inter-fund balances result from deficit cash balances and the loan from the %%
CIP GRT to the Water Management fund which it expects to collect in future
years.

3. Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection

authorization to where the resources are to be expended 2) move unrestricted
general fund revenue to finance various programs that the government must
account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including
amount provided as matching funds for various grant programs.

G. Leases
Operating Leases

The City has operating leases for certain buildings, parking lots, towers, and data processing
equipment. The operating leases are renewable annually contingent upon available
appropriations. The total cost and minimum future lease payments are considered by
management to be immaterial as of June 30, 2010

H. Long-Term Debt

Long—term debt of the city at June 30, 2010 consisted of revenue bonds payable solely from
gross receipts tax revenues, revenue bonds payable solely from revenues of enterprise funds,
general obligation bonds payable solely from property tax revenues, notes payable from
gross receipts tax revenues, notes payable from lodger’s tax revenues, notes payable from
revenues of enterprise funds, capital leases, and compensated absences payable.

During FY 2009-2010 the City issued no new governmental revenue or general obligation
bonds. On December 15, 2009, the City issued the 2009A and 2009B Water Utility
System/Capital Outlay Gross Receipts Tax Revenue Bonds to be used to fund a portion of
the City’s share of the regional Buckman Direct Diversion Project. The 2009A water bonds
were issued as tax exempt bonds in the par amount of $18,080,000, maturing June 2027, and
carrying interest rates from 2% to 5%. The 2009B water bonds were issued as taxable direct-
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payment Build America Bonds (BABs) bonds, in the par amount of $41,890,000, maturing
June 2039, and carrying interest rates from 6.0% to 6.2%. The City receives a Federal
subsidy under this program of 35% of the interest cost. Subsidy funds are received semi-
annually by the pay agent/trustee and are used only for payments of debt service interest on
these bonds.

Long—term debt of the component units consist of revenue bonds payable solely from the
rental revenues in the Santa Fe Housing Development Corporation.

Total City revenue bonded debt including governmental and business-type debt is as follows:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Governmental Activities 2.00-5.50% ) 78,660,000
Business - Type Activities 3.25-6.00% 202,545,000

§ 281,205,000

Annual debt service requirements for the City’s revenue bonds to maturity are as follows:

Years Ended Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2011 A 7,020,000 3,827,331 § 6,755,000 § 10,153,311
2012 7,350,000 3,478,144 7,110,000 9,880,024
2013 6,625,000 3,183,794 7,465,000 9,579,449
2014 6,850,000 2,851,606 7,755,000 9,247,911
2015 7,185,000 2,498262 8,235,000 8,900,236
2016-2020 33,755,000 7,250,213 48,250,000 38,348,579
2021-2025 9,875,000 784,350 43,450,000 26,359,964
2026-2030 - - 24,300,000 18,207,637
2031-2035 - - 29,780,000 11,080,123
2036-2039 - - 19,445,000 3,547,950
Total $ 78,660,000 § 23,873,700 $ 202,545,000 § 145,305,214

Annual debt service requirements for the City’s general obligation bonds to maturity are as
follows:

58



City of Santa Fe, New Mexico
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2010
Years Ended Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 750,000 795,458 $ - 5
2012 775,000 769,926
2013 805,000 740,301
2014 835,000 708,508 - -
2015 865,000 674,508 - -
2016-2020 4,880,000 2,808,738 -
2021-2025 6,075,000 1,645,486 -
2026-2030 4,415,000 301,458
2031-2035 - - -
2036-2039 - -

$ 19,400,000 § 8,448,383 -

Notes payable — Pumary Government

During fiscal year 2007-2008 the City secured two loans from NMFA to partially fund
construction of a regional water system upgrade.

Note payable to NMFA issued on November 2, 2007, for the amount of $200,000 at 0%
interest with a maturity date of June 2027 in conjunction with a $1,800,000 grant, to
partially fund construction of the Buckman Direct Diversion Water Project. Per the joint
powers agreement between the City of Santa Fe and the County of Santa Fe goveming
the Buckman Direct Diversion Project, the City 1s responsible for 50% of the loan.

Note payable to NMFA issued on May 16, 2008, for the amount of $15,150,000 at 2.00%
interest with a maturity date of June 2029 from the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan
Fund, to partially fund construction of the Buckman Direct Diversion Water Project. The
Drinking Water loan is recognized as an intergovernmental payable as funds are drawn
down.

During fiscal year 2008-2009 the City secured two additional NMFA loans to partially fund
construction of water system upgrades, including the Buckman Direct Diversion Water
Project.

Note payable to NMFA issued on March 27, 2009, for the amount of $800,000 at 0%
interest with a maturity date of June 2029, in conjunction with a $3,200,000 grant, to
partially fund construction of the Buckman Direct Diversion Water Project. Per the joint
powers agreement between the City of Santa Fe and the county of Santa Fe govermning
this project, the City is responsible for 50% of the loan.

Note payable to the NMFA issued June 12, 2009, for the amount of $400,000 at 0%
interest with a maturity date of June 2029, in conjunction with a $1,609,000 grant, to
partially fund an upgrade of the Canyon Road Treatment Plant. Under terms of the loan,
since no program funds were drawn to reimburse costs prior to the end of the fiscal year,
it was not included in long term debt until FY 2009-2010.
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During fiscal year 2009-2010 the City secured two additional loans from NMFA for a water
conservation program and additional upgrades to the Canyon Road Treatment Plant.

Note payable to NMFA issued May 7, 2010, for the amount of $800,000 at 0% interest
with a maturity date of June 2030, in conjunction with a $3,200,000 grant, to partially
fund an upgrade of the Canyon Road Treatment Plant.

Note payable to NMFA issued June 4, 2010, for the amount of $§127,500 at 1.0% interest
with a maturity date of June 2030, in conjunction with a $297,500 grant, to partially fund
a water conservation program.

The following represents the status of these loans as of June 30, 2010.

Buckman Loan (FSANTAFE16) § 74,903
Drinking Water Loan (BSANTAFEDW-2) 14,526,787
Buckman Loan (#SANTAFE19) 372,254
Canyon Rd Treatment Plant (#SANTAFEWPF 3) 380,472
Canyon Rd Treatment Plant (#SANTAFEWPF 4) 800,000
Water Conservation (#SANTAFE23) 127,500
Total Notes Payable $ 16,281,916
Less: Current Portion (749,573)
Total Long Term Notes Payable 15,532,343
Less: Cashin Trust @)
Total LT Notes Payable Less Cash 11 Trust $ 15,532,336

During fiscal year 2004-2005 the City secured two loans from NMFA for the purpose of
infrastructure improvements to the Railyard property. The loans are to be repaid from rental
revenues of the Railyard Development Enterprise fund.

Note payable to NMFA issued on September 24, 2004 for the amount of $579,025 at
5.10% interest with a maturity date of May 2024 for infrastructure improvements related
to electric, gas and telecommunication utilities at the Railyard Redevelopment Project
property.

Note payable to NMFA issued on September 24, 2004 for the amount of $5,107,652 at
3.987% interest with a maturity date of May 2024 for infrastructure improvements related
to water and waste water, streets, drainage and traffic at the Railyard Redevelopment

Project property.

During fiscal year 2006-2007 the City secured two additional loans from NMFA for the
purpose of infrastructure improvements to the Railyard property. The loans are to be repaid
from rental revenues of the Railyard Development Enterprise Fund.
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Note payable to NMFA issued on October 20, 2006 for the amount of $7,642,231 at
4.273% 1interest with a maturity date of October 2026 for infrastructure improvements
related to electric, gas and telecommunications utilities at the Railyard Development
Project property.

Note payable to the NMFA issued on October 20, 2006 for the amount of $892,227 at
5.985% interest with a maturity date of October 2026 for infrastructure improvements
related to water and waste water, streets, drainage and traffic at the Railyard
Development Project property.

The following represents the status as of June 30, 2010.

Railyard Infrastructure #7 $ 4,493,002
Railyard Infrastructure #8 515,600
Railyard Infrastructure #15A 7,321,292
Railyard Infrastructure #1 5B 860,083
Total Notes Payable 13,189,677
Less: Current Portion (647,043)
Total Long Term Notes Payable § 12,542,934
Less: Cash in Trust (481.972)
Total LT Notes Payable Less Cash In Trust 12,060,962

During fiscal year 2009-2010 the City secured a loan from NMFA for the acquisition and
improvement of land, buildings and other real property owned by the College of Santa Fe.
The City of Santa Fe, in conjunction with the State of New Mexico, the New Mexico Finance
Authority, the LaSalle Christian Brothers (who founded the college, Laureate Education,
Inc., and a number of other affected parties, negotiated an arrangement whereby, among
other things, the City would purchase the facilities and make certain essential upgrades, the
College’s prior debt would be relieved, and Laureate Education, Inc., would lease and
manage the college. The long-term lease with Laureate requires the payment of rent to the
City sufficient to cover the debt service on the NMFA loan. The City has retained the right to
sell the property subject to Laureate Education, Inc., having the right of first offer, right of
first refusal and purchase option.

Note payable to NMFA issued September 14, 2009, for the amount of $29,615,000 at a
6.889% average interest with a maturity date of June 2036, for the purpose of purchasing
the facilities of the College of Santa Fe.

The following represents the status as of June 30, 2010.
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College of Santa Fe $ 29,615,000
Total Notes Payable 29,615,000
Less: Current Portion (615,000)
Total Long Term Notes Payable $ 29,000,000
Less: Cash in Trust (10)
Total LT Notes Payable Less Cash In Trust 28,999,990

During fiscal year 2004-2005 a loan from NMFA was secured for the purpose of purchasing
fire vehicles. The loan is to be repaid from State Fire Fund grant revenues utilizing a debt
service fund held by NMFA.

Note payable to NMFA issued on January 14, 2005 for the amount of §1,166,667 at
2.427% interest with a maturity date of May 2013 for the purpose of fire engines.

During fiscal year 2005-2006 the City secured an additional loan from NMFA for the
purpose of constructing a parking garage on the Railyard tErope:rty. The Railyard Parking
Garage loan will be repaid from parking revenues and a 1/16™ gross receipts tax.

Note payable to NMFA issued on March 28, 2006 for the amount of $14,986,587 at
4.326% interest with a maturity date of June 12, 2036 for the construction of a parking
garage on the Railyard property.

During fiscal year 2008-2009 the City secured an additional Joan from NMFA for the
purpose of purchasing land for City facilities. The Land Acquisition loan will be repaid from
the 2% gross receipts tax.

Note payable to NMFA issued August 1, 2008, for the amount of $3,610,000 at 4.316%
interest with a maturity date of June 1, 2028 for the purchase of land for City purposes.

The NMFA notes represent balances available to the City for capital projects. For most of
these loans, the City makes payments on the entire amount of the notes even if the entire
balance has not been drawn. The exceptions to this are drinking water loans (which are
Federal) and State Water Trust Board loans, both handled through NMFA, for which debt
service schedules are not finalized until all funds have been drawn. NMFA loans not drawn
are kept in a trust account held by NMFA on behalf of the City are applied to principal if the
money is not drawn by a specified period.

On July 1, 2004 the City’s Economic Development Department entered into a loan
agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for the amount of
$300,000 at 3.10% with a maturity date of August 2024. The purpose of the loan is to
finance a business incubator.
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On January 3, 2010, the City purchased a tract of land from the Santa Fe Public Schools for
$840,000. This was funded with a $280,000 downpayment and a two year real estate loan
agreement requiring annual principal payments of $280,000 with annual interest at 1.78%.
The balance outstanding on the loan was $560,000 as of June 30, 2010

The following represents the status of the NMFA Fire Vehicle, Parking Garage and Land
Acquisition Joans, the HUD loan, and the Santa Fe Public Schools loan as of June 30, 2010.

Fire Vehicles $ 462,619
Parking Garage Loan 14,986,587
Land Acquisition 3,385,208
HUD Section 108 261,000
Santa Fe Public Schools 560,000
Total Notes Payable $ 19,655,504
Less: Current Portion (919,213)

Total Long Term Notes Payable $ 18,736,291
Less: Cash in Trust (184,136)

$ 18,552,155

The debt service requirements to maturity for long term notes payable at June 30, 2010 are as
follows:

Years Ended Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2011 919,213 776,879 2,011,626 2,393,361
2012 938.688 752,830 2,038,632 2,349,417
2013 680,127 726,825 2,092,147 2,300,009
2014 539,867 704,160 2,149,476 2,242,309
2015 559,223 684,850 2,211,858 2,180,403
2016-2020 3,129,569 3,092,032 12,195,314 9,784,522
2021-2025 3,804,981 2,412,778 14,264,387 7,402,071
2026-2030 4,052,810 1,559,188 11,218,453 4,720,996
2031-2035 4,097,703 733,721 8,810,000 2,303,261
2036-2035 933323 39,573 2,095,000 127,166
Total $ 19,655,504 8 11,482,836 § 59,086,893 § 35,803,545

Advance and current refunding

No advance or current refundings were undertaken in Fiscal Year 2009-2010.

Changes in lopg-term liabilities

The changes in long—term debt during the year ended June 30, 2010, are as follows:
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Oustanding Oustanding ~ Due Within

July 1, 2009 Additions Reductions  June 30,2010  One Year
Goverpmental Activities:
Revenue Bonds Payable $ 85,435,000 $ (6,775,000) $ 78,660,000 $ 7,020,000
General Obligation Bonds Payable 20,000,000 - {600,000) 19,400,000 750,000
New Mexico Finance Authority Loans 19,114,530 (280,026) 18,834,504 621,213
Santa Fe Public School Loan - 560,000 - 560,000 280,000
HUD Section 108 279,000 - (18,000) 261,000 18,000
Add. Deferred Amount (premium/discount) 3,831,160 - (524,776) 3,306,334 501,583
Compensated Absences 8,003,429 2.790,395 (4,120,681) 6,673,143 540,441
Capital Leases 261,058 - (261,058) - -
Govermental Activity 136,924,177 3,350,395  (12,579,541) 127,695,031 9,731,237
Business - Type Activities:
Convention Center Bonds 49,610,000 - (1,010,000) 48,600,000 1,035,000
Water Revenue Bonds 47,685,000 59,970,000 (2,345,000) 105,310,000 2,845,000
Wastewater Revenue Bonds 25,775,000 - (1,240,000) 24,535,000 1,365,000
Solid Waste Revenue Bonds 13,145,000 - (690,000) 12,455,000 720,000
Municipal Recreation Complex Revenue 12,405,000 - (760,000) 11,645,000 790,000
New Mexico Finance Authority Loans 29,050,052 31,342,500 (1.305,659) 59,086,893 2,011,626
Add. Deferred Amount (premium/discount) 5,236,999 651,416 (297,590) 5,590,825 307,663
Compensated Absences 2.242,127 727411 (560,532) 2,409,006 695,027
Business - Type Activity S 185,149,178 § 92691327 § (8,208,781) § 269,631,724 § 9,769,316

Internal Service Funds predominantly serve governmental funds.

Accordingly, long-term

liabilities for these are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At
year end, $85,918 of intemal service funds compensated absences is included in the above
amounts. The amount $§540,441 of compensated absences, due within sixty days after year
end 1s recorded within current liabilities in the governmental funds balance sheet statement,
which is based on employees terminations and retirements. This is also the amount of
compensated absences due within one year displayed as “long-term liabilities, due within one
year” for the governmental activities on the government-wide statement of net assets

Notes and Bonds Payabie ~ Component Unit

On December 9, 1993, the Santa Fe Housing Development Corporation (SFHDC) issued the
SFHDC Multi-Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bond Series 1993 A, issue amount of
$3,365,000 at 5.5% to 6% interest with 2 maturity date of February 1, 2018. These bonds
were paid off during the year by acquiring a commercial mortgage on the property. The total
principal and interest paid for the current year was $1,955,000 and$79,945, respectively.
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The Housing Authority entered into a note , a commercial mortgage with a bank , for the
purpose acquiring the Cielo Azul property for $700,000 at 6% interest with a maturity date of
October 2034 secured by property.

The Housing Authority assumed a $109,620 note with MFA upon being granted ownership
of Region II Vouchers. The note has an interest rate of 5.0% with a maturity date of
December 2021.

The Housing Authority assumed a $390,000 note with MFA, for the purpose of rehabilitating
or constructing La Resolana units. The note has an interest rate of 3.0% with a maturity date
of June 17, 2028.

The Housing Authority entered into a commercial mortgage with a Los Alamos National
Bank for purpose of paying off the SFHDC 1993 Bonds and the $200,00 commercial
renovation for $2,780,000 at 4.25% interest with a maturity date of October 15, 2024 and has
monthly payments of $13,676.

The Housing Authority entered into a note with a Santa Fe church, for the purpose of
acquiring the Cielo Azul property for $500,000 at 3% interest. No payment of interest or
principal shall be required until October 2009, secured by property. The Authority accrued a
total of $71,250 of interest for the note. The total payoff required by the Church was
$546,050. The difference in interest of $25,200 was applied against the current year interest
expense.

The Housing authority entered into an agreement with First Community Bank in the form of
a note payable on July 1, 2009 in the original principal amount of $500,000 for the purpose
of additional working capital. The note has an interest rate of 3.55% and matures on
September 29, 2010. The principal amount of the note is secured by the assignment of a
deposit account in the form of a certificate of deposit.

Bank note (Housing Authority) $ 500,000
Due to MFA (SFHDC) 373,096
Commercial mortgage (SFHDC) 2,748,870
Commercial mortgage (Cielo Azul) 649,948
Casas Buena Ventura note (Cielos Azul) 200,000
Due to MFA (Region 1) 97,170
Total debt 4,569,084
Current portion (781,036)
Total Long-term debt $ 3,788,048

Total aggregate maturing of the notes payable debt at June 30, 2010, is as follows:

65



City of Santa Fe, New Mexico
Notes to the Financial Statements

Jume 30, 2010
Years Ended Commercial Mortgage Commercial Mortgage FSB Note Casas Note
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest  Principal Interest
2014 11,596 38,770 48217 115,895 500,000 - 200,000
2012 12,311 38,055 50,307 113,805 - . - -
2013 13,070 37,286 52,487 111,625 - -
2014 13,876 36.480 54,762 109,350 . -
2015 14,732 35,634 57,135 106,977
2016-2020 88,464 163,365 325,032 495,528 - -
2021-2025 119,325 132,504 2,160,930 367,943 . -
2026-2030 160,952 90,877 - - - -
2031-2035 215,622 34,729 - - - - -
Total $ 649,948 § 607,720 § 2,748,870 § 1,421,123 $ 500,000 $ - $200,000 $
Years Ended MFA Note 1 MFA Note 2 Total
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Princlpal Interast
2011 $ 6,408 § 4708 § 14815 § 11,441 § 781,036 § 170514
2012 6,736 4,380 15,270 10,686 84,624 166,926
2013 7,081 4,036 15,738 10,217 88,377 163,174
2014 7443 3,673 16,222 9,734 92,303 159,247
2015 7,824 3,202 16,720 9,236 96,411 155,139
2016-2020 45,548 10,032 91,626 38,154 550,671 707,079
2021-2025 16,128 642 106,585 23,195 2,402,969 524,284
2026-2030 - 86,119 6,158 257,071 97,035
2031-2035 - - - - 215,622 34,728
Total $ 97,170 § 30,763 § 373,006 § 118521 § 4,569,084 $2,178127
Defeased Debt

In prior years, the City defeased certain revenue and other bonds by placing the proceeds of
the new bonds in a irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not
included in the City’s financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, there were no bonds
outstanding considered defeased.

I. Segment information

Segment information reflects an activity reported as an enterprise fund or another stand-—
alone entity for which one or more revenue bonds or other revenue-backed debt instruments
are outstanding based on a specific identifiable revenue stream pledged in support of the
bonds. The City has five such enterprise funds: Waste Water Management, Water
Management, Santa Fe Convention Center, Solid Waste Management and the Municipal
Recreation Complex (MRC). Waste Water Management, Water Management, Solid Waste
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Management, and Santa Fe Convention Center are all reported as major funds. Financial
segment information for the non-major enterprise fund for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

is as follows:

Condensed Statement of Net Assets June 30, 2010

MRC
Assets:
Current Assets 3 603,739
Capital Assets 4,689,998
Total Assets 5,593,737
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities 945,535
Noncurrent Liabilities 11,104,760
Toal Liabilities 12,050,295
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt (7,196,999)
Restricted 107,536
Unrestricted 632,905
Total Net Assets $ (6,456,558)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and changes in Net Assets June 30, 2010

MRC
User Fees § 1,100,296
Depreciation (235,982)
Other Opecrating Expense (1,057,986)
Operating Income (193,672)
Nonoperating Revepues (expenses):
Investment Eamings 5,138
Intergovernmenta) 464,581
Interest Expense (526,553)
Gther Nonoperating Revenue/(Expenses) 17,286
Operating Transfers In/Out 1,990,996
Total Nonoperating Revenues (expenses) 1,951,448
Change in Net Assets 1,757,776
Beginning Net Assets (8,214,334)
Ending Net Assets $ (6,456,558)
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows June 30, 2010

Net Cash Provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
Noncapital Financing Activities

Capital and Related Financing Activities

Investing Activities

Net Increase (decrease)
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Condensed Statement of Net Assets June 30, 2010

Assets.
Current Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Invested In Capital Assets,
net of related Debt
Total Net Assets

MRC
§ (101,843)
2,545,450
(1,964,903)
2,881
481,585
S 481,585
Housing Cielo Region
Dev. Corp. Azul 0 Total
$ 3222875 § 174,080 $ 417,632 § 3,814587
1,283,180 1,340,002 160,558 2,783,740
4,506,055 1,514,082 578,190 6,508,327
589,155 211,621 422,664 1,223,440
3,058,934 1,138,352 90,762 4,288,048
3,648,089 1,349,973 513,426 5,511,488
2,696,752 (325,945) 1,376 2.372,183
(1,838,786) 490,054 63,388 (1,285,344)
$ 857,966 $ 164,109 § 64,764 $ 1,086,839
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and changes in Net Assets June 30,2010

Housing Cielo Region
Dev. Corp. Azul 11 Total

Operating Revenues $ 789,632 § 235626 $ 12,219 $ 1,037,477
Operating Expenses (657,330) (122,303) (15,708) (795,341)

Operating Income (loss) 132,302 113,323 (3,489) 242,136
Nounoperating Revenues (expenses) (152,367) 36,821 (3,568) (115,114)
Capital Contributions

Change in Net Assets (20,065) 150,144 (7,057) 123,022
Beginning Net Assets (deficit) 878,031 13,965 71,821 863,817
Ending Net Assets $ 857966 S 164,109 $ 64,764 $ 1,086,839

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows June 30, 2010

Housing Cielo Region
Dev. Corp. Azul 11 Total

Net Cash Provided (used) by:
Operating Activities S (66,569) § 154,147 § 4,172 $ 91,750
Capital and Related Financing Activities - ~ - -
Non Capital Financing Activities 318,050  (330,162) (11,086) (43,198)
Investing Activities 18,404 4,733 1,747 24,884

Net Increase (decrease) 269,885 (191,282) (5,167) 73,436
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,060,778 330.684 382,984 2,774,446
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,330,663 S 139402 § 377,817 S 2,847,882

V. Otber information
A. Risk mapagement

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for
which the City carries various insurance. The City administers its insurance coverage
through the Risk Management Office. The Risk Management Fund, Santa Fe Health Fund,
Worker’s Compensation Fund, and Retiree Health Care Fund are reported as Internal Service
funds. Premiums are paid into the funds by all other funds and available to pay claims, claim
reserves, and administrative costs of the programs. The City purchases commercial
insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the funds and for other risks of loss.
The City has had no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the prior year and, as of
June 30, 2010; such inter-fund premiums did not exceed reimbursable expenditures.

The Risk Management Fund accounts for general liability, auto liability, public official errors
and omissions and law enforcement liability through independent conventional insurance
carriers. The City is self-insured for the first $100,000 per public official errors and
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omissions and the first $50,000 for general and auto liability claims and law enforcement
liability claims.

The Santa Fe Health Fund accounts for the self-insured program for employee health and
major medical benefits. Claims are handled by a professional third—party claims
administrator. The City maintains specific stop loss coverage for individual claims in excess
of $200,000 and aggregate coverage of cumulative claims in excess of 125% of expected
claims.

The Workers’ Compensation Fund accounts for the self—insured program and for worker’s
compensation coverage. Claims are handled by a professional, third—party claims
administrator. The City maintains specific stop loss coverage for individual claims in excess
of $350,000 with a $1,000,000 statutory limit.

The Retiree Health Care Fund accounts for the City’s employer and employee contributions
to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (NMRHCA). The Retiree Health Care
Authorty provides eligible retirees, their spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses and
dependents with health insurance. The City became a participating employer with the New
Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority on July 1, 2005. The City is required to contribute
1.3% of total payroll, and active employees contribute .65% of their salary. (Also see Note
E. Other post employment benefits)

Liabilities of the funds are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). The result of the process to estimate the claims
liability is not an exact amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation,
changes in legal doctrines, and damage award. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated
periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends (including
frequency and amount of pay—outs), and other economic and social factors. The estimate of
the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related
to specific claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated to
specific claims. Estimated recoveries, for example from salvage or subrogation, are another
component of the claims liability estimated. An excess coverage insurance policy covers
individual claims in various levels. Settlements have not exceeded coverages for each of the
past three fiscal years.

Union Sick Leave Bank accounts for donations of leave from union employees to support
otber union employees in need of leave.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows:
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Current Year
Beginning of Claims and
Fiscal Year Changes in Claims Balance at

Liability Estimates Payment Fiscal Year End

2008 - 2009
Risk Management Fund 3 2,862,219 § 838,394 § 1,227,378 § 2,473,235
Santa Fe Health Fund 1,114,633 10,998,806 11,225,012 888,427
Workers' Compensation Fund 2,244 335 1,539,606 900,422 2,883,519
) 6,221,187 § 13,376,806 $ 13,352,812 § 6,245,181

2006 -2010
Risk Management Fund $ 2,473,235 § 744785 § 1,061,575 § 2,156,445
Santa Fe Health Fund 888,427 12,008,250 12,447,417 449 260
Workers' Compensation Fund 2.883,519 2,005,451 1,059,293 3,829,677
Santa Fe Dental Fund - 563,272 561,272 -

$ 6,245,181 $§ 15321,758 § 14,568,285 § 6,435,382

B. Related party transaction

The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority assisted in the establishment of the non—profit entities
Casas de Buena Ventura and La Cienegita Elderly Housing Corporation. These entities
maintain separate Boards. However, there are certain Housing Authority employees who sit
on the Boards. The Housing Authority exercises no authority or control over these non—
profit organizations. In addition, the individual contracted to maintain the records for the
Housing Development Fund is related by marrage to the executive director. The contract
was awarded via competitive bid by the past executive director.

The Housing Authority performs all accounting and administrative functions for La
Cienegita Elderly Housing which was opened on October 18, 2000.

C. Contingent liabilities

The City receives significant financial assistance from federal and state sources in the form
of grants and entitlements. The disbursements of the funds received are generally limited to
specific compliance requirements as specified in the grant agreement. During the period
under audit, the City also had its grants audited under the audit requirements of the Office of
Management and Budgets Circular A—133 and the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. The Federal agencies reserve the right to review the scope of the audit and
conduct a follow—up review if deemed necessary. Any disallowed claims resulting from such
audits could become a liability of the general fund or any other applicable City fund. The
City, however, believes that liabilities resulting from disallowed claims, if any, would not
have a material effect on the City’s financial position at June 30, 2010.
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The City Attorney’s Office is involved in several legal actions arising from the ordinary
course of operations. With respect to these actions, the City Attormey’s Office believes the
outcomes will not have a material adverse effect on the City’s financial position.

The Housing Authority is involved in several legal actions arising from the ordinary course
of operations. With respect to these actions, their counsel believes the outcome will not have
a material adverse effect on the City’s financial position.

D. Jointly governed organizations

Under authorization of the New Mexico State Statute 11-1-1, the City of Santa Fe joined the
County of Santa Fe to jointly undertake their powers to dispose of solid waste as mandated
by State and Federal regulations and provide a more efficient and cost—effective method of
solid waste disposal to the City and County citizens. The Solid Waste Management Agency
was established February, 1995, as a public entity separate from the City or the County. The
Board of Directors for the joint venture consists of three members who are appointed by the
City’s mayor with the approval of the City Council and three members who are appointed by
the Board of County Commissioners. The Agency is charged to comply with all laws, rules,
and regulations of operations under the permit issued from the New Mexico Environmental
Department.

The Agency has its own financial statements as a separate entity, audited on an annual basis.
The City serves as the fiscal agent. Completed financial statements for the Agency may be
obtained at the Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency, 165 Caja Del Rio Road, Santa
Fe, NM 87502—- 6189.

Under a joint powers agreement for the Buckman Direct Diversion Project (BDD) dated
January 11, 20085, the City of Santa Fe joined the County of Santa Fe to design and construct
the BDD project in order to divert surface water from the Rio Grande River to the
independent water systems of the City and County. The City and County each own 50% of
the BDD project and have established a board to oversee the planning, procurement,
financing, permitting, design, construction, operations and management of the BDD project.
The BDD Board is comprised of two members of the governing body of the City of Santa Fe,
two members of the Board of Santa Fe County Commissioners and one citizen member at
large appointed by a majority vote of the four other members. The project is essentially
complete as of December, 2010. First water delivery was approved to enter the Santa Fe
region water systems as of January 2011 by the New Mexico Environment Department. The
City of Santa Fe and Santa Fe County are responsible on an ongoing basis for financial and
operating costs of the system. The City is a fiscal agent for the project through a project
management and fiscal services agreement in effect through December 20135. Fiscal services
include maintaining separate books and accounts of all transactions that relate to the project
including third party transactions. Total estimated costs of the project are $216.3 million.
The City’'s share of construction costs are included in amounts reported as construction in
progress in the City’s Water Management Fund and total $99,160,342 as of June 30, 2010.
The BDD project has its own financial statements and is audited on an annual basis.
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Completed financial statements for the BDD project may be obtained at the City of Santa
Fe’s Water Management Division, 801 West San Mateo Street, Santa Fe, NM 87505

E. Post-employment benefits- State Retiree Health Care Plan

Plan Description. The City contributes to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Fund, a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit post employment healthcare plan administered by
The New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA). The RHCA provides health care
insurance and prescription drug benefits to retired employees of participating New Mexico
government agencies, their spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents. The
RHCA Board was established by the Retirce Health Care Act (Chapter 10, Article 7C,
NMSA 1978). The Board is responsible for establishing and amending benefit provisions of
the healthcare plan and is also authorized to designate optional and/or voluntary benefits like
dental, vision, supplemental life insurance, and long-term policies.

Eligible retirees are: 1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years
prior to retirement and whose eligible employer during that period of time made
contributions as a participant in the RHCA plan on the person’s behalf unless that person
retires before the employer’s RHCA effective date, in which event the time period required
for employee and employer contributions shall become the period of time between the
employer’s effective date and the date of retirement ; or (2) retirees defined by the Act who
retired prior to July 1, 1990; 3) former legislators who served at least two years; and 4)
former governing authonty member who served at least four years..

The RHCA issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the post employment healthcare plan.
The report and further information can be obtained in writing to the Retiree Health Care
Authority at 4308 Carlisle Blvd. NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, NM 87107.

Funding Policy. The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-13 NMSA 1978) authorizes
the RHCA Board to establish the monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to
pay for healthcare benefits. Each participating retiree pays a monthly premium according to
a service based subsidy rate schedule for the medical plus basic life plan plus an additional
participation fee of five dollars if the eligible participant retired prior to the employer’s
RHCA effective date or is a former legislator or former governing authority member.
Former legislators and governing authority members are required to pay 100% of the
insurance premium to cover their claims and the administrative expenses of the plan. The
monthly premium rate schedule can be obtained from the RHCA or viewed on their website
at www.nmrhea.state.nm.us.

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-15 NMSA 1978) is the statutory authority that
establishes the required contributions of the participating employers and their employees.
The statute requires each participating employer to contribute 1.3% of each participating
employee’s annual salary; each participating employee is required to contribute .65% of their
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salary. In fiscal years ending June 30, 2011 through June 30, 2013 the contribution rates for
employees and employers will rise as follows

Fiscal vear Emplover Contribution Rate Emplovee Contribution Rate

FY11 1.666% 833%
FY12 1.834% 917%
FY13 2.000% 1.000%

Also employers joining the program after 1/1/98 are required to make a surplus-amount
contribution to the RHCA based on one of two formulas at agreed-upon intervals

The RHCA plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The employer, employee and retiree
contributions are required to be remitted to the RHCA on a monthly basis. The statutory
requirements for the contributions can be changed by the New Mexico State Legislature.

The City’s contributions to RHCA for the years ending June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were
$809,730, $821,765, and $757,684, equal to the required contribution.

F. Pension plan — Public Employers Retirement Association

Plan Description. Substantially all of the City’s full-time employees participate in a public
employee retirement system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter
10, Article 11 NMSA 1978). The Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) is the
administrator of the plan, which is a cost—sharing multi-employer defined benefit retirement
plan. The plan provides retirement, disability benefits, survivor benefits, and cost—of-living
adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
The report may be obtained by writing to PERA, P. O. Box 2123, Santa Fe, New Mexico
87504 —2123.

Funding Policy. State statutes require that plan members who are police officers contribute
16.30% of their gross salary, fire fighters contribute 16.20% and regular employees
contribute 13.15%. The City is required by state statute to contribute as follows:

1) 21.25% of fire fighters’ salaries, however, as an employee benefit, the City elected to
contribute 33.40% to the fire fighters’ 4.050% contribution.

2) 9.15% of regular employee salaries, however, as an employee benefit, the City elected
to adopt the 75% pick—up provision allowed by state statute thereby contributing
19.0125% to the regular employees’ 3.2875% contribution.

3)18.5% of police officer’s salaries, however, as an employee benefit, the City elected to
contribute 26.65% to the police officers’ 8.15% contribution.
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The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established in State statue
under Chapter 10 Article 11 NMSA 1978. The requirements may be amended by acts of the
legislature. The City’s contributions to PERA for the years ending June 30, 2010 2009,
2008, were $13,628,516, $13,456,692, $11,314,609, equal to the required contribution.

G. Counduit debt obligations

The City of Santa Fe has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to
private-sector and not-for-profit entities for the acqusition and construction of industrial,
commercial, educational, and health care facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The
bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received
from the entities involved. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City or the State, nor
any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2010, there were four series of Industrial Revenue Bonds
authorized and outstanding, of which two were issued prior to July 1, 1995. No new IRBs
were issued in FY 2009-2010.

The City has issued Mortgage Revenue bonds to enable the City to provide a program to
assist purchasers in qualifying for home ownership and provide lower mortgage interest
rates, Local banks and mortgagors participate in the program. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage
loans. Neither the City or the State, or any political subdivision, thereof is obligated in any
manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in
the accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2010, there were three series of Mortgage Revenue Bonds outstanding:
1995A, 1995B1 and 1995B2. The aggregate principal amount payable for these issues was
$30,500,000. The first series, Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds — FNMA and GNMA
Mortgage Backed Securities Program — Series 1995A — with an outstanding principal amount
payable of $1,700,000, is for the purpose of acquiring single pool guaranteed mortgage pass—
through securities guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association. Series 1995B1
and 1995B2, Single Family Mortgage with outstanding amounts payable of $775,000 and
$2,472,700 respectively, are for the purpose of financing a single family mortgage loan
program with the City.

H. Subsequent Events

As of January 1, 2011, an 8.2% water rate increase was implemented. This was the second
increase of five that began in March 2009. These increases are to finance the City’s ten-year
water plan, the largest component of which is the regional $200 million Buckman Direct
Diversion Water Project. Both the plan and the water rate will be re-evaluated regularly.
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The City of Santa Fe Water Division has taken out several additional loans with the New
Mexico Finance Authority for a variety of water projects. While some of these loans were
closed during FY 09-10, under the terms of the loans since no program funds were drawn to
reimburse costs prior to fiscal year end, they were not included in long term debt until FY
2010-2011.

a. On January 15, 2010, the City closed on a Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund
loan in the amount of $141,400 with a 2% interest rate including the administrative fee.
The loan will cover costs for adding a photovoltaic system to the Buckman Direct
Diversion treatment plant electrical system. (#SANTAFE21)

b. On Apnl 2, 2010, the City closed on a Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund
agreement in the amount of $161,807 with a 2% interest rate including the administrative
fee, maturing 6/1/2031. This is a regular drinking water loan to be used to cover the costs
of upgrades to the City’s water utility system including a micro-hydroelectric generation
project. #SANTAFE24)

c. On May 7, 2010, the City closed on a Water Trust Board grant/loan in the amount of
$1,324,460, consisting of a loan of $264,892 with a 0% interest rate and a .25%
administrative fee, and a grant of $1,059,568. These proceeds will be used for a
watershed management project. (#SANTAFEWPFS)

d. On June 4, 2010, the City closed on a Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund and
subsidy agreement in the amount of $§702,590 with a 1% interest rate including the
administrative fee, maturing 6/1/2040. The City will pay a loan of $210,777 and accept a
subsidy of $491,813. The loan will be used to further fund the micro-hydroelectric power
generation project. ($SANTAFE22)

e. On August 13, 2010, the City closed on a Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund
agreement in the amount of $250,000 with a 2% interest rate including the administrative
fee. Funds will be used for improved instrumentation of pumping sites to optimize energy
usage by the water utility system.(SANTAFEDW-3)

f. On May 6, 2011, the City closed on a Water Trust Board grant/loan in the amount of
$4,000,000 consisting of a loan of $800,000 with a 0% interest rate and a .25%
administrative fee, and a grant of $3,200,000. These proceeds will be used for partial
funding of the Buckman Direct Diversion Water Project. (#SANTAFEWPF6)

On August 30, 2010, the City exercised the optional redemption of the Single Family
Mortgage Revenue Bonds Series 1995A, Series 1995B-1 and Series 1995B-2. This action
redeemed the outstanding $1,700,000 of the 1995A bonds, $775,000 of the 1995B-1 bonds,
and $2,472,700 of the 1995B-2 bonds.
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On November 1, 2010, the City issued the 2010 General Obligation bonds, the second part of
the general obligation bonds approved in 2008 by the voters. This was a $10,300,000 issue
designated solely for parks.

On December 14, 2010, the City closed on both the 2010A Gross Receipts Tax Refunding
Revenue Bonds and 2010B Subordinate Lien Gross Receipts Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds.
The 2010A bonds, maturing 6/1/2015, were issued in the amount of $15,005,000 and
refunded the 2002 GRT bonds. The 2010A bonds, maturing in 6/1/2023, were issued in the
amount of $10,490,000 and refunded two New Mexico Finance Authority loans issued for
the railyard development.

The ongoing recession in both the general and local economy continues to adversely affect
the City’s gross receipts tax, lodger’s tax, interest earnings, and certain other revenue
categories during periods subsequent to June 30, 2010. City management continues to
respond by closely monitoring and adjusting the City’s budget, with project and policy
adjustments, and with regular review of future plans and budgets. During FY 10-11 the
City’s freezing of vacant positions and tightening of the budget allowed the avoidance of
layoffs, facility closures and cuts in service. The recently passed budget for FY 11-12
includes a vartety of revenue and expenditure budget controls and decision points that are
anticipated to allow the City to continue to avoid such disruptions. Current economic
conditions remain volatile, difficult to predict and subject to ongoing changes which may
affect the current financial condition and results of operations in the future.

I. New Pronouncements

In June of 2007 the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board issued statement number 51
which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. The objective of this statement
is to establish accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets and
reduce inconsistencies in the areas of recognition, initial measurement, and amortization,
thereby enhancing the comparability of the accounting and financial reporting of such assets
among state and local governments. The City adopted this statement for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2010. The effect of this statement was not matenial to the City’s financial statement
for the year ended June 30, 2010

In February of 2009 the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued statement number
54 which is effective for periods beginning after June 15th 2010. The objective of this
statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing
governmental fund type definitions. The City will adopt this statement for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2011. The City is considering the effects of these new standards on its financial
reporting for future periods.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditures for particular purposes.

Capital Equipment Reserve — to account for proceeds from the sale of City owned assets and for
transfers for contingent purposes. Council Directive

Franchise Fee — to account for proceeds from the franchise fee collected from Comcast.

Economic Development — to account for funds designated to promote business in Santa Fe.
Section 5-10-1 to 13 NMSA 1978

Lodgers’ Tax Fund - to account for taxes raised from the special Lodgers’ Tax per Ordinance
No. 1969-13 and 1987-45. Revenues are utilized for promotion of tourist development,
advertising and future improvements to the convention center. Section 3-38-13 to 24 NMSA
1978

Santa Fe Business Incubator — to account for New Mexico Severance Tax bond proceeds to be
utilized for promotion of economic development. Section 5-10-1 to 13 NMSA 1978

%% Gross Receipts Tax — to account for the City’s portion of gross receipts taxes collected by
the State of New Mexico per Ordinance no. 1981-45. These proceeds are used for various City
functions, including debt service. Section 7-19-10 to 1§ NMSA 1578

Animal Services — 1o account for revenues related to regulation and control of animal services.
Section 3-18-3 NMSA 1978

Emergency Service Grants — to account for grants from the State of New Mexico. The grants are
used to upgrade emergency medical services. Section 24-10A-1 to 9 NMSA 1978

Environmental Services — to account for grant monies received for the purpose of clearing wild
land areas within the City of Santa Fe to reduce fire danger. City Ord. 7-19D-10

Law Enforcement Grants — to account for grant funds and service charges received for the
purpose of developing public awareness on crime prevention, administering DWI programs and
public safety related expenditures. Section 29-13-1 to 9 NMSA 1978

City Drainage Projects — to account for expenditures related to federal drainage projects.

Impact Fee Fund/Projects — to account for the collection of arterial impact fees and signalization
impact fees collected by the City and the projects they fund. Section 5-8-4 NMSA 1978

Transportation Grants — 0 account for grant funds received through the State of New Mexico
for purposes of designing and implementing multi-modal transportation planning programs.
Section 3-52-14 NMSA 1978

Community Development Grants — to account for Federal and State grant awards. These funds
are used for various projects such as homebuyer’s assistance, emergency shelter for the homeless
and other community development projects. Section 3-60-26 NMSA 1978



Senior Citizen Grants — to account for Federa) and State grant funds used to operate programs
providing social services, in-home services, meals, transportation, and cornpanionship to senior
citizens. Section 28-4-1 NMSA 1978

Historic Preservation Grant — to account for funding received through the State of New Mexico
for the purpose of performing archaeological and historic surveys. Section 18-8-4 NMSA 1978

Library Fund — to account for a grant from the State of New Mexico for library developraent
pwposes. Section 18-2-5 NMSA 1978

NEA Grants — to account for grants from the National Endowment for the Arts Foundation
administered by the Santa Fe Arts Commission.

Plaza Use — to account for funds appropriated for planning the use of the Plaza area. This fund
was established by Resolution No. 1981-109.

Public Facilities Purchase Fund ~ to account for money donated by subdividers in lieu of land
contributions per Ordinance No. 1982-11. State law requires the contributions from subdividers
In order to enable the development of public facilities in new subdivisions.

Quality of Life Project — to account for a portion of gross receipts taxes collected by the State of
New Mexico per Ordinance 1993-40. The proceeds are used to fund projects in the areas of
recreation, open space acquisition, libraries and parks.

Recreation Grants — to account for 1) the portion of the cigarette tax received by the City and
required by State law to be used for recreation purposes and 2) a U.S. Department of Agriculture
grant used to provide tunches to children who are participants in the summer recreation program.
Sections 7-1-6.11A and 7-12-15 & 16 NMSA 1978

Land Development — to account for the sale and construction of affordable housing. Associated
with mortgage agreement.

Special Recreation Leagues — to account for the assets, investment earnings and operations of
various City sponsored recreation leagues.

Resource Conservatipn-to account for resources received through grant agreements associated
with energy efficiency programs

400" Anniversary- To account for activities associated with the commemoration of the City’s
400" year anniversary celebration



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Govarnmental Funds
June 30, 2010

Assets

Cash, investments and cash equivalents

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments:

Restricted for endowment
Receivables:
State-shared faxes
Grants
Interest
Other recsivables (net of allowances)
Other asssts

Total assets

Liabllitles and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Accrued wages payable
Due to other funds
Deferred uneamed revenue
Deposits and escrows
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities
Fund balances:
Ressrved for endowment
Reserved

Total fund balances

Total llabllities and fund balances

Special Capltal

Revenue Projects Totals
15,479,917 § 15,996,615 $ 31,476,532
250,000 - 250,000
2,190,471 137,659 2,328,130
2,306,529 3,881,990 6,188,519
55,722 44,507 100,229
2,735,556 - 2,735,556
- 8,429 9,429
23,018,195 § 20,070,200 $ 43,088,395
1,551,450 § 1,394,030 $ 2,946,389
627,137 169,240 796,377
664,505 365,330 1,029,835
2,776,910 308,173 3,175,083
590,178 135,000 725,178
- 78,220 78,220
6,210,189 2,540,893 8,751,082
250,000 - 250,000
16,558,006 17,529,307 34,087,313
16,808,006 17,529,307 34,337,313
23,018,195 § 20,070,200 $ 43,088,385
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Speclal Capital
Revenue Projects Totals
Revenues:
Taxes:
Gross receipts $ 12,361,324 §$ - 8 12,361,324
Cigarette 32,247 - 32,247
Motor - 1,368,077 1,368,077
Lodgers 7,238114 - 7.238,114
Property 2,299,088 - 2,299,988
Franchise 18,525 - 18,525
intergovernmental revenues 8,884,495 6,217,097 15,201,592
Fees and charges for services 2,418,155 - 2,418,155
Sale of capital assets 215,451 - 215,451
Rents, royafties and concessions 86,725 - 86,725
Investment income 141,960 125,438 267,398
Land sales - - -
Other revenues 383,710 159,565 543,275
Total revenues 34,181,694 7.870,177 42,051,871
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 5,538,535 1,006,075 8,544,610
Public safety 5,652,898 - 5,652,098
Public works 867.342 1,762,958 2,630,300
Community development 9,485,474 - 9,465474
Culture and recreation 3.358.319 850,690 4,208,009
Total current expenditures 24,882,668 3,819,723 28,502,321
Capital outlay:
General government 131,307 2,889,338 3,020,645
Public safety 1,850,016 - 1,850,016
Public works 268,548 7,609,400 7,877,946
Community development 297,382 553,006 850,388
Culture and recreation 327.232 6.552.132 6,879,364
Total capital oullay expenditures 2.874,483 17,803,876 20,478,358
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 6,424,543 {13,353.422) (6,928,879)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 8,514,343 3,590,428 13,104,771
Transfers out (18,443,992) (1,460,860) (19.804,852)
Total other financing sources (uses) (8,928,648) 2,128,568 (6,800,081)
Net change in fund bafances (2,505,106) (11,223,854) (13,728,860)
Fund balances, beginning of year 19,313,112 28,753,161 48,086,273
Fund balances, end of year $ 16,808,006 § 17,529,307 $ 34,337,313
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Comblining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Speclal Revenue
June 30, 2010

Assefs
Cash, Investments
and Taxes Grants Interest Other Due from Total
Cash Equivalents Recelvable Recelvable Receivable  Recelvables Other Funds Assets
Primary Government:

General Governiment:
Capital Equipment Reserve s 7631 § - 8 - 8 46 8 - % - 3 7,677
Franchise Fee - 4,832 - - - - 4,832
Economic Development 1,230,415 - 8,000 4,478 72210 - 1,315,103
Lodgers' Tax Fund 2,886,913 - 16,380 9,696 - - 2,812,989
400th Anniversary 154 - - - - - 154
Sanla Fe Business incubator 32,127 - - 116 - - 32,243
1/2 % Gross Recelpts Tax 309,505 1.846.970 - 385 - - 2,156.870
Total General Govegrament 4,486,745 1,851,802 24,380 14,731 72,210 - 6,429.868

Publlc Safety:
Animal Services 80,115 - - 335 - - $0,450
Emergency Service Grants 1,387,327 14,737 227,874 4,884 - - 1,634,822
Eavironmenial Services - - 63,382 - - - 63,382
Law Enforcement Grants 2,885,153 320,110 323,555 8.268 - - 3,547,086
Total Public Safety 4,372,595 334,847 614,811 13,487 - - 5,335,740
Publlc Works:
Resovurce Conservation - - 102,896 - - - 102,896
City Drainage Projecis 478,517 - - 1,735 146,486 - 626,738
Impaci Fee Projects 2,249,842 - - 8,219 - - 2,258,061
Transportation Grants 140,615 - 185,746 786 - - 337157
Total Public Works 2,868,974 - 298,642 10,750 146,486 - 3,324,852
Communlty Development:
Community Development Grants 443,245 - 496,833 3,328 - . 943,408
Senior Citizen Grants - - 821,253 - 4,034 - 825,287
Total Community Development 443,245 - 1,318,088 3,328 4,034 - 1,768,893
Culture and Recreation:

Historic Preservation Grant 104,319 - . 331 - - 104,650
Library 718,361 - 15,000 2436 - - 735,797
NEA Grants - - 21,957 - - - 21,957
Plaza Use 50,552 - - 184 - - 50,736
Public Facilities Purchase 54,877 - - 207 - - 55,084
Quality of Life Project 279,502 - - 1,235 - - 280,737
Recreation Grants 747,160 3,822 13,653 2,775 - - 767,410
Land Development 1.498,578 - - 5,787 2,512,826 - 4,017,191
Special Recreation Leagues 125,009 - - 471 - 125,480
Total Cullure angd Recreation 3.576.358 3.822 50.610 13.426 2.512.826 - 6,159,042
Totals - June 30, 2010 $ 15729917 § 2190471 $ 2306529 § 55,722 $ 2,735556 § - $  23.018,195
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Liabilities

Total

Accrued Defarred Total Liabliities

Accounts Wages Due to Uneamed Deposlits/ Total Fund and Fund

Payable Payable Other Funds Revenue Escrows Liabillties Balances Balances
$ 774 $ - $ - 3 - 8 - $ 774 3 6,803 $ 7877
- - 2,725 - - 2,725 2.107 4,832
64,699 4,023 - 74,775 397,468 540,965 774,139 1,315,104
499,276 64,350 ~ - 6,975 570,601 2,342,388 2,812,989
- - - - - - 154 154
- - - - - - 32,243 32.243
- - - - - - 2,156,869 2.156,9869
564,749 68,373 2,725 74,775 404,443 1,115,065 5,314,803 6,429,868
984 - - - 894 89,456 90,450
102,442 86,737 - - - 189,179 1,445,644 1,634,823
6,088 13,081 43239 - - 683.316 67 63,383
350,458 90,835 189,309 - 630,602 2,918,483 3,547,085
450,890 180,653 43,238 189,309 - 884,081 4,451,650 5,335,741
22,320 - 80,576 - - 102,896 - 102,896
19,608 25,309 - - - 45,008 581,729 826,737
2,106 - - - - 2,108 2,255,955 2,258,061
6,901 18,513 - - 25414 311,742 337.156
51,026 43,822 80,576 - - 175,424 3,149,425 3,324,850
218,735 6,926 - - 185,735 411,396 532,010 943,406
1.484 151,035 249,060 - 401,579 423.709 825,288
220219 157,961 249,060 - 185,735 812,975 855,719 1,768,694
405 - - - 405 104,245 104,850
28,660 32,327 . - - 60,987 674,810 735,797
13,551 - 8,905 - - 22,456 (499) 21,957
1,153 - - - - 1,153 49 583 50,736
- - - - - - 55,084 55,084
8,589 - - - - 8,599 272,138 280,737
163,193 134,001 - - - 297,194 470,216 767,410
37.200 - 280,000 2,512,826 - 2,830,026 1,187,165 4,017,191
1.814 - - - - 1,814 123,866 125,480
254,575 166,328 288,905 2,512,826 - 3,222,634 2,936,408 8,159,042
$ 1551459 $§ 827,137 § 864,505 § 2,776,910 § 580,178 $§ 6,210,189 $§ 16,808.008 $§ 23,018,195
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues
Inter- Fees and Rents, Sale of
Governmenta! Charges Royaslties and  Investment Capital Total
Taxes Revenus for Services Conceasions Income Assets/Land Other Revenue
Primary Government: o
General Government:
Capltal Equipment Reserve  § - 8 - 8 - S - 8 - $§ 27477 § - 8 27,477
Franchise Fee 19,525 - - - - - - 19,525
Economic Development 47433 17.635 - 86,725 10,688 - 111,753 274,234
Lodger's Tax Fund 7.238.114 167.388 1,135 - 33.268 - 64,786 7,504,711
400th Anniversary - 350.000 - - 54 - - 350,054
Santa Fe Business Incubalor - 2.387 - - 261 - - 2,648
1/2% Gross Receipts Tax 10,566,842 - - - 14,589 - - 10,581,431
Total General Government 17,871,914 537.420 1.135 88.725 58.860 27477 176.549 18,760,080
Public Safaty:
Animal Services - - 42,167 - 646 - - 42,813
Emergency Seavice Grants 1,149,984 682,785 - - 11,050 - - 1.853,829
Environmenta) Services - 63,383 - - - - - 63,383
Law Enforcement Granls 2,897,043 853,551 884.728 - 12.368 - 87,862 4,735,552
Total Public Safety 4,047,037 1,608,719 926.895 - 24,064 - 87,862 8,695,577
Public Works:
Reasource Consecvalion - 104,897 - - - - - 104,897
City Drainage Projects - - 581.363 - 3,329 - - 564,892
Impact Fee Projects - - 855.948 - 14,922 - - 670,870
Transportation Granls - 235,466 - - 2,117 - - 237,583
Total Public Works - 340,363 1,217,311 - 20,368 - - 1,578,042
Community Devetopment:
Community Development Gr: - 4,175,654 27,805 - 7,097 183,813 - 4,394,389
Sentor Citizen Grants - 2,108,164 110,100 - - 2,583 13,995 2,234,812
Total Community Developm - 6.283.818 137,905 - 7.097 186,386 13.995 6,629,181
Culture and Recreation:
Historic Preservation Grant - - 9,040 . 740 - - 9,780
Library - 94,132 1,794 . 8.053 - - 103,979
NEA Grants - 84,870 - . - - 9.642 94,512
Plaza Use - - 31,745 . 433 - 346 32,524
Public Facilies Purchase N - - - 473 - - 473
Quality of Life Project - - - - 2,266 1,608 - 3874
Recceation Grants 32,247 34,173 82,330 - 4,674 - 23,8906 187,230
Land Development - - - - 13,853 - - 13,853
Special Recreation Leaques - - - - 1,079 - 71510 72,589
Total Culture and Recreatlo 32,247 213175 134,909 - 31.571 1.608 105.304 518,814

Totals - June 30, 2010 $ 21,951,198 § 8,984,495 § 2,418,155 § 86,725 § 141,860 § 215451 § 383,710 $ 34,181,694




Expendltures Other Financing Sources (Uses) Fund Balance
— Excess
(Deficlency)
of Revenues
Capiltal Torel Over Transfers Transfers Net change In Beginning End
Current Outlay Expendlitures Expenditures In (Out) Fund Balances of Year of Year
$ 28869 $ 5537 $ 34408 § (6,929} & -8 - 8 (6,929) $ 13,832 3 6,903
11.768 - 11,766 7,759 - {13.334) (5.575) 7,682 2,107
1,120,876 523 1,129,399 (847,165) 315,273 {34,880) (566,772) 1,340,911 774139
4,027,124 122,861 4,149,985 3,354,728 94,560 (5,085,954) (1,636,668) 3,878,058 2,342,388
342,900 - 349,900 154 - - 154 - 154
- 2.386 2,386 262 - - 262 31,981 32,243
- - - 10,581.431 309,629 (11,714,826) {823,766) 2,980,635 2,156,869
5,538,535 131,307 5.669,842 13,090,238 719.462 (16,848,994) (3.039,294) 8,354,097 5,314,803
7.162 22,538 29,700 13,113 . - 13,113 76,343 88,458
2,288,329 791,927 3,080,248 (1,228,419) 1,327,066 (15,820) 84,827 1,360,817 1,445,644
83,407 - 63,407 (24) - - (24) N 67
3,284,108 1,035,551 4,329,659 405,893 1,168,962 (823.,815) 751,240 2,165,243 2,916,483
5.652,998 1,850.016 7,503,014 (807,437) 2,498,028 (839,435) 849,158 3,602,484 4,451,650
56,433 48,484 104,887 - - - - - -
364,745 - 364,745 199,847 197 - 200,144 381.585 581,729
81,586 164,495 246,081 424,789 250,000 (199,023) 475,788 4,780.189 2,255,955
364,578 55.587 420,185 (182,582) 53,005 - (129.577) 441,319 311,742
867.342 268,546 1,135,888 442,154 303.202 (199,023) 546,233 2,803,093 3,149,428
5,321,772 187,485 5,519,267 {1,124,898) 860,509 (17.500) (281,889) 813,899 532,010
4,143,702 92,887 4,243,589 (2,008,777) 1,977,685 - (31.112) 454,821 423,709
9,465,474 297,382 9,762,856 (3,133,675) 2,838,174 (12,500) (313,001) 1,268,720 955,719
450 - 450 8,330 - 8,330 094,915 104,245
1,015,581 30,268 1,045,849 (841,870) 935,748 - (6.124) 680,934 674,810
132,747 - 132,747 (38,2395) 39,300 - 1.065 (1.564) (499)
23.160 23,160 9,384 - - 9,364 40,219 48,583
- - - 473 - - 473 54,811 55,084
180,782 15,340 196,122 (192,248) 685,689 (531,040) {37,599) 308,737 272438
1,686,132 1,624 1,697,756 (1.510,526) 1,486,742 - (13,784) 484,000 470,216
253,590 280,000 533,590 (519.737) - - (519.737) 1,706,902 1,187,165
55,877 - 55,877 16,712 - {8,000) 8,712 114,954 123,666
3,358,319 327.232 3.685,551 (3,166,737) 3.157.477 (539,040) (548,300) 3,484,708 2.936.408
$24,892,668 $ 2,874,483 $ 27,757,151 % 6,424,543 § 9,514,343 § (18,443,992) § (2,505,108) $ 19,313,112 $ 16,808,006
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Ravenue
Capital Equipment Reserve
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budgat-
Posltive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
(nvestment income $ 5336 $ - 8 - 3
Total revenues 5,338 - - -
Expendituras:
General government:
Current 30,325 32,835 28,869 3,966
Capital outlay 22,849 24,343 5,537 18.806
Total expenditures 53,174 57.178 34,406 22,772
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (47,838) (57,178) (34,406) 22,772
Other financing sources (uses).
Sale of capital assets - - 27,477 27,477
Total ather financing
sources (uses) - - 27,477 27,477
Net change in fund balance (47,838) (57.178) (8,928) 50,249
Fund balance, beginning of year 13,832 13,832 13.832 -
Fund balance, end of year $ (34,006) $ (43,346) $ 6,903 $ 50,249




CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Revenue
Franchise Fee
For the Year Endad June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Pasitive
Orlginal Flnal Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 20,000 $ 20,000 §$ 19,6258 § (475)
Total revenues 20,000 20,000 19.525 (475)
Expanditures:
Public safety:

Cuirent 13,333 13,333 11,766 1.567
Total expenditures 13,333 13,333 11,768 1,567
Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over expenditures 6.667 6.667 7,759 1,092
Other financing sourcss (uses).
Transfers out (6,867) (13,334) (13,334) -

Total other financing
sources (Uses) {6,667} (13,334) (13,334) -

Net changes in fund balance 13,334 (6,667) (5,575) 1,092
Fund balance, beginning of year 7,682 7,682 7,682 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 21,016 $ 1,015 § 2,107 $ 1,092
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Revenue
Economic Development
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ - $ 47433 § 47,433 § -
Intergovernmental 9,500 9,500 17,635 8,135
Investment income 31,128 10,678 10,688 10
Rents, royalties and concessions 93,000 93,000 86,725 (6.275)
Other - - 111,753 111,753
Total revenues 133,628 160,611 274,234 113,623
Expenditures:
General government:
Current 531,024 1.489,217 1,120,876 368,341
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 523 4,477
Total expenditures 536,024 1,494,217 4,121,399 372,818
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (402,396) (1,333,606) (B47,165) 486,441
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 315,273 315,273 315,273
Transfers out (67,485) (34.880) (34,880)
Total other financing
sources (uses) 247,778 280,393 280,393 -
Net change in fund balance (154,618) (1,053,213) (566,772) 486,441
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,340,911 1,340,911 1,340,911 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,186,293 § 287,698 $ 774,139 § 486,441
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Schadule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenus
Lodger's Tax Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Fees and charges for service
Investment incoms
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General govemment:
Current
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over axpenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing

sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, and of year

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budgat-
Positlve

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 8003533 $ 7,299,050 $ 7,238,114 ¢ (60,936)
23,096 168,511 167,398 (1,113)
500 500 1,135 635
67,592 54,342 33,268 (21,074)
65,000 65,000 64,796 (204)
8,249,721 7,587,403 7,504,711 (82,692)
3,680,084 4,836,947 4,027,124 809,823
550 122,765 122,861 (96)
3,680,634 4,959,712 4,149,985 809,727
4,569,087 2,627,691 3,354,726 727,035
739,949 94,560 94,560 -
(6,849.962) (5.085,954) (5,085,954) -
(6,110,013) (4,981,384) (4,991,394) -
(1,540,926) (2,363,703) (1,636,668) 727,035
3,979,056 3,879,056 3,979,056 -
) $ 2438130 $ 1,615353 § 2,342,388 $ 727,035
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
400th Anniversary
For the Year Endad June 30, 2010

Revanueas:
Intergovernmental
Investment income

Total revenues
Expenditures:
General government:
Current
Totat expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Poslitlve
Original Flnal Actual (Negative)

$ - 8 350,000 § 350,000 $ -
- - 54 54

- 350,000 350,054 54

- 350,000 349,500 100

- 350,000 348,900 100

revenues over expenditures - - 154 154

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers ouwt

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance - - 154 154

Fund balance, beginning of year - - - -

Fund balance, end of year
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expanditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Ravenue
Santa Fae Business Incubator
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgetad Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovermmental $ - $ 2387 § 2,387 § -
Investment [ncome 551 551 261 (290)
Total revenues 651 2,938 2,648 (290)
Expenditures:
General govemment:
Capital outlay - 2,387 2,386 1
Total expenditures - 2.387 2,386 1
Net change in fund balance 551 5§51 282 289
Fund balance, beginning of year 31,981 31,981 31,981 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 32,532 $ 32532 § 32,243 § 289
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Revenue
1/12% Gross Recelpts Tax
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budgst-
Posltive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:

Taxes $ 11,047,319 $ 10,326,359 § 10,566,842 § 240,483

Investment income 48,826 9,845 14,589 4,744

Total revenues 11,096,145 10,336,204 10,581,431 245,227

Expenditures:

General government:

Current - - - -
Total expenditures - - - N
Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over expenditures 11,096,145 10,336,204 10,581,431 245,227
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in - 309,629 309,629 -
Transfers out (11.992,542)  (11,714,826) (11,714,826) -
Total other financing
sources (uses) (11,992,542)  (11,405,197)  (11,405,197) -
Net changes in fund balance (896,397) (1,068,993) (823,766) 245,227
fund balance, beginning of year 2,980,835 2,980,635 2,980,635 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2084238 $ 1911642 § 2,156,868 § 245,227

80



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
Animal Sarvices
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Original Flnal Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Licenses and permits $ 18,500 $ 21,000 § 20897 § (103)
Investment income 890 890 646 (244)
Fines and forfeitures 23,000 23,000 21,270 (1,730)
Total revenues 42,390 44,890 42,813 (2,077)
Expenditures:
General government:
Current 26,000 26,000 7,162 18,838
Capital outlay 28,000 50,358 22,538 27,820
Total expenditures 54,000 76,358 29,700 46,658
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expanditures (11,610) (31,468) 13,113 44,581
Net change in fund balance (11,610) (31,468) 13,113 44,584
Fund balance, beginning of year 76,343 76,343 76,343 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 64,733 $ 44875 $ 89,456 § 44,581
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changas In Fund Balance - Budgst and Actual
Speclal Revenue
Emergency Service Grants

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Public safety:
Cuirent
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenuss over expendifures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources (Uses)

Net changes in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance With
Budgetad Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual (Negative)
$ 2178960 & 1,080,480 $ 1,149,994 § 60,514
498,847 867,097 692,785 (174,312)
25,951 25,951 11,050 (14,201)
2,703,758 1,982,528 1,853,829 (128,899)
1,048,572 2,403,184 2,288,321 114,863
762,926 1,026,857 791,927 234,930
2,712,498 3,430,041 3,080,248 340,793
(8,740) (1,447,513) (1,226,419) 221,094
2,218,653 1,327,066 1,327,066 -
(2,339,186) (15,820) (15,820)
(120,533) 1,311,246 1,311,248 -
(129,273) (136,267) 84,827 221,004
1,360,817 1,360,817 1,360,817 -
$ 1,231,544 § 1,224,550 § 1,44554 % 221,094
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Revenue
Environmental Services
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual (Negatlve)
Revenues:
Intergovemmentat $ - 8 149,438 § 63,383 § (86,055)
Total revenues - 149,438 63,383 (86.055)
Expenditures:
Culture and recreation:
Current - 149,438 63,407 86,031
Total expenditures - 149,438 63,407 86,031
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - - (24) (24)
Net change in fund balance - - (24) (24)
Fund balance, beginning of year 91 91 91 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 91 § 91 $ 67 § (24)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
Law Enforcemnent Grants
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Origlinal Final Actual [Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 1,826,356 2,796,836 $ 2,897,043 § 100,207
Intergovernmental 317,600 2,606,265 853,551 (1,.752,714)
Fees and charges for services 478,855 480,355 519,721 39,366
Investment income 20,099 20,099 12,368 (7,731)
Fines and forfeitures 13,482 466,932 365,007 (101,925)
Other 64,000 87,310 87,862 562
Total revenuaes 2,720,392 6,457,797 4,735,552 (1,722,245)
Expenditures:
Public safety:
Current 2,758,940 5,072,724 3,294,108 1,778,616
Capital outtay 1,515,583 1,822,453 1,035,551 786,902
Total expenditures 4,274,533 6,895,177 4,329,659 2,565,518
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (1,554,141) (437,380) 405,893 843,273
Other financing sourcas (uses):
Transfers in 2,225,020 1,168,962 1,168,962 -
Transfers out (466,000) (823,615) (823,615) -
Total other financing
sources (uUses) 1,759,020 345,347 345,347 -
Net change in fund balance 204,879 (82,033) 751,240 843,273
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,165,243 2,165,243 2,165,243 -
Fund balance, end of year $§ 2370122 ¢ 2073210 $§ 2,916,483 3§ 843,273




CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changas In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revanue
Resource Conservation
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Origlnal Flnal Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $§ 1281600 $ 1281600 $ 104,897 $ (1,176,703)
Total revenues 1,281,600 1,281,600 104,897 (1,176,703)
Expenditures:
Public safety:
Cuirent 667,600 667,600 56,433 611,167
Capital Outlay 614,000 614,000 48,464 566,536
Total expenditures 1,281,600 1,281,600 104,897 1,176,703
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expanditures - - - -
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - - - -
Net changes in fund balance - - - -
Fund balancs, beginning of year - - - .
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - 8 - 8 -

8s



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changas In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
City Drainage Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Origlinal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
fees and charges for services $ 459,000 $ 481,000 $ 561,363 § 80,363
Investment income 4,002 4,002 3.329 (673)
Total revenues 463,002 485,002 564,692 79,690
Expenditures:
Community welfare:
Current 370,547 551,678 364,745 186,934
Capital outlay 500 500 - 500
Total expenditures 371,047 562,179 364,745 187,434
Excess (deficiency) of
revenuas over expenditures 91,055 (67,177) 199,947 267,124
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 197 197 197 -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 197 197 197 -
Net change in fund balance 92,152 (66,980) 200,144 267,124
fund balance, beginning of year 381,585 381,585 381,585 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 473,737 § 314605 § 581,729 § 267,124
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expendltures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
Impact Fee Projects
For the Year Endad June 30, 2010

Varianca with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:

Fees and charges for services - 5 657,000 655,848 § (1,052)

investment income 48,826 35,693 14,922 (20,771)

Total revenues 48,826 692,693 670,870 (21.823)

Expenditures:

Culture and recreation:

Cumrent 85,000 243,744 81,586 162,158
Capital Outlay - 164,485 164,495 -
Total expenditures 85,000 408,239 246,081 162,158
Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over expenditures (36,174) 284,454 424,789 140,335
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 250,000 250,000 -
Operating transfers (out) - (179,291) {199,023) {19,732)
Total other financing
sources (uses) - 70,709 50,977 (19,732)
Net change in fund balance (36,174) 355,163 475,766 120,603
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,780,189 1,780,189 1,780,188
Fund balance, end of year 1,744015 $ 2135352 $§ 2,255955 § 120,603
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Revenue
Transportation Grants
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgetad Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 3 251,255 § 423,762 § 235,466 § (188,298)
Investment Income 3,557 3,557 2,117 {1,440)
Total revenues 254,812 427,319 237,583 (189,738)
Expenditures:
Public Works
Cuirent 355,974 578,849 364,578 214,271
Capital Outlay 600 215,481 55,587 159,894
Total expenditures 356.574 794,330 420,165 374,165
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (101,762) (367,011) (182,582) 184,428
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 54,197 §3,005 53,005 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 54,187 53,005 53,005 -
Net change in fund balance (47,585) {314,006) (129,577) 184,429
Fund balance, beginning of year 441,319 441,319 441,319 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 393,754 $ 127,313 § 311,742 § 184,429
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Revenue
Community Development Grants
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual __(Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 5247840 $ 46528647 $ 4175654 $ (476,993)
Fees and charges for services - 28,000 27,805 (195)
Investment income 12,451 12,451 7,097 (5,354)
Total revenues 5,260,291 4,693,098 4,210,556 (482,542)
Expenditures:
Community welfare:
Current 4,462,154 6,721,426 5,321,772 1,399,654
Capital outlay 4,440 197,412 197.495 (83)
Total expenditures 4,466,594 6,918,838 5,519,267 1,399,571
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 793,697 (2,225,740) (1,308,711) 917,029
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of Capital Assets - 184,000 183,813 (187)
Transfers in 695,509 860,509 860,509 -
Transfers out - (17,500) (17,500) -
Total other financing
sourcas (uses) 695,509 1,027,009 1,026,822 (187)
Net changes in fund balance 1,489,206 (1,198,731) (281,889) 916,842
Fund balance, beginning of year 813,899 813,899 813,899 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,303,105 $ (384,832) § §32,010 § 916,842
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXI|CO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
Senlor Citizen Grants
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With

Budgetsed Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 2060470 $ 2,366,577 § 2,108,164 3 (258.413)
Fees and charges for services - - 110,100 110,100
Other 130,445 133,445 13,995 (119,450)
Total revenues 2,190,815 2,500,022 2,232,259 (287,763)
Expendltures:
Community welfare:
Current 4,272,895 4,372,606 4,143,702 228,904
Capital outlay 28,739 149,806 99,887 49,719
Total expenditures 4,301,634 4,522,212 4,243,589 278,623
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (2,110,719) (2,022.190) (2,011,330) 10,860
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assetls - 2,500 2,553 53
Transfers in 2,181,665 1.977,665 1,977,665 -
Total other financing
sources (Uses) 2,181,665 1,980,165 1,980,218 53
Net change in fund balance 70,946 (42,025) (31,112) 10,813
Fund balance, beginning of year 454,821 454,821 454 8219 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 525767 $ 412796 §$ 423,709 $ 10,913
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEX|CO
Schedule of Ravenues, Expendltures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revanue
Historic Preservation Grant
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Revenues:

Fees and charges for services $ - % 9.000 % 9,040 § 40
Intergovernmental - - - -
Investment income 1,245 1,245 740 (505)

Total revenues 1,245 10,245 9,780 (465)
Expenditures:

Culture and recreation:

Current - 50 450 (400)
Total expenditures - 50 450 (400)
Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over expenditures 1,245 10,195 9,330 (865)

Net change in fund balance 1,245 10,195 9,330 (865)
Fund balance, beginning of year 94,915 94,915 94,915 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 96,160 $§ 105,110 $ 104,245 $ (865)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expendltures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Revenue
Library
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual (Negative)
Revanues:
Intergovernmental $ -9 94,133 $ 94,132 § (1)
Investment income 7.649 7.649 8,053 404
Fines and forfeitures 1,000 1,800 1,794 (6)
Other - - . -
Total revenves 8,648 103,582 103,979 397
Expenditures:
Culture and recreation:
Current 936,260 1,038,758 1,015,581 24,178
Capital outlay 3,429 31,831 30,268 1,563
Total expenditures 930,689 1,071,580 1,045,849 25,741
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (931,040) (968,008) (941,870) 26,138
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 935,746 935,746 935,746 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 935,746 935,746 935,746 -
Net change in fund balance 4,706 (32,262) (6,124) 26,138
Fund balance, beginning of year 680,934 680,934 680,934 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 685,640 $ 648,672 § 674,810 $ 26,138
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
NEA Grants
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Orlginal Finai Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 315,000 $ 65,000 $ 84,870 $ 19,870
Other 36,700 38,700 9.642 (27,058)
Total revenues 351,700 101,700 94,512 (7.188)
Expenditures:
Public safety:
Current 326,000 144,848 132,747 12,101
Total expenditures 326,000 144,848 132,747 12,101
Excass (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 25,700 (43,148) (38,235) 4,913
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 24,300 39,300 39,300 -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 24,300 38,300 39,300 -
Net change in fund batance 50,000 (3,848) 1,065 4,913
Fund balance, beginning of year (1,564) (1,564) (1,564)
Fund balance, eand of year $ 48,436 $ (5,412) $ (499) § 4,913
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Statement of Revanues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Speclal Revenue
Plaza Use
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
OrigInal Final Actual {Negative)
Revenues:
Investment income $ 320 $ 320 § 433 % 113
Fines and forfeitures - 32,000 31,745 (255)
Other 5,000 5,000 346 (4.654)
Total revenues 5,320 37,320 32,524 (4,796)
Expenditures:
Culture and recreation:
Current 5,000 30,000 23,160 6,840
Total expenditures 5,000 30,000 23,160 6.840
Net change in fund balance 320 7,320 9,364 2,044
Fund balance, beginning of year 40,219 40,219 40,219 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 40,539 § 47,539 $ 49,583 $ 2,044
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEX|CO
Schedule of Revenues, Expendltures
and Changes In Fund Balanca - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
Public Facllitles Purchase
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 20,000 § - 8 - -
Investment income 889 889 473 (416)
Total revenues 20,889 889 473 (416)
Expenditures:
Culture and recreation:
Current 20,000 - -
Total expenditures 20,000 - - -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 889 889 473 (416)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance 889 88¢ 473 (416)
Fund balance, beginning of year 54,611 54,611 54,611 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 55500 § 55,500 $ 55,084 (416)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
Quality of Life Project
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Investment income $ 71415 § 7415 $ 2,266 $ (4,849)
Totat revenues 7,115 7,115 2.266 (4,849)
Expenditures:
Culture and recreation:
Current 224,667 301,664 180,782 120,882
Capital outlay - 17,705 15,340 2,365
Total expenditures 224,667 319,369 196,122 123,247
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (217,552) (312,254) (193,856) 118,398
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of Capital Assets - 1,800 1,608 8
Transters in 733,592 685,689 685,689 -
Transfers out (516,040) (531,040) (531,040) -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 217,552 156,249 156,257 8
Net change in fund balance - (156,005) (37,599) 118,408
Fund balance, beginning of year 309,737 308,737 309,737 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 309,737 $§ 153,732 § 272,138 § 118,406
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue
Recreation Grants
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 45,000 § 45000 $ 32,247 § (12,753)
Intergovemmental - 35,000 34,173 (827)
Fees and charges for services 100,000 100,000 92,330 (7.670)
Investment income 16,898 16.898 4,674 (12,224)
Other - 23,806 23,806 -
Total revenues 161,898 220,704 187,230 (33,474)
Expendltures:
Culture and recreation:
Current 1,764,499 1,818,688 1,696,132 122,556
Capital outlay - 2,700 1,624 1.076
Total expenditures 1,764,489 1,821,388 1,697,756 123,632
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (1,802,601) (1.600,684) (1,510,528) 90,158
Other financing sources (Uses):
Transfers in 1,556,658 1,496,742 1,496,742 -
Operating transfers out - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 1,558,858 1,496,742 1,496,742 -
Net change in fund balance (45,943) (103,942) (13,784) 90,158
Fund balance, beginning of year 484,000 484,000 484,000 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 438,057 $ 380,058 $ 470,218 $ 90,158

107



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Spaclal Revenue
Land Development
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negatlve)
Revenues:
Investment income 3 30,505 $ 14,110 $ 13,853 § (257)
Total revenues 30,505 14,110 13,853 (257)
Expenditures:
Culture and recreation:
Current - 253,590 253,590 -
Capital outlay - 280,000 280,000 -
Total expenditures - 533,590 533,590 -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 30,505 (519,480) (519,737) {(257)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 280,000 - (280,000)
Total other financing
sources (uses) - 280,000 - (280,000)
Net change in fund balance 30,508 (239,480) (519,737) (280,257)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,706,902 1,706,902 1,706,902 -
Fund balance, end of yaar $ 1,737,407 $ 1467422 § 1,187,165 $ (280,257)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expendltures
and Changes In Fund Balanca - Budget and Actual
Speacial Revenue
Special Recreation Leagues
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues
Donations ang support
Investment income
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Culture and recreation:

Current
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Varlance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Poslitive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 81,000 $§ 81,000 § 71,510 § (9,490)
1,779 1,778 1,079 (700)
82,779 82,778 72,589 (10,190)
92,815 92,815 55,877 36,938
92,815 92,815 55,877 36,938
(10,036) (10,0386) 16,712 26,748
- (8.000) 8,000
- - (8.000) 8.000
(10,036) (10,0386) 8,712 26,748
Fund balance, beginning of year 114,954 114,954 114,954 -
$ 104,818 $ 104,918 $ 123,666 $ 18,748

Fund balance, end of year
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital projects other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Reallocation — to account for accumulating interest
camings, savings on CIP and subsidiary transfers from the General Fund to be used for
other capital improvement projects as approved by the City Council.

Resource Conservation — to account for the installation of energy saving equipment at
various City buildings.

Building Renovations — to account for renovations to various City buildings.

Beautification of Major Arterials — to account for the beautification of medians on
Cemillos Road, St. Francis Drive and Paseo de Perelta.

Bond Acquisition — to account for the proceeds of the City Gross Receipts Tax Revenues
Bond issues designated to fund various capital improvement projects including

wastewater system improvements and landfill construction and closure.

City Drainage Projects — to account for the design and construction of erosion control for
various City drainage and niver embankment projects.

Landfill Projects — to account for the Ortiz landfill improvements.

City Paving Projects — to account for paving and repaving improvements to existing City
streets.

Santa Fe River Channel — to account for improvements to the Santa Fe River.
City Signalization Projects — to account for the installation of traffic signals.

City Street Construction Projects — to account for the design of street construction
projects.

City Sidewalk Projects — to account for the design and construction of various sidewalks.



Zia Road Street Lighting — to account for the design of street lighting on Zia Road.
Public Care Facilities — to account for the construction or renovation of City buildings to
be used for the needs of the community such as La Familia Medical Center, Child Care
Facility and Monica Roybal Center.

Art for CIP — to account for the financing of art in public places.

Affordable Housing Program — to account for Federal and State grants used to provide
affordable housing programs.

Museums — to account for improvements to the Camino Lejo and El Museo museums.

City Parks Improvements — to account for improvements to existing City parks as well as
construction of future parks.

Open Space Acquisition — to account for the design and construction of an open space
master plan and the Talaya Wilderness Trail.

Library Improvements — to account for the design and renovation of the City’s libraries.

Special Projects- to account for the cost of the City’s web-based financial system.

Major Governmental Funds
Capital Projects Funds

%% Gross Receipts Tax — to account for the City’s portion of gross receipts taxes
collected by the State of New Mexico per Ordinance no. 1981-45.



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nommajor Governmental Funds
Capltal Projects
June 30, 2010

Assets
Cash, Investrments
and Other Tax Grants loterest Total
Cash Equlivaients Assats Recsivable Recsivable Receivable Assets
Ganeral Government:
CIP Reallocafion 3 316,436 S - 8 - 8 - 3 42,894 359,330
Resource Conservation 20,2684 - - - - 20,284
Buifding Renovations 1,286,511 9,429 - 247,500 1,543,440
Special Projects . - - - -
Total General Gavernment 1,823,211 9.428 247,500 42,894 1,923,034
Public Works:
Beautii. of Mafor Arterigls - - - -
Bond Acqulsiticn 79,494 - - - 79,494
Clty Dralnaqe Projecis 2,996 - 20,981 - 23,977
Landfill Projects 46,704 - - - - 48,704
Clty Paving Prolecis 2,047.765 - 137,659 184,072 1,613 2,381,108
Santa Fe River Channel 73,487 - - - - 73.487
City Signalization Projects 367,899 . 387,899
Clty Street Const. Projects 2,871,109 - 7.064 - 2,878,173
City Sidewalk Projects 385,532 - - 385,532
Zia Road Street Lighting 237,827 - - 237 827
Total Public Works 6,092,813 - 137,659 222317 1,613 8,454,202
Community Development:
Affordable Housing Program 288,522 - - - 288,522
Public Care Facliities 116,755 - - - - 118,755
Total Community Devefopment 405,277 - - 405,277
Culture and Recreation:
Ant for CIP Projects 426,425 - 426,425
Museums 1,624 - - - 1,824
City Parks Improvements 6,916,083 - 2,888,836 - 9,605,919
Open Space Acquisition 478,102 - 722,537 - 1,200,839
Librery improvemnents 53,080 - - . - 53,080
Tota) Cuiture and Recreation 7,875,314 - 3,412,373 - 11,287,687
Totals - June 30, 2010 $ 15,006,615 § 9,428 § 137,659 § 3,801,990 § 44,507 20,070,200

110



Llabliities

Total

Accured Total Liabilities

Accounts Woges Dus to Daferred Deposits! Other Totad Fund and Fund

Payabls Payable Other Funds Revenue Escrows Llabilitles Lliabliitles Balances Balances
S - 3 - 8 - $ - $ - & 78220 78220 § 281,110 S 359,330
- - - - - $ 20,264 20.264
5,218 7.310 - - - 12,528 1,530,912 1,543,440
111,421 - 366,330 - 478,751 (476,75) -
116,639 7.310 366,330 - - 78,220 567.499 1,355,535 1,923,034
- - - - - - 79,484 79494
. - - - - - 23,977 23,977
. . . - - - - 46,704 46,704
484,936 56,594 - - - - 541,530 1,839,579 2,381,109
- - - - - - . 73,487 73,487
40,702 1,422 - . - - 42,124 325,775 367,899
285,243 18,348 - - 100,000 - 404,681 2,473,582 2,878,173
- 3,220 - - - - 3,220 362,312 365,532
- 2,956 - - - - 2,858 234,871 237,827
810,881 83.540 - - 100,000 - 994,421 5.459,781 6,454,202
41,465 - - - - - 41,465 247,057 288,522
- - - - - - 116,755 116,765
41,465 - - - - - 41,465 383,812 405,277
540 1,422 - - - - 1,962 424,463 426,425
- - - . - - - 1,624 1,624
303,112 75.447 - - - - 378,559 9,227,360 9,605,919
120,029 1,524 - 398,173 - - 519,723 680,916 1,200,639
2,264 - - - 35,000 - 37,284 15,818 53,080
425945 78,380 - 388,173 35,000 - §837.508 10,350,17¢ 11.287.687
$ 1,394,530 $ 169,240 § 365,330 398,173 § 135000 § 78,220 § 2,540,893 § 17,528,307 § 20,070,200




CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Combining Statemant of Revenues, Expendltures
and Changes In Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Capltal Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues Expendltures
Intergov- Investment Cthor Total Capital
Taxes emmental Income Revenues Revenues Gurram Outlay
General Government.
CIP Reallocation S - - 8 121,592 S N 121,592 § 88,191 S -
Resource Conservghon - - . - - 126,250 11,838
Building Renovalions - 283,445 . 36 283.482 238,271 2414218
Special Projects - - - - 555,363 483,281
Total General Governmem - 283,446 121,592 36 405,074 1,008,075 2,888,333
Public Works:
Beawilf. of Major Artenals - 132,313 - 132,313 - 132,913
Bond Acquisition - . - R . .
Clty Orainage Praojects - 23,758 - 23,758 94,819
Landilll Projects - . - - . -
City Paving Projects 1,368,077 271,847 3,846 - 1,643,770 1,430,010 2,452,782
Santg Fe River Channet - 2,925 - - 2,525 . 18,538
City Sigaaslization Progects - 21.903 - - 21903 33,983 338,430
Clty Siree{ Consl. Projects - 3175877 . 158,029 3,333,908 11,479 4,466,724
Clity Sldewalk Projects - 50,000 - - 50,000 217,474 109,684
Zia Road Streed Lighting - - - - - 20,015 .
Total Public Works 1.368,077 3.678,223 3.848 158,029 5.20B,175 1.762,958 7,609,400
Community Developmeant:
Affordable Houzing Program . . - - - - 450,605
Public Care Facilities 82.401 - - 92.401 - 92,401
Tolal Community Development B 42,401 - - 92,401 - 553,006
Culture and Recreatfon:
An for CIP Projecis - - - 1,500 1,500 185,954 -
Museumns - 18,490 - - 18,490 . 18,480
City Parks Improvements - 1,148,244 - - 1,149,244 6€4.080 5,333,808
Open Space Aoguisition - 985,293 - - 995,293 - 1,169,000
Library Improvements - - - - . 858 30,834
Total Cukture and Reereation - 2,183,027 - 1.500 2,164,627 850.680 §,652.132
Totals - June 30, 2010 s 1,388,077 6,217,097 $ 126,438 ¢ 159,565 $ 7870177 § 3,619,723 § 17,603,876
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Qther Financing Sources (Uses)

fund Balances

Excess
(Deficlency) Net Changes
Total of Revenves Over Transfers Transfers in Beglinning End
Expenditures Expenditures In {Out) Fund Salances of year of Year
86,991 § 35401 % 1§ (160,000} $ (64.598) 245708 3% 281,110
138,088 (138,088} - (6.661) (144,749} 185013 % 20,264
2,652,490 (2.369,008) 164,283 (345.163) (2,519,608} 4,080,720 1,530,912
1,018,644 (1.018,644) 582,033 - {438,611} (40,140) {476,751)
3,895,413 (3.480,339) 776,387 (451,824) (3,165.786) 4,621,301 1,355,535
132,313 - ) ] L -
. . . . . 79,494 78,484
94,919 (71.161) - (1,849) {73.010) 88,967 23,977
- - . - - 46,704 48,704
3.932,792 (2,289,022) 159,366 (108,880) (2,238,538) 4,078,115 1,838,579
16,538 (14.013) - - (14,013) 87,500 73,487
370,413 (348.510) 87,772 (17,089) (277.7498) 603,573 325,775
4,478,203 (1,144,297} 28,601 (463,128) (1.508.524) 3,982,106 2,473,582
327,165 (277.185) 4.872 - (272.293) 534,605 362,312
20,015 {20,015) 200,000 - 179,985 54,886 23487
9,372,358 (4,164,183) 550,911 (590.218) (4,204.180) 9,663,971 5,459,784
480,606 (460,805) - . (460.805) 707.662 247,057
92,401 . . - - 116,755 146.755
353,006 (460,605) - {460,605) 824,417 383,812
185,954 (184,454) 36,492 (147,962) 572,426 424,463
18,480 - . - - 1,624 1,624
6,997,888 (4,848.644) 2,201,628 (410,118) (3.057.134) 12,284,484 9,227,360
1,169,090 (173.707) - {8,009) {181.707) 862,623 680,916
31,480 (31.490) 25,000 - (8.490) 22,306 15,818
7402822 (5,238.295) 2,263,120 (418,118) (3.393,293) 13,743,472 10,350,179
2122359 % (13,353422) ¢ 3,590,428 § (1,460,860) $ (11,223,854} 28,753,161 § 17,529,307
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
CIP Reallocation Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Investment income

Total revenues
Expenditures:
General govemment:
Current

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other flnancing sources (uses):
Transfer in
Transfers out
Total other financing
sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgefed Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Posltive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)

8 208,001 § 123.526 § 121,692 § (1.934)
209.001 123,526 121,582 (1.934)
- - 86,191 (86,191)
- - 86,191 {86.191)
209,001 123526 35,401 (88,125)

- - 1 1

- (100,000) (100,000) -

- (100,000) (99,999) 1

209,001 23,526 (64,598) (88,124)

345,708 345,708 345,708 -

$ 554,708 § 369,234 $ 281,110 § (88,124)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Resource Conservation
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovemmental $ - $ - 3 - § -
Total revenues - - - -
Expendltures:
General govermment:
Current - 134,090 126,250 7,840
Capital outlay - 24,262 11,838 12.424
Total expenditures - 158,352 138,088 20,264
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - (1568,352) (138,088) 20,264
Qther financing sources (uses):
Transfers out - (6,661) (6,661) -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - (6,661) (6,661) -
Net changes in fund balance - (165,013) (144,749) 20,264
Fund batance, beginning of year 165,013 165,013 165,013 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 165,013 % - 8 20,264 $ 20,264
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Capital Projects
Building Renovations

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other revenues
Total revenues
Expenditures:
General government
Current
Capital outlay

Tota! expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing
sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Acutal Amounts {Negative)

$ 182,138 § 560,147 $ 283,446 $ (276,701}
- - 36 36
182,139 560,147 283,482 (276,665)
163,085 337,862 238,271 98,591
2,646,066 4,041,351 2,414,218 1,627,132
2,809,121 4,379,213 2,652,490 1,726,723
(2,626,982) (3,819,088) (2.369,008) 1,450,058

- 184,363 164,363 -

- (345,163) (345,163) -

- (150,800) (150,800) -

(2,626,982) (3,969,866) (2,519,808) 1,450,058
4,050,720 4,050,720 4,050,720 -

$ 1,423,738 $ 80,854 § 1,530,912 $ 1,450,058
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Special Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues;
Intergovernmental $ -3 -3 - 8 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures:
Public works:
Current - 210,758 555,363 (344,807)
Capital outiay 82,176 410,858 463,281 (52,423)
Total expenditures 82,178 621,614 1,018,644 (397,030)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (82,176) (621,614) (1,018,644) (397,030)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 1,060,638 582,033 (478,605)
Total other financing
sources (uses) - 1,060,838 582,033 (478,605)
Net change in fund balance (82,176) 439,024 (436,611) (875,635)
Fund balance, beginning of year (40,140) (40,140) (40,140) -
Fund baiance, end of year $ (122,316) § 398,884 § (476,751) $ (875,635)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balarice - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Beautlfication of Major Arterlals
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Origlnal Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ - $ 150,000 $ 132,313 § (17,887)
Total revenues - 150,000 132,313 (17,687)
Expenditures:
Public works:
Capital outlay - 150,000 132,313 17,687
Total expenditures - 180,000 132,313 17,687
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - - - -
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out - - (1 (1)
Total other financing
sources (uses) - - (1) &)
Net change in fund balance - - (1 (1
Fund balance, beginning of year 1 1 1 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1 % 1 $ - $ (1
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capltal Projects

Revenues:
Intergovermunental

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Public works:
Capftal outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Net change in fund batance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Bond Acquisition
For tha Yaar Ended June 30, 2010
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ 6924 § - - -
6.924 - - -
85.436 79,494 - 79,494
65,436 79.404 - 76,434
(58,512) (79.454) - 79,494
(58.512) (79,494) - 79.494
79,404 79,494 79,494 -
$ 20,982 § - 79,494 79,494
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Capital Projects
Clty Dralnage Projects

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Public works:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out
Total other financing
sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budgst-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
) 30.000 § 234,814 § 23,758 § (211,056)
30,000 234,814 23,758 (211,056)
138,242 325,658 94,919 230,739
138,242 325,658 94,919 230,739
(108,242) (90.844) (71.161) 19,683
- (1,849) (1,849) -
- (1,849) (1.848) -
(108,242) (92,683) (73,010) 19,683
96,987 96,987 96,987 -
$ (11,255) § 4294 $ 23977 § 19,683
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Landfill Pro)ects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
intergovernmental 3 - § - % - -
Total revenues - - - -
Expendltures:
Pubtic works:
Capital outlay - 48,704 - 46,704
Total expenditures - 46,704 - 46,704
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - (46,704) - 46,704
Net change in fund balance - (46,704) - 46,704
Fund balance, beginning of year 48,704 46,704 48,704 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 46,704 § - 8 46,704 46,704
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Clty Paving Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negativs)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 1,185,000 § 1,185,000 § 1,368,077 $ 183,077
Intergovernmental 354,670 2,191,392 271,847 (1,919,545)
Interest on investments 4,447 4,447 3,846 (601)
Total revenues 1,544,117 3,380,839 1,643,770 (1,737.069)
Expenditures:
Public works:
Current 1,184,301 1,202,586 1,480,010 (277,424)
Capital outlay 4,257,382 5.958,968 2,452,782 3,506,186
Total expenditures 5,421,683 7,161,554 3.832,792 3,228,762
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (3.877.5686) (3,780,715) (2,289,022) 1,491,693
Other financing sources (uses).
Transfers in 23,729 159,366 159,366 -
Transfers out - (108,880) (108.880) -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 23,729 50,486 50,486 -
Net change in fund balance (3,853,837) (3,730,229) {2,238,536) 1,491,683
Fund balance. beginning of year 4,078,115 4,078,115 4,078,115 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 224,278 § 347,886 § 1,839,579 § 1,491,693
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Caphtal Projects
Santa Fe River Channel
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts

Final Budget-
Posltive
Orlginal Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 98,790 $ 98,465 § 2525 % (95,940)
Total revenues 88,790 98.465 2,525 (95,940)
Expenditures:
Public works:
Capital outlay 121,428 156.312 16,538 139,774
Total expenditures 121,428 156,312 16,538 139,774
Excess (deficiency) of
revenuss over expenditures (22,638) (57,847) (14,013) 43,834
Net change in fund balance (22,838) (57,847) (14,013) 43,834
Fund balance, beginning of year 87,500 87,500 87,500 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 64,862 $ 29,653 $ 73487 § 43,834
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
City Signalization Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positlve
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 26648 § 25000 §$ 21,903 § (3,097)
Tofal revenues 26,648 25,000 21,903 (3.097)
Expenditures:
Public works:
Current - 44,200 33,983 10,217
Capital outlay 527,653 584,227 336,430 247,797
Total expenditures 527,653 628,427 370.413 258,014
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (501,008) (603,427) (348,510) 254,917
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 87,772 87,772 -
Transfers out - (17.060) (17,060) -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - 70,712 70,712 -
Net change in fund batance (501.005) (532,715) (277,798) 254,917
Fund balance, beginning of year 603,573 603,573 603,573 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 102,568 $ 70,858 § 325,775 § 254,917
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects

City Street Construction Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Public works:
Current
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing
sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund batance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Orlginal Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 4066300 $§ 10,696,378 $ 3,175877 & (7.5620,501)
107,591 161,155 158,029 (3.126)
4,173,891 10,857,533 3,333,906 (7,523,627)
14,150 33,264 11,479 21,785
5,928,147 14,193,667 4,466,724 9,726,943
5.842,297 14,226,931 4,478,203 9,748,728
(1.768,406) (3,369,398) (1,144,297) 2,225,101
- 98,901 98,901 -
- (4€3,128) (463,128) -
- (364,227) (364,227) -
(1,768,406) (3.733,625) (1,508,524) 2,225,101
3,982,106 3,982,106 3,982,106 -
$ 2,213,700 $ 248,481 $ 2,473,582 § 2,225,101
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Clty Sldewalk Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varfance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
Reveanues:
Intergovernmental $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ -
Total revenues 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Expenditures:
Public works:
Current - 179,264 217,471 (38,207)
Capital outlay 571,033 482,876 109,694 373,182
Total expenditures 571,033 862,140 327,165 334,875
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (521,033) {612,140) (277,165) 334,975
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 4,872 4,872 -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - 4,872 4,872 -
Net change in fung balance {521,033) (607,268) (272,293) 334,975
Fund balance, beginning of year 634,605 634,605 634,605 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 113,572 § 27,337 $ 362,312 § 334,975
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Zia Road Street Lighting
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
QOriglnal Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 3 -3 - 8 - 8 -
Total revenues - - P -
Expenditures:
Public works:
Current - - 20,015 (20,015)
Capital outlay 50,936 200,000 - 200,000
Total expenditures 50,938 200,000 20,015 179,985
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (50.936) (200,000) (20,015) 179,985
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 200,000 200,000 -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - 200,000 200,000 -
Net change in fund balance (50,936) - 179,985 179,985
Fund balance, beginning of year 54,886 54,886 54,886 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 3,950 % 54,886 $ 234,871 § 179,885
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expendituras
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Affordable Houslng Program
For the Year Ended Jung 30, 2010

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ - 8 - § -9 -
Toftal revenues - - - -
Expenditures:
Community development
Capital outlay 707,662 707,862 460,605 247,057
Total expenditures 707,662 707,862 460,605 247,057
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (707,662) (707,662) (480,605) 247,057
Net change in fund balance (707.662) (707,662) (460,605) 247,057
Fund balance, beginning of year 707,662 707,662 707,662 -
Fund balance, end of year $ - S - $ 247,057 $ 247,057
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Capltal Projects
Public Care Facilities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Community welfare:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeted Amounts

Varlance with
Final Budget-

Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 686,137 92,401 % 92,401 -
666,137 92,401 92,401 -
99,899 192,400 92,401 98,999
99,899 192,400 92,401 99,999
586,138 (99,999) - 99,899
586,138 (99,999) - 99,899
116,755 116,758 116,755 -
$ 702,893 16,756 $ 116,758 99,999
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenuses, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Art for CIP Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Orlginal Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ - 3 -3 -8 -
Other revenue - 2,250 1,500 750
Total revenues - 2,250 1,500 750
Expenditures:
Cufture and recreation:
Current 80,499 426,071 185,954 240,117
Total expenditures 80,499 426,071 185,954 240,117
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (80,499) (423,821) (184,454) 240,867
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 44 36,492 36,492 -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 44 36.492 36,482 -
Net change in fund balance (80,455) (387,329) (147,962) 238,367
Fund balance, beginning of year 572425 572,425 572,425 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 491970 § 185,096 $ 424,463 § 239,367
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capltal Projects
Museums
For the Year Ended June 34, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Oniginal Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenuss:
Intergovermnmental $ 227,424 § 222454 § 18,490 $ (203,564)
Total revenues 227,424 222,454 18,490 (203.964)
Expenditures:
Culture and recreation:
Capital outiay - 223,148 18.480 204,658
Total expenditures - 223,148 18,490 204,658
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expsnditures 227,424 (694) - 694
Net change in fund balance 227,424 (694) - 694
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,624 1,624 1,624 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 229,048 § 930 § 1,624 $§ 694
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expendltures

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Capital Projects
City Parks Improvements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 3.833110 § 1,964,817 § 1,149,244 § (815,573)
Total revenues 3,833,110 1,064,817 1,149,244 (815,573)
ExpendItures:
Culture and recreation:
Current 1,134,583 1,162,122 664,080 498,042
Capital outlay 12,286,515 14,882,672 5,333,808 9.548,864
Total expenditures 13,421,098 16,044,794 5,997,888 10,046,906
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (9,587,988) (14,079,977) (4,848,644) 9,231,333
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 2,201,628 2,201,628 -
Transfers out - (410,118) (410,118) -
Total other financing
sources (Uses) - 1,791,510 1,791,510 -
Net change in fund balance (9,587,988) (12.288,467) (3,057,134) 9,231,333
Fund balance, beginning of year 12,284,484 12,284,494 12,284,494 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2,696,506 $ (3,973) § 9,227,360 § 9,231,333
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and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

Capital Projects
Open Space Acqulsition
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmentat

Total revenues
Expendltures:
Culture and recreation:
Current
Capital outtay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficienay) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (vses):

Transfers out
Total other financing
sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund batance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Orlginal Final Actual Amounts (Negative)

3 977572 § 1,707,584 § 995,293 § (712,291)
977,572 1,707,584 995,293 (712,281)
13,000 11,560 - 11,560
1,366,038 2,155,907 1,169,000 986,907
1,379,038 2,167,467 1,169,000 998,467
(401,466) (459,883) (173,707) 286,176
- (8.000) (8,0600) -
- (8.000) (8.000) -
(401.466) (467,883) (181,707) 286.176
862,623 862,623 862,623 -
$ 461,157 $ 304,740 $ 680,916 § 286,176
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Projects
Library Improvernents
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posttive
Original Final Actual Amount (Negative)
Revenues:
Other ravenue $ - 8 - § - 3 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures:
Cultural and Recreation:
Current - - 656 (656)
Capital Outlay 22.860 47,255 30,834 16.421
Total expenditures 22,860 47,255 31,480 15,765
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (22,860) (47,255) (31,490) 15,765
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - 25,000 25,000 -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - 25,000 25,000 -
Net changes in fund balance (22,860) (22,255) (6,490) 15,765
Fund balance, beginning of year 22,306 22,306 22,306 -
Fund balance, end of year $ (554) $ 51 § 15816 $ 15,765

134



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Major Governmental Fund
Capital Projects
1/2 % Gross Receipts Tax
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Originlal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 14,789,213 § 13,823,293 § 14,145,489 § 322,196
Other Revenue - - 340 340
Total revenues 14,789,213 13,823,293 14,145,829 322,536
Expenditures:
General government:
Current 2,585,712 2,684,854 2,473,179 211,675
Capital outlay 37,451 259,528 250,872 8,656
Total expenditures 2,633,163 2,944,382 2.724,051 220,331
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 12,156,050 10,878,911 11,421,778 542,867
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,004,052 19,474 19,474 -
Transfers out {15.849,058) (17,446,558) (16,688.353) 758,205
Tota! other financing sources (uses) (13,845,008) (17,427,084) (16,668,879) 758,205
Net change in fund balance (1,688,956) (6.548,173) (5.247,101) 1,301,072
Fund balance, beginning of year 23,252,106 23,252,106 23,252,106 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 21,563,150 $ 16,703,933 $ 18,005,005 $ 1,301,072
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Major Governmental Fund
Debt Service Fund
Budget vs Actual

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and
payment of principal and interest on the City’s general bonded debt.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Major Governmental Fund
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Posltive
Original Final Actual Amounts  (Negative)
Revenues:
Investment income $ 129,313 ¢ 184,893 § 156,046 $ (28,847)
Property Tax Revenue 1,450,000 1,450,000 1,701,441 251,441
Reimbursements/Refunds - - 159,961 159,961
Total revenues 1,579,313 1,634,893 2,017,448 382,555
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal payments 3,947,176 7,655,026 7,673,026 (18,000)
interest and fiscal agent fees 9,473,413 5,777,338 5,784,564 (7,228)
Bond issuance costs - - - -
Total expenditures 13,420,589 13,432,364 13,457,590 (25,226)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (11,841,276) (11,797,471) (11,440,142) 357,329
Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in 12,018,800 12,228,855 12,229,655 800
Operating transfars out - (3,287,612) (3,288,011) (399)
HUD loan payments(flow through) - - 7,113 7113
Issuance of bonds
Face value of bonds issued - - - -
Premium on issvance of bond - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 12,018,300 8,941,243 8,948,757 7.514
Net change in fund balance 177.624 (2,856,228)  (2,491,385) 364,843
Fund balance, beginning of year 70,563,345 10,938,927 8,936,307 2,002,620
Fund balance, end of year $§ 70,740,969 $ 8,082,699 § 6,444,922 & (1,637,777)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Major Governmental Fund

Debt Service Fund

Combining Balance Sheet
For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2010

Assets
Cash and [nvestments

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments:

Restricted for debt service payments
Receivables

Property taxes

Interest

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fuog Balances
Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Other current liabifies
Other deferred revenue

Total Liabilities
Fund balances:
Fund balence:
Reserve, designated for, reporied in:
Debt service
Capital projects
Tota) Fund Balances

Total llabtlities and fund balances

Generat GRY

Obligation 2008 GRT 1937A GRT 1998 GRT 2002 GRTY 2004A Refunding GRTY 2008

Debt Service Debt Service Dobt Semvice Oebt S8ervice Debt Service 20048 Dett Debt Servica
Servicp

$ 758,035 - $ $ 10,603 $ 116 $ 743,487 § 34848
2,821,911 - 74,675 52,648 68,328
20,692 - - - - -
45,820 - 182 91 3,711 1.549
3.647.458 - = 85,460 52.855 747.198 104,725
2,889,423 - - 85,460 52.855 747,198 104,725
758,035 - - - - - -
3,647,458 - = 85,480 52,855 747198 104,725
$ 3.647,458 ~ S - $ 85,460 $ 52855 $ 747,198 $ 104,725
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GRT

GRY 2008 C1P NMFA-Fire HUD Section NMFA-Parking NMFA-Land
Debt Senvice Refunding Department 108 Loan Loan Acqulsition TOTAL
20225: bt Debt Service Debt Service Oebt Service Debt Sgrvice
§ 108.161 $ 108 $ 185015 $ 16,083 $ 635,507 $ 31323 § 2,523,284
86,697 621,566 117,068 67,060 4 3 3,908,950
- - - - - B 20,692
587 98 705 - 2,284 67 56,084
195.426 621.800 302.788 83,143 637.805 31,393 8.510.050
- 15 - - 15
- 40,0600 - - 40,000
- 25113 - - 25113
- - - 65.128 - - 65,128
195,425 621,800 302,788 18,015 637,805 31,363 5,686,887
- - - - - . 758,035
195,425 621,800 302,788 18,015 637,805 31,393 6,444,922
S 195425 $ 621800 $ 302,788 $ 83,143 $ 637,805 $ 31,393 3 6,510,050
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Asgsets
Cash and Investments
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investmants:
Restricted for debl service payments
Receivables
Property taxes
(nterest

Totat Assets

Liabllities end Fund Balances
Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Other current liabilities
Other deferred revenue

Total Liabilitles
Fung balances:
Fund balance:
Reserve, designated for. reported in:
Debt service
Capital projects
Total Fund Balances

Total labllities and fund balances



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Major Governmental Fund
Debt Servica Fund

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General

GRT
Obligsttan 2008 GRT 1397A GRT 1939 GRT 2002 GRT 20044 Refunding GRT 2006 Dgbt
Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service 2004B Debt Scervice
Snrvice
REVENUES:
Taxes
Property $ 1,700441 § - $ - § - 8 - 8 - $ -
Investment Income 106,384 - - 806 467 16,463 4,037
Reimbursements/Refunds - - - - - - -
Tota) Revenues 1,807,835 - - 806 467 16,463 4,037
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
Principal payments 600,000 - - 100,000 25,000 1,515,000 655,000
nterest and fiscal agent fees 829,957 - - 803,250 634,438 48.200 760,750
Bond Issuance Costs - - - - - - -
Total Expenditures 1,429.957 - 803,250 659438 1,563,200 1.315,750
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 377.878 - - (802,444) (658,971) {1,548.737) (1.311.713)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers In - - - 908,778 665,714 1,560,950 1,321,026
Operating Transfers Out (2,562,565) (8,155) (3.867) (6,776) (6.776) {3098,628) (368,516)
HUD loan payments (flow through) - - - - - - -
|ssuance of Bonds -
Bonds Proceeds - - - - - - -
Bond Premiums - - - - -
Total olher financing sources (uses)  (2,562,565) (8.155) (3,867) 902,000 658,938 1,251,322 952,510
Net change in fund balance (2,184,687) (8.155) (3,867) (444) (33) (295,415) (359,203)
Fung belance, beginning of year 5832,145 9.155 3.867 85.904 52,888 1,042,613 463,928
Fund balance, end of year § 3647458 § - 3 - § 86480 § 52,855 § 747,198 $ 104,725
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GRT HUD
GRT 2008 CIP NMFAFlre NMFA- NMF AsLand
Debt Service Rt:;unﬂeng Department Section 108 Parking Loan Acquisltion JOTAL
20088 Debt Dobt Service LDE DebtService  Debt Service
REVENLUES:
Taxes
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8§ 1,700,441 Property
1,674 18,163 2.243 1 5,871 (83) 156,046  (nvestment Income
- - 159,861 - - - 159,981 Reimbursements/Refunds
1,674 18,163 162,204 11 5,871 (83) 2,017,448 Tola! Revenves
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
20,000 4,560,000 148,799 18,000 - 133,227 7,673,026 Principal payments
1,041,383 853,900 16,523 14,801 638,740 142,642 5,784,584 Interest and fiscal agent fees
- - - - - - - Bong Issuance Costs
1,061,363 5,413.900 163,322 32,801 638,740 275,869 13,457,590 Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{1,059,689) {5,385,737) {1.118) (32,790) (632,869) (275,952) (11,440,142)  expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES):
1,069,189 5,782,516 - - 638,740 282,644 12,229,655 Operating Transfers In
(7,176) (6.778) - - (6.776) (3,288,011) Operaiing Transfers Qut
- - - 7,913 - - 7.413 HUD loan payments (flow through)
Issuance of Bonds
. . - - - - Bonds Proceeds
- - - - - Bond Premiums
1,062,013 5.775.840 - 7.113 638.740 275,868 8,948,757 Total other financing sources (uses)
2324 380.103 (1.118) (25,677) 5,871 (84) (2.481,385) Nel change in fund balance
183,101 241,697 303.906 43,692 631,934 31,477 8,936.307  Fund balance, beginning of year
$ 195425 $ 621,800 $ 302788 § 18,015 § 637,805 8 31,393 § 6,444,922 Fund balance, end of year
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Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the City Council is
that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the City Council has
decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability

purposes.

Municipal Recreation Complex- to account for the operation of the City’s golf course
and adjoining recreation facility.

Parking Enterprise Fund- to account for the operation of the City’s parking lots and the
operation of the on-street parking meters.

Transit Bus System- to account for the operation of the City’s public bus system: Santa
Fe Trails.

Airport- to account for the operation of the City’s airport service.

Genoveva Chavez Community Center (GCCC) - to account for the operation of the
community recreational center.

Major Enterprise Funds
Budget vs Actual

Waste Water Management- to account for the operation of the City’s sewage system.
Water Management- to account for the operations of the City’s water utility.

Solid Waste Management- to account for the operation of the City’s solid waste
collection service.

Railyard Properties- to account for the development of 50 acres of prime real estate near
the center of the City previously owned by the railroad and a private developer.

Santa Fe Convention Center- to account for the operation of the City’s convention
center.

College of Santa Fe- The College of Santa Fe fund accounts for the lease operations,
debt service, and construction activities associated with the City’s purchase of the college
from a not-for-profit corporation and subsequent lease to Laureate Education Inc. in
September of 2009
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2010

Municipal Parking Transit
Recreation Enterprise Bus
Complex Fund System
Assets
Current assets:
Cash, investmenis and cash equivalents S 374,048 $ 1,210,214 ) -
Restricted cash, invesiments and cash equivalents
Restricted for debt service 107,536 - -
Granis receivable - 31,290 1,457,968
Receivable (net of allowances)
Accounts 134,274 136,042 -
Interest receivable 2,752 3,453 977
Total current assets 818,611 1,380,888 1,458,245
Noncurrent assets:
Deferred Charges (net of amortization) 285,128 - -
Capital assets:
Land and land rights 2,250,000 - -
Buildings and structures 2,314,761 18,230,184 7.721,323
Improvements 13,783,385 113,620 766,447
Furniture and fixiures - 25,754 9,043
Equipment and machinery 1,086,155 854,772 787,543
Vehicles 53,478 481,250 8,400,942
Data processing equipment and software 75,603 708.564 335,315
Utility Systems - - -
Art - - 180,971
Canstlruction in progress 171.638 129,227 230,443
Less accumutated depreciation (15,045,023) (3,212.887) (8,174,497)
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 4,689,898 17,328.494 10,257,530
Total noncurrent assets 4,975.126 17,328,494 10,257,530
Total assets $ 5,593,737 $ 18,709,493 L3 11,716,475
Liabilities
Current liabilities:;
Accounts payable $ 54,496 $ 108,605 $ 137.558
Miscellansous payable - 18,573 -
Compensated absences payable 8,350 50,680 103,803
Accrued wages paysble 33,096 141,102 289,933
Depaosits and escrows 605 6,943 14
Interest payable 41,702 - -
Due to other funds - - 398,286
8onds payable net of amortization 807.286 - -
Total current liabillties 945,535 325,903 929,594
Noncurrent liabilities
Bonids payable net of amortization 11,079,711 - -
Compensated absences payable 25,049 152,041 311,411
Tatal noncurrent liabilities 11,104.760 152,041 311,411
Total liabilities 12,050,285 477,944 1,241,005
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt (7,196,999) 17,328,494 10,257,530
Reslricted for debt service 107,536 - -
Unrestricted 632.905 903.055 217.940
Total nat assets 3 (6.456,558) § 18,231,549 $ 10,475,470
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Airport GCCC Totals

361,085 1,088,394 3,033,722

- - 107,536
1,161,663 - 2,650,921
- - 270,316

3,031 4,385 14,698
1,626.753 1,092,778 6,077,083
- - 285,128

129,711 2,072,067 4,451,778
2.561.34 23,306,768 54,134,380
13,892,281 198,423 28,854,156
- 37,525 72,322

882,384 469,802 4,060,456
545,473 45,551 9,626,685
21474 175,096 1,204,752

- 29,820 29,820

- - 180,971
5,244,379 847,004 6,622,681
(7.233.463) (5,837,398) (40,303,268)
15,404,273 21,244,458 68,924,753
15,404,273 21,244,458 £9.209.881
16,930,032 22,337,237 75,286,874
625,620 118,088 1,044,348

- - 18,573

28,162 40,835 231.830
40,853 142,029 647,013

- 17,112 24,674

- - 41,702

- - 398,286

- - 807,286

684,635 318,045 3,213,712

- - 11,079,711

84 488 122,506 695,495
84,488 122,506 11.775.206
779,123 440,551 14,888,818
15,404,273 21,244,458 57,037,758
- - 107,538

746,636 662.228 3.152.764
16,150,808 21,896,686 60,298,056
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Current assets:

Cash, investments and cash squivalents

Restricted cash, investments and cash equivalents
Restricted for debt service

Grants receivable

Receivable (net of allowances)
Accounts

Imsrest receivable

Total cuerent assets
Noncurrent assets:
Deferred Charges (net of amortization)

Capital assets:
Land and land rights
Buildings and systems
Improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment and machinery
Vehicles
Data processing equipment and software
Utility Systems
Art
Construction In progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Miscellaneous payable
Cormpensated absencas payable
Accrued wages payabls
Deposits and escrows
Interest payable
Due fo other funds
Bonds payable net of amortization

Total current liabilities

Noncucrent liabilities
Bonds payable net of amortization
Compensated absences payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total lizbilities

Not assats
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net assets



Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes In Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Municipal Parking Transit
Recreation Enterprise Bus
Complex Fund System
Operating revenues:
User fees 993,484 $ 3,878,405 877,901
Other revenue 108,812 622,564 288,425
Total operating revenues 1,100,296 4,498,969 1,277,326
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 378,003 2,898,693 5,948,860
Contractual services and utilities 305,155 348,258 158,817
Repairs and maintenance 12,006 148,727 471,742
Supplies 34,743 133,515 505,365
Capital cutlay-inventory exempt items 100,469 5,454 157,839
Depreciation expense 235,082 514,048 701,053
Amortization expense 19,670 - -
Insurance 32,580 115,224 210,864
Other 175,360 1,107,435 762,843
Total operating expenses 1,293,068 5,271,354 8,817,483
Operating income (l0ss) (193,672) (772,385) (7,640,157)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 5,138 10,493 (1.181)
Intergovernmentat
Grants 464,581 - 2,283,130
Gain (Loss) on szle of capital assets - - -
Interest expense (526,553) - -
Prem/(Discount) debt service interest 17,286 - -
Other non-operating (expenses)/income - - -
Totsl non-operating revenues (expenses) (39,548) 10,493 2,291,948
Income (loss) before transfers (233,220) (761,892) (5.348,208)
Transfers in 1,996,427 13,640 5,429,860
Transfers out (6.431) - -
Change in net assets 1,787,776 (748,252) 81,652
Net assets, beginning of year (8,214,334) 18,979,801 10,393,818
Net assets, end of year (6,456,558) § 18,231,549 10,475,470
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Totals

Airport GCCC

$ 447,699 1,382,808 7,678,287
193,723 255,125 1,477,648
641,422 1,637,933 9,155,946
816,037 2,852,485 12,894,078
1,341,654 743,986 2,897,970
14,713 130,946 778,134
24,936 170,482 869,021
83,662 125,797 473,221
1,021,207 515,203 2.887 493

- - 19,870

34,186 225,216 818,070
112,815 133,408 2,291,862
3,448,210 4,887,504 23,828,518
(2,807,788) (3,259,571) (14,673,573)
2,092 6,377 22,919
5,348,793 17,028 8,123,533

- 406 406
- - (526,553)

- - 17,286

- 11,420 11,420

5,350,885 35,232 7,649,011
2,543,007 (3,224,339) (7,024,562)
568,629 2,508,257 10,545,823
- - (5.,431)

3,139,726 (715.072) 3,515,830
13,011,183 22,611,758 56,782,226
$ 16,150,909 21,896,686 60,298,056
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Operating revenues:

User fees
Other revenue
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Salarles, wages and benefits
Contractual services and utiliies
Repairs and maintenance

Supplies

Capital outlay-inventory exempt items
Depreciation expense

Amortization expense

Insurance

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Investment income
Intergovernmentsl

Grants
Gain (Loss) on sale of capital agssets
Interest expense
Prem/(Discount) debt service interest
Other non-operating (expenses) / income

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash pald for interfund services provided and used
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Cash flows from noncapltal financing activities:
Intergovernmental
Transfers-in from other funds
Transfers-out to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and noles payable
Interest paid on revenue bonds and notes payable

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Interest and dividends on investments

Net cash provided by Investing activilies
Netincrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash, investments and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash, Investments and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating Income (1oss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconclle operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation/amartization

Change In assets and llabilities:
{Increase) decrease in accounts ceceivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (decrease) In accrued wages payable
(ncrease (decrease) in miscellaneous payable
lncrease (decrease) in escrow
increase (deccease) in due to other funds

Total adjustments

Net cash provided {used) by operating activities
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Municlpal Parking Translit
Recreation Enterprise Bus
Complex Fund System
) 1,264,133 § 4,539,491 § 1,300,954
(974,951) (1,425,873) (1,818,075)
- (397,080) (840,464)
(394,025) (2,855,536) (5.839,661)
(101,843) (138,998) (6,997,246)
554,454 28,175 2,435,425
1.896,427 13,640 5,429,860
(5,431) - -
2,545,450 41,815 7,865,285
(875,975) {166,274) (867,759)
(760,000) - -
(528,928) - .
(1.964,903) (166,274) (867,759)
2,881 14,681 (280)
2,881 14,681 (280)
481,585 (248,766) ~
- 1,458,980 -
$ 481,585 § 1,210,214 $ -
$ (193,672) S (772,385) § (7.640,157)
255,652 514,048 701,083
163,837 40,522 23,628
8,230 35,660 (166,267)
(17.117) 3,002 83,859
1,085 21,492 45,240
- 18,573 -
(319,888) - (24,702)
91,829 633,387 842,911
3 (101,843) § (138,998) 8  (6,997,246)




Alrport GCCC Totals
641,422 $ 1,637,933 S 9,383,033
{1,430,037) (1.669,083) (7,315,019)
(88,478) - (1,126,020)
(794,745) (2,838,086) (12.720,063)
(1,671.836) (2,867.246) (11,777,189)
5,263,757 303,577 8,585,388
596,629 2,508,287 10,545,823
- - (5.431)
5,880,386 2,812,844 16,125,780
(4,153,066) (242,113) (6,105,187)
- 406 406
- - (760,000)
- - (528,928)
(4,153,086) (241,707) (7.393.709)
4,952 9,687 31,931
4,952 9.687 31,9314
40,436 (286.422) (13,167)
320,629 1,374,816 3,154,425
361,065 § 1,088,394 $ 3,141,258
(2,807,788) § (3,259,571) 3 (14,673,573)
1,021,207 515,203 3,007,183
- - 227,987
93,453 (152,038) (180,962)
15,498 11,483 76,915
5,794 4,506 78,527
- - 18,573
- 12,771 12,771
- - (344,570)
1,135,952 392,325 2,898,404
(1,871,838) $ (2,867,246) 5 (11,777,169)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash recsived from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods ang services
Cash paid for interfund services provided and used
Cash payments to employess for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Intergovernmental
Transfers-in from other funds
Transters-out to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Princtpal paid on revenue bond maturities and notes payable
Interest paid on revenue bonds and noies payable

Net cash used for capital and refated financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
(nterest and dividends on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash, investments and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash, investments and cash equlvalents at end of year

Recanciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating Income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (Joss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating aclivities:

Depreciation/amortization

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages payabte
Increase (decrease) in miscellansous payable
Increase (decrease) ln escrow
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by aperating actlvitles
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Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Munlclpal Recreation Complex

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Nonmajor Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revanues, Expenses and

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revanues:
User fees
Other revenue

Total operafing revenues

Operating expenses:

Salzaries, wages and benefits
Contractual services and utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies

Capital outlay-exempt items
Depreciation expense
Amortization

insurance

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (foss)

Non-operating ravenues (expenses):

Investment income
Intergovernmentat
(nterest expense

Prem(Discount) debt service interest

Variance with

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Transfers out
Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive

Original Flnal Actual {Negative)
$ 1,173,619 8 1,173619 § 993,484 (180,135)
118,988 118,988 106,812 (12,178)
1,282.607 1,292,607 1,100,298 (192.311)
576,805 656,886 378,003 278,863
244,725 275,571 305,155 (29.584)
12,000 12,205 12,006 198
31,050 31,335 34,743 (3,408)
457,217 1,396,703 100,468 1,296,234
- - 235,982 (235,982)
- . 19,670 (19.670)
32,575 32,575 32,580 (5)
193,008 193,123 175.360 17,783
1.547,380 2,598,378 1,293,968 1.304.410
(254,773) (1,305,771) (193,672) 1,412,099
12,154 12,154 5,138 (7,016)
384,468 514,581 464,581 (50,000)
(1,288,928) (1.288,828) (526,553) 762,375
- - 17,286 17,286
(892,3086) (762,193) (39,548) 722,645
(1.147,079) (2.067,964) (233,220) 1,834,744
1,026,427 1,896,427 1,996,427 -
(5.431) (5,431) (5.431) -
(126,083) (76.988) 1.757.776 1,834,744
(8,214,334) (8,214,334) (8.214,334) -
$ (8,340,417) $ (8,291,302) $ (6,456,558) 1,834,744
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Changes in Net Assete Budget and Actual

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Nonmajor Enterprisa Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and

Parking Enterprise Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:
User fees
Other revenye
Total operating revenves
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits
Confractual services and utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Capital outlay-exempt items
Depreciation expense
Insurance
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
lavestment income

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (foss) before transfers

Transfers In

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Varlance with

Budgetad Amounts Final Budget-
Positiva
Origlnal Final Actual (Negative)

$ 4,163,800 § 4,163,800 $ 3876,405 § (287,395)
745,000 745,000 622,564 (122,436)
4,908,800 4,908,800 4,498,968 (409,831)
3,038,056 3,039,056 2,898,693 140,383
454,000 385,880 348,258 37,622
155,200 187,747 148,727 38,020
165,700 180.872 133,515 47,357
87,200 300,778 5,454 295,324
- - 514,048 (514,048)

132,825 132,825 115,224 17.801
907,437 919,841 1,107,435 (187,584)
4,921,418 5,146,999 5,271,354 (124,355)
(12,618) (238.199) (772,385) (534,1886)
18,566 18,566 10,493 (8.073)
(579,849) (579,949) 10,493 590,442
(592,587) (818,148) (761,882) 56,256
13,640 13,640 13.640 -
(578,927) (804,508) (748,252) 56,256
18,979,801 18.879,801 18,879,801 -
$ 18,400,874 § 18,175,293 § 18,231,549 § 56,256
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Transit Bus System
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:
User fees $ 543,000 § 543,000 $ 977,901 $ 434,901
Other revenue 100,000 100.000 299 425 189,425
Total operating revenues 643,000 643,000 1,277,326 634,328
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 5,868,191 5,851,991 5,948,860 (96,869)
Contractual services and utilities 143.700 239,228 158,817 80,308
Repairs and maintenance 351,900 707,048 471,742 235,308
Supplies 458,810 493,104 505,365 {12,261)
Capital outlay-exempt items 23,500 1,042,359 157,839 884,520
Depreciation expense - - 701,053 (701,053)
Insurance 210,860 210,860 210,864 (4)
Other 885,766 784,483 762,843 21,640
Total operating expenses 7,942,727 9,328,070 8,917,483 411,587
Operating income (loss) (7.298,727) (8,686,070) (7.640,157) 1,045,913
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 13,608 13,608 (1,181) (14,789)
Intergovermmental 2,361,070 2,489,810 2,293,130 (196,780)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,374,678 2,503,518 2,291,849 (211,569)
Income (loss) before fransfers (4,925,048) (6.182,552) (5,348,208) 834,344
Transfers in 5,768,173 5,429,860 5,420,880 -
Change in net asseis 843,124 (752,682) 81,652 834,344
Net assets, peginning of year 10,393,818 10,383,818 10,393,818 -
Net assets, end of year 3 11,236,942 § 9,641,126 $ 10,475,470 § 834,344
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
NonmaJor Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes In Net Assets Budget and Actual

Airport

For tha Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:
User fees
Other revenue

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:

Salaries, wages and benefits
Contractual services and utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies

Capital outlay-exempt items
Depreciation expense

Insurance

Other

Total operaling expenses

Operating Income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Investment income
intergovernmenta!

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

(ncome (loss) before transfers
Transfers in

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Varlance with

Budgetsd Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negativa)

$ 505,500 § 505,500 § 447,699 § (57.801)
198,402 198.402 193,723 (4.679)
703,902 703,802 641,422 (62,480)
976,983 976,983 816,037 160,946
1,594,420 1,315,470 1,341,654 (26.184)
18,168 18,468 14,713 3,785
28,600 29,740 24,938 4,804
2,000 5,071,163 83,662 4,987,501
- - 1,021,207 (1,021,207)
41473 41,473 34,186 7.287
86,859 98,859 112.815 (14,256)
2,758,503 7,551.856 3,449,210 4,102,646
(2,054,601) (6.847,954) (2,807,788) 4,040,166
23,337 7,037 2,092 (4.945)
1,515,000 6,879,947 5,348,793 (1.531,154)
1,538,337 6.886,984 5,350,885 (1.536,099)
(516,264) 39,030 2,543,097 2,504,067
485,601 596.629 586.629 -
(30,663) 635,658 3,139.726 2,504,067
13.011,183 13,011,183 13,011,183 -
$ 12,980,520 $ 13,646,842 § 16,150,809 $ 2,504,087
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Nat Assets Budget and Actual
Genoveva Chavez Community Center
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:
User fees
Other revenue

Total operating revenues
Oparating expenses:

Salaries, wages and benefits
Contractual services and utility
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies

Capiltal outlay-exempt items
Depreciation expense
insurance

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating ravenues (expenses):

Investment income
Intergovernmental

Gain/(loss) on sale of capitat assets
Other non-operating (expenses)/ income

Total non-operating reveaues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in

Change In net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 1,391,674 § 1,391,674 § 1,382,808 § (8.866)
275,407 275,407 255,125 (20,282)
1,667,081 1,667,081 1.837.933 (29.148)
2,823,825 2,896,864 2,852,485 44,479
706,332 723,303 743,986 (20.683)
148,618 155,478 130,948 24,532
209,748 162,344 170,462 21,882
166,084 631,755 125,797 505,858
- - 515,203 (515.203)
232,712 232,712 225,216 7,496
92,780 127,481 133,408 (5,928)
4,380,110 4,960,037 4,897,504 62,533
(2,713,029) (3.292,956) (3.259,571) 33,385
20,458 5,081 6.377 1,296
121,108 17,029 17.029 -
- - 406 408
- - 11.420
141,564 22,110 35.232 1,702
(2.571,465) (3.270,846) (3.224,339) 46,507
2,626,401 2,509,267 2,508,267 -
54,936 (761.579) (715.072) 46,507
22,611,758 22,611.758 22,611,758 -
$ 22,666,694 $ 21,850,179 $ 21,896,686 $ 46,507
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Major Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Waste Water Management
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:
User fees
Other revenue

Total cperating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits
Contractual services and utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Capital outiay-exempt items
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
lasurance
Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (foss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Gain(loss) on sale of capital assets

Intergovernmental
State-shared taxes

Grants
Interest expense

Prem/(Discount) debt service interest

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Varlance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Flnal Actual (Negative)

3 8,597,552 $ 8,597,552 3 10292213 § 1,694,661
- - 7,158 7.158

8,507,552 8,597,552 10,289,371 1,701,819
5,160,956 5,674,664 4,646,307 1,028,357
1,303,466 1,363,678 870,422 393,256
873,300 1,244,902 731,892 513,010
567,688 684,643 583,738 100,904
144,980 3,104,189 21,754 3,082,435
- - 3,683,342 (3,683,342)
- - 34,639 (34,639)

305,642 319,675 319,675 -
880,369 938,050 941,581 (3,531)
9,236,411 13,329,801 11,913,351 1,416,450
(638,859) (4,732,249) (1,613,980) 3,118,289
156,093 156,174 138,777 (17,397)
- - (3,802) (3,902)

1,827,747 1,708,747 1,747,319 38,572
- 685,522 180,743 (404,773)

(2,505,925) (2,505,925) (434,426) 2,071,499

- - 34,927 34,927

(522,085) (65,482) 1,663,444 1,718,926
(1,160,944) (4,787,731) 49,464 4,837,185
44,400 63,854 63,654 -

- (33,333) (33,333) -

(1,116,544) (4,757.410) 79,785 4,837,195
33,908,079 33,908,079 33,908,078 -

38 32,791,535 $ 29,150,669 § 33,987,864 $ 4,837,195
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Major Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Water Management
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:
User fees 32,567,797 32,642,676 30,023,803 $  (2,618,873)
Other revenue 35,808 78,460 212,858 134,498
Total operating revenues 32,603,605 32,721,136 30,236,761 (2.484,375)
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 7,338,587 9.610,835 8,082,221 1,528,614
Contractual services and ulilities 7,741,551 11,258,955 4,248,559 7,010,396
Repairs and maintenance 978,110 1,323,025 794,214 528,811
Supplies 1,098,727 1,323,071 967,731 355,340
Capital outlay-exempt items 5,824,039 39,825,749 63,276 39,762,473
Depreciation expense - 438 5,460,438 (5,459,999)
Amortization - - 93,747 (93,747)
Insurance 290,887 338,674 338,686 (12)
Other 1,707,856 1,921,267 1,783,449 137,818
Total operating expenses 24,974,767 65,602,015 21,832,321 43,769,694
Operating income (loss) 7,628,838 (32,880,879) 8,404,440 41,285,319
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 1,472,363 772,748 674,811 (97,937)
Intergovernmental
Stste-shared taxes 7,128,393 6,796,611 6,957,220 160,609
Granfs 8,003,461 8,812,197 808,736
Gain on sale of capital assets - - 4403 4,403
Interest expense (5.481,588) (7,492,297) (674,811) 6,817,486
Prem/(Discount) debt service interest - - 137,901 137,901
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 3,119,167 8.080.523 15,911,721 7,831,198
Income (loss) before transfers 10,748,005 (24,800,356) 24,316,161 49,116,517
Transfers in 77.198 85,209 85,209 -
Transfers out (2,000,000) (259,901) (259,901) -
Change in net assets 8,825,203 (24,975.048) 24,141,489 49,116 517
Net assets, beginning of year 124,640,987 124,640,987 124,640,987 -
Net assets, end of year 133,466,190 § 99,665,939 § 148,782,456 § 49,116,517
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Nonmajor Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Asseots Budget and Actual
Solid Waste Management
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Posltive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:
User fees $ 8,838,400 $ 8,938,400 $ 9,111,508 $ 173,108
Other revenues - - 66,581 68,581
Total operating revenues 8,838,400 8,938,400 8,178,088 239,689
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 3,848,529 4,467,232 4,212,503 254,729
Contractual services and utilities 3,152,680 3,202,749 1,886,883 1,215,866
Repairs and maintenance 466,401 $10,423 399,125 111,298
Supplies 721,761 781,438 580,249 201,189
Capital outlay-exempt items 1,092,776 1,594,234 250,708 1,343,526
Amortization expense - - 21,183 (21,163)
Depreciation expense - - 875,807 (875,807)
Insurance 142,134 156,996 157,004 (8)
Other 808,075 863,079 865,561 (2,482)
Total operating expenses 10,233,356 11,576,151 9,348,003 2,227,148
Operating income (loss) (1,294,956) (2,837,751) (170,914) 2,466,837
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 85,379 85,465 76,895 (8,570)
Intergovernmental
State-shared taxes 1,826,356 1,707,356 1,747,048 39,693
Gain (Loss) on sale of capital assets 11,714 11,714
Interest expense (1,304,160) (1.304,160) (611,716) 692,444
Prem/(Discount) debt service interest - - 18,110 18,110
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 607.575 488,661 1,242,052 753,391
Income (loss) before transfers (687,381) (2,149,090) 1,071,138 3,220,228
Transfers in 38,423 53.366 53,366 -
Change in net assets (648,958) (2.095,724) 1,124,504 3,220,228
Net assets, beginning of year (301,450) (301,450) (301,450) -
Net assets, end of year $ (950,408) $ (2,397,174) $ 823,054 § 3,220,228
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Major Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes In Net Assets Budget and Actual
Rallyard Property
For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2010

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:
Facilities rentat ) 564,974 % 558.911 § 561,147 § 2,236
Total operating revenues 564.974 558.911 561,147 2,236
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits - 25,000 - 25,000
Contractual services and otility 34,538 34.538 58,538 (25,000)
Capital outlay-exempt tems - 1,347.302 - 1.347,302
Depreciation expense - - 1,127,192 (1.127.192)
Other operating 5,000 5.000 5,003 (3)
Total operating expenses 39,538 1,411,840 1.191.733 220,107
Operating income (loss) 525,438 (852,829) (630,586) 222,343
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 2,688 2,686 8,802 6.216
Intergovernmental - §08.683 50,154 (458,529)
Interest expense (1.177.645) (1.177,645) (5650,250) 627.395
Total nor-operafing revenues (expenses) (1.174,959) (666,276) (491.184) 175,082
Income (loss) before transfers (649,523) (1.519,205) (1,121,780) 387,425
Transfers In 975,875 1,181,126 1,181,126 -
Transfers out (352,430) (352.430) (352,430) -
Change in net assets (26,078) (690,509) (293,084) 397.425
Net assets. beginning of year 39,476,041 39,476,041 39,478,041 -
Net assats, end of year $ 30,449,963 § 38,785,532 § 39,182,857 § 397,428

155



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Major Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Santa Fe Gonvention Center
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:

User fees
Cther revenue

Total operating revenues
Operafing expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits

Contractual services and utilities
Repairs and maintenance

Supplies

Capital outlay-exempt items
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense

tnsurance
Other

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Intergovernmental

Interest Expense
Prem/(Discount) debt service interest

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (joss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

- 8 - 3 397,686 % 397,686

320,500 422,500 11,060 (411,440)
320,500 422,500 408,746 (13.754)
657,839 657,839 773,829 (115,990)
480,958 485,026 498,045 (13,019)
80,400 80,400 32,156 48,244
149,700 150,946 88,165 62,781
16,000 2,020,639 64,888 1,855,751
- - 1,297,639 (1,297,639)
- - 19,961 (18,961)
81,369 81,368 81,372 (3)
294,396 570,111 170,877 399,434
1,759,662 4,048,330 3,026,732 1,019,598
(1,439,162) (3.623,830) (2.617,986) 1,005,844
80,754 80,754 72,196 (8,558)
106,500 63,544 55,632 (8.012)
(3,355,325) (3,355,325) (2,343,541) 1,011,784
89,365 89,365

(3,168,071) (3.211.027) (2,126,448) 995,214
(4,607,233) (6,834,857) (4,744,434) 2,001,058
4,432 488 4,433,354 4,333,354 (100,000)
- (26,741) (26,741) -
(174,735) (2,428,244) (437,821) 1,901,058
17.877.784 17,877,784 17,877,784 -
17,703,049 $ 15,449,540 $ 17,439,963 § 1,890,423
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Maor Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes In Net Assets Budget and Actual
College of Santa Fe
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:
User fees
Other revenue

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:

Salaries, wages angd benefits
Contractus) services and utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies

Capital outlay-exempt items
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense

Insurance

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Interest income
Intergovernmental

Gain (Loss) on sate of capital assets

Donated land
interest expense
Other non-operating expenses

Variance with

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Orlginal Final Actual (Negative)

$ -

$ - 8 2,086,250 § 2.092.864 $ 6,634
- 2,086,250 2,092,884 6,634

- 665,000 307.087 357,943

- - 1,175,403 (1,175,403)

- 232 232 -

36,100,000 36,100,000
- - 727,998 (727.998)
- - 9,259 {8,259)
- 100,000 100,310 (310)

- 36,865,232 2,320,259 34,544,973

- (34,778,982) (227,375) 34,551,607

- 113,210 115,829 2,619

- - 16,683,838 16,683,838

- (1,008,194) (115,829) 892,365

- (894,984) 16,883,838 17,578,822

- (35,673,966) 16,456,463 52,130,429

- 150,000 150,000 -

- (35.523,966) 16,606,463 52,130,429

$ - §  (35,523,966) % 16,606,463 $ 52,130,429
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Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided
by one department to other departments within the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

Risk Management — to account for the premiums, claims and operating costs of the
property and liability insurance program. Costs are billed to departments protected by
risk management coverage.

Santa Fe Health — to account for the cost of operating a self-insured health insurance
program. The City contributes 76.50% of the costs and the employee contributes
23.50%.

Worker’s Compensation — to account for the cost of operating a self-insured worker’s
compensation program.

Retiree Health Care — to account for the cost of operating the retiree health care program
for the benefit of City of Santa Fe retirees.

Union Sick Leave Bank — to account for donations of leave from union employees to
support other union employees in need of leave.

Santa Fe Dental - to account for the cost of operating a self-insured dental insurance
program. The City contributes 60.00% of the costs and the employee contributes
40.00%.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Service Funds
Comhining Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

Unlen
Risk Santa Fe Worker's Retlree Sick Santa Fe Totals
Management Health Compensation  Health Care  Leavg Bank Dental
Asgets
Comreni 8ssats:
Cash, investments and cash equivalenis $ 4874620 $ 8,436,445 3 3,439,601 $ - $ 31,318 S 14688 § 17,796,652
Accounts receivable - - - - -
Inlerest receivable 20,093 35,402 12,945 - - 513 68,953
Other recelvable - - . - - - -
Prepaid expenss - - - - - 60,000 60,000
Total current sssets 4.894,713 9,471,847 3,452,648 . 31,318 75,181 17,825,605
Nancurrent assets:
Defarred charges (net of amontization) - - - - - - -
Noncumrent assets:
Caplta) assets:
Fumiture and fixtuces 34,818 . - - - - 34,818
Less sccumulated depreciation (21,626) - - - - - (21,626)
Equipment snd machinery 12,910 B - - - - 12,910
Less accumulated depreclation (12,910) - - - - - (12,810)
Data processing equipment and sofiware 5,307 . - - - - 5,307
Less accomulated depreciation {5.307) - - - - - (5,307)
Vehlcles 38,828 - - - - - 35,829
Less accumulated depreciation {16,188) - - - - . (18,188)
Total capital assets (net of sccum depreciation) 32,833 - - - - - 3288
Tolal noncurrent 2ssots . 32,833 - - - - - 32,833
Total assets 4,927,546 9,471,847 3,452,646 31,318 75,181 17,968,438
Liabilities
Currenl lTabilities:
Accounts payable 124,343 274,567 12,216 - - 56,867 467,993
Compensated absences payable 85918 - - - - - 85,918
Accrued wages payable 32,961 . N - - - 32,861
Clalms payable 2,158,445 449 280 3,829,677 - - - 6,435,382
Other payables - B 221 - - - 221
Notes payable-cucrent - - - - - - -
Total current labilities 2,389,667 723,827 3,842,114 56,867 7,022,475
Noncurrant liabfiitles
Notes payable-noncument - - - - - - -
Total noncument liabllites - - - - - - -
Total ligbilites 2,399,667 723,827 3,842,114 - - 56,867 7,022,475
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 32,833 - - - . - 32,833
Unrestricted 2,485,048 8,748,020 (389,568) - 31,318 18314 10,903,130
Total net assets $ 2527879 $ 8.748,020 $ (388.568) $ - s 31,318 § 18,314 § 10,835,963

The notes to (he financial statemends are an Integral past of this statement.



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revanues, Expenses
and Changes In Not Assaets
For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Unten
Risk Sama Fe Worker's Retirae Sick Santa Fe Totals
Management Heglth Compensation Health Care Leave Bank Dental
Operating revenues:
User fees 3 - $ - § - § - 8 -8 - 8 -
Premjums S 3.750,340 § 14,586,418 $ 1625742 $ - S 38,503 $ 628,750 $ 20,820,751
Other Revenue 128,546 26,082 11,817 - - - 186,445
Tolal operatng revenues 3,870,886 14,611,498 1.637,55¢ - 38,503 628,750 20,796,198
Operating expanses:
Safaries, wages and fringe benefits 743,385 . - - 73210 - 817,296
Contracilual services and ulilities 230,127 592.213 53,7650 - - 48,186 024276
Repeirs and maintenance 1,119 . - - - - 1119
Capital oullay - inventory exempt lems 1,832 - - - - - 1,832
Supplies 85,300 . - - - - 65,302
Depreciation expense 13,355 . . - - - 13,355
(nsurance premiums 2,354,823 424,318 . 27472 - - 2806313
Clagims and judgements 744785 12,008,250 2,005,451 - - 563,272 15,321,758
Excess insurance - 586,552 101,208 - - - 697,760
Warkers comp sdministration fee - - - - - - -
Other 1.674% - 19.681 - - - 21,352
Tolal operaling expenses 4,156,406 13,621,333 2,180,090 27472 73,010 611458 20,870,369
Operating income (loss) (276,520) 990,165 (542.631) (27.172) (35,407) 17,292 125,827
Norn-operating revenues (expenses}):
(nvesiment income 43,160 83,615 2R 870 - - 1,022 156,867
Sale of capital assels - - - - - -
Other e - - - - B -
Gain (Loas) on sale of (xed assets - - - - - - .
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 43,160 83615 28,870 - - 1.022 156,867
(ncome (loss) before transfers (233,360} 1,073,780 (513,861) (27.472) (35,407) 18,314 282,494
Other Flnancing Sources (uses):
Teansfers in 628 B - - - - B26
Teansters out - (1,000,000) (697,828) - - - (1,597,828)
Tota! ather financing sources (uses) 8626 (1,000,000} (697,828} - - - (1,667,202)
Change (n nel assets (232,734) 73.780 (1,111,489) (27.172) (35407 18314 (1,314,708)
Net Asszts, beglaning of year
(as previously slaled) 2,780,613 8,674,240 721,821 27172 66,728 - 12,183,946
Adjustment lo nel assets:
GASB 34 Reclassiflcatian - - - - - . .
Net asseis, beglnning of year 2,780,813 8,674.240 721,921 27.472 86,725 - 12,250,671
Net assets, end of year $ 2,827,879 3 8,748,020 g (389,568) S - $ 31,319 $ 18,314 $ 10,935,963

The notes lo lhe Rnancial statemenis are an integral part of this stalement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Unlon
Rlsk Santa Fg Worker's Retiree Sick Santa F¢
Management Health Compeansation Health Care Leave Bank Dentat Totals
Cash ilows from operating activities:
Cash recelved from customers 3 129,546 5 14611498 § 11817 8§ - $ 38,503 $ 628,750 3 15420114
Cash received from lnterfund services provided and used 3,780 340 - 1,625,742 - - - 5,376.082
Cash paymenis to suppliers for goads and zervices (3.786.312)  (13.913,189) (1,237,482) (22,172) (77.145) (614,591) {19,625.501)
Cash paymenis to emgloyees for services (808,568) - (1536) - - - (810.104)
Net cash (used) by operating actvities (684.994) 698,309 368,631 (27,172) (38,642) 14,159 360,191
Cash flows from nancapital ingncing achvities:
Transfers-in from other funds 826 - - - R - 626
Transfers-out to olher funds - (1,000,000) (587.828) - - - (1,597,828)
Net cash provided (used) by naneagital finarcing activities 628 {1,£00,000) (697.828) . N - (1,597,202)
Cash flows from investing acliviltes’
{nterest ang dividends on investments 48926 95,005 33,421 - - 508 177.851
Net cash provided by investing activities 48,926 65,005 33,421 - 599 177,861
Net increase (decrease) in cash ang cash equivalents (635,442) (205,886) (165,878) (22.172) (38.642) 14,668 (1,059,150)
Cash, lovestments & cash equivalents at beg of year 5,510,062 9,643,131 3,805,477 27,172 69,960 - 18,855,802
Cash, investments & cash equlvalents at end of year § 4874620 § 9436445 3 3.439,60 $§ - $ 31,318 $ 14,668 § 17,796,652
Reconeilkation of operating income (loss) to
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operatirg incame (loss) $ (276520) § 990,165 S (542,531) $ (27172 $  (35407) $ 17202 % 125,827
Adjusiments (o reconcile operaling income (lass) 10
net cash provided {used) by operating actwnties.
Deprecstion 13355 - - - - - 13,355
Change In assels arg iabilities.
Increase (decrease) in prepald eaxpense - - - - - (60,000) (60,000)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (39.856) 147,311 (3.580) - - 56,867 180,762
lacrease (decrease) in compensated abs paysble (60.020) - - - - - (60,020)
Increase (decreasa) i accrued wages payable (5,163) - (1.536) - (3.235) - (2.934)
Increase (decreass) in claims payable (316.799) (439,167 246,158 - - - 199,201
Tolal adjustmenis (408, 474) (291.856) 941,062 - (3.235) (3.133) 234,384
Net cash {used) by operaring actlvities 3 {684,994) & 698,309 § 398,531 § (27,172) 8 (38,642) § 14,159 § 360,191

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pad of (his siatement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Risk Management
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varlanca With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Operating revenues:

Premiums § 3747470 5 3,747,470 § 3,750,340 S 2,870

Other Revenues 43,000 43,000 128,546 86,546
Total opersating revenues 3.790,470 3,790,470 3,879,886 89,416

Operating expenses:

Salaries, wages and fringe benefits 768,599 816,322 743,385 72,937

Conlractual services and utilities 255,590 344,944 230,127 114,817

Repairs and maintenance 2,500 2,500 1,418 1,381

Supplies 38,450 76,506 65,309 14,197

Capital ouilay - Inventory exempt items 2,369 2,368 1,832 11,197

Depreciation expense - - 13,355 (13,355)

Insurance premiuvms 2,454,311 2,459,211 2,354,823 104,388

Claims and judgements 880,000 904,431 744,785 249,646

Other 3,200 3,200 1,671 1,529
Total opecating expenses 4,505,019 4,699,483 4,156,408 553,737

Operating income (loss) (714,549) (908,013) (276,520) 832,493
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

(nvestment income 91,604 45,204 43,160 (2,044)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 91,604 45,204 43,160 (2,044)
Income (loss) before operating transfers (822,945) (863,809) (233,360) 630,449

Other FInanclng Soureces (uses):

Transgfers in 628 626 626 -

Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 826 626 626 -
Change in net assets (622,319) (863,183) (232,734) 630,449

Net assets, beginning of ysar 2,760,613 2,760,613 2,760,613 -

Net assets, end of year $§ 2138294 § 1,897,430 $ 2,527,879 § 630,449
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Service Fund
Schadula of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assats - Budget and Actual
Santa Fe Health
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Flnal Actual [Negative)
Operating revenues:

Premiums $ 16,883,361 § 16,803381 § 14,586,416 $ (2,306,945)

Other Revenues - - 25,082 -
Total operating revenues 16,893,361 16,893,381 14,611,498 (2,281,863)

Operating expensas:

Contractual services and utllittes 494,312 494,312 592,213 (97.901)

Insurance premiums 535.750 §35,750 424,318 111,432

Claims and judgements 15,273,759 15,322,849 12,008,250 3.314,59¢

Excess insurance 589,540 599,962 596,552 3410

Other - - - -
Total operating expenses 16,893,361 16,852,873 13,621,333 3,331,540

Operating incoms (loss) - (59.512) 890,165 1,024,585
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Investment incorme 133,405 83.555 83,615 60
Total non-operating revenues (expanses) 133,405 83,555 83.615 860
Income (loss) before transfers 133,405 24,043 1,073,780 1,024,855

Other Financing Sources (uses):

Transfers out (1,000,000) (1.000,000) (1,000,000) -
Totatl other financing sources (uses) (1.000,000) (1,000,000) (1,000,000) -
Change in net assets (866,595) (975,957) 73,780 1.049,737

Net assets, beginning of year 8,674,240 8.674,240 8,874,240 -
Net asseats, and of year $ 7,807,645 § 7,608,283 § 8,748,020 $ 1,048,737
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Servica Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes In Net Agsets - Budget and Actual
Worker's Compensation
For the Year Ended June 30, 201D

Varianca With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:

Premiums $ 1280473 5 1,260473 § 1625742 § 365,289

Other revenues 20.000 20,000 11,817 (8,183)
Total operating revenues 1,280,473 1,280,473 1,637,558 357,088

Oparating expenses:

Salaries, wages and fringe benefits - - - -

Contractus! services and utilities 60,000 60,000 53,750 6,250

Claims and judgements 800,000 900,000 2,005,451 (1.106,451)

Excess insurance 125,000 125,000 101,208 23,792

Other 300 300 19,681 (19,381)
Total operating expenses 1,085,300 1,085,300 2.180,080 (1,094,790)

Operating income (l0ss) 195,173 185,173 (542,531) (729,521)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Inveslment income 57.809 28,839 28,870 31
Total non-operating revenues (expensas) 57.809 28,838 28.870 31
Income (loss) before transfers 252,982 224,012 (513,661) (729,490)

Other FInancing Sourcas (uses):

Transfers out (617.197) (817,197) (697,828) 19,369
Total other financing sources (uses) (817.187) (617,197) (597.828) 19,369
Change in net assets (364,215) (383,185) (1,111,489) (718,304)

Net assets, beginning of year 721,921 721,921 721.921 -
Net assets, end of year $ 357,706 § 328,736 § (3B9,568) $ (718,304}
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Service Fund
Schadule of Revenues, Expensas and
Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Retiree Health Care
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Posltive
Original Flnal Actua) [Negative)
Operating revenues:

Other Revenues $ - S - 8 - % .

Total operating revenues - - - -
Operating expenses:

Insurence premiums - - 27,172 (27,172)

Total opecating axpenses - - 27172 (27,172)
Operaling income (Joss) - - (27.172) (27,172)
Non-operating revenues (expenses);

Investment Income - - - -
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) - - - -
Income (loss) before transfers - - (27,172) (27,172)

Other Financing Sources (uses),

Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Change in net assets - - (27,172) (27,172)

Net assets, beginning of year 27172 27,472 27,172 -
Net agsets, and of year $ 27172 § 27,172 § -8 (27,172)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual

Union Sick Leave

Bank

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revenues:
Donations

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Selaries, wages and fringe benefits
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Varlance With

Budgated Amounts Flnal Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ - 8 - 8 38,503 § 38.503
- - 38,503 38.503

- - 73,810 (73,910)

- - 73,910 (73,910)

- - (35.407) (35.407)

- - (35,407) (35.407)

66,725 66,725 66,725 -

$ 86,725 § 66,725 § 31,318 § (35,407)
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Internal Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual

Santa Fe Dental

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating revanues:
Premiums
Other Revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Confractuat services and utilities
Insurance premiums
Claims and judgements
Other
Total oparating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenuas {axpanses):
Investment income

Total non-operating revenues (expanses)

Income (loss) before transfers

Other FInancing Sources {(uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Varlance With
Budgeted Amounts FInal Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

S 3 628,750 628,750
628,750 628,750
48,186 (48,186}
563,272 (563,272)
611,458 (811,458)
17,292 17,292
1,022 1,022
1,022 1,022
18,314 18,314
18,314 18,314
$ $ 18,314 18,314
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Comparative Schedule By Source
June 30, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Governmental Funds Capital Assets:
Land $ 169,562,174 $ 167,563,753
Buildings 54,376,522 43,413,765
Improvements 36,149,085 22,412,524
Equipment and machinery 15,763,529 15,246,727
Furniture and fixtures 831,196 579,702
Vehicles 20,238,503 19,504,714
Data processing and Software 11,670,462 11,237,037
Construction in progress 17,132,182 43,027,406
Art 922,920 922,020
Traffic Signals 23,222,048 22,188,486
Streets 191,454,881 178,509,865
Bridges 2,109,269 2,109,269
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 543,432,771 $ 527,616,168
Investment in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by sources:
General Fund 335,072,765 335,584,832
Special Revenue Funds 19,418,625 17,236,918
Capital Project Funds 178,341,898 164,194,935
Other Sources 9,875,360 9,875,380
Donations 724,123 724,123
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 543,432,771 $ 527,616,168

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
govemmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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CITY OF S8ANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Capital Assets Used In the Operatlon of Governmentat Funds
Schedule By Function and Activity

June 30,2010
Equipment Fumniture
and and
Function and Activity Land Buildings |mprovements Machinery Fixtures Vehicles
General Government:
City Manager 25,668,001 $ 28,358,090 § 5,403,806 s 119,009 - $ -
City Clerk - - - 286,843 22,241 56,850
Administrative Department 1.120,748 13.522 4,829,228
Planning - - - - 236,897 297,191
City Services 137,673,822 6,868,204 383,869 1,118,796 132,166 769,984
Total Genera! Government 163.341.823 36,026.294 5,787,775 2,6845.394 404,826 5.853.253
Publle Safely-
Police 5.570,721 3,184,968 135,334 383,550 6.156.639
Fire 10,418,176 - 2,418,491 55.016 2,628,629
Total Public Safety 15,986,897 3.184,968 2,551,825 418,566 8,785,268
Public Works:
Administration - 104,455 19,375,782 5.384,697 3,028 767,565
Total Public Works 104455 19,375,782 5,384,697 3.028 767,565
Community Welfare:
Community Develapment - .
Affordable Housing 840,000 - - - - -
Homan services 178,225 1,858,885 640,543 2,307,884 766,273
Tokal Community Watfare 1,018,225 1,858,895 840,543 2,307,884 765273
Cufture and Recrealion:
Parks and Grounds Maintenance 5,202,126 3,834 7,160,017 2,673,729 4,778 3,926,966
Arnts Commission - - - - - 40,178
Museums - 398,147 - - - .
Total Culture ard Recreation 5,202,128 399,381 7,160,017 2873729 4,778 3,987,144
Total governmental funds caplts § 169,562,174 $§ 5437552 $ 36,149,085 $ 15,763,529 831,196 $ 20,238,503

This schedule presents anly the capltal assel balances relatec

Accordingly, the capital agsats reported In Internal service funds are excduded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of intemal servi

govemnmental activities in the statement of nel assets.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Capltal Assets Used In the Operation of Governmantat Funds
Schedule By Function and Activity

June 30, 2010
Data Processing Constructlon
Eguipment in
and Software Progress Art Trafflc Signals Streets Bridges Total

$ 17,527 - S - N $ - $ $ 60,568,533
0,468 - - 375,402
8,345,503 341,031 - - 14,650,030
263,801 . - - - 797,888
1.165,202 1,099.000 - 149,011,043
9,801,501 1.440,031 - - 225,400,897
1,167,028 - - - 16,578,249
585,744 - 16,102,056
1.752.773 - - - 32,680,297
45,082 304277 22,964,533 191,454,881 2,109,268 242,513,567
45,082 304,277 - 22,864,533 191,454.881 2,708,269 242,513,567
- 1,900,504 - 1,900,504
- 752,944 N - 1,592,844
13,777 - - 5,764,597
13,777 2,653,448 - 9,258,045
2,689 12,714,033 B 257,515 - 32,142,667
54,660 - 922,920 - - 1,017,758
- 23,393 - - 419,540
57,320 12,734,426 922,920 257,515 - - 33,576,065
S 11,670.462 17,132,182 S 822,920 S 23,222,048 $ 191,454,881 $ 2,109,269 3 543,432,771

169



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes By Function and Activity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental Governmental
Funds Capital Funds Capital
Assets Assets
Function and Activity July 1, 2009 Additions Deletions June 30, 2010
General Government:
City Manager $ 59,098,987 $ 2,366,906 $ (899,360) $ 60,566,533
City Cierk 400,983 6,116 (31,697) 375,402
Administrative Departmant 14,164,488 609,523 (123,981) 14,850,030
Planning 797,889 - - 797,889
City Services 147,874,496 1,269,354 (132,807) 149,011,043
Total General Govarnment 222,336,843 4,251,899 (1,187,845) 225,400,897
Public Safety:
Police 14,818,798 6,575,742 (4,816,300) 16,578,241
Fire 15,227,246 4,512,963 (3,638,153) 16,102,056
Total Public Safety 30,046,045 11,088,705 (8,454,453) 32,680,297
Public Works:
Administration 240,225,373 24,939,070 (22,650,876) 242,513,567
Total Public Works 240,225,373 24,938,070 (22,850,876) 242,513,567
Community Welfare:
Community Devslopment 3,074,567 - (1,174,083) 1,900,504
Affordable Housing 292,339 1,300,605 - 1,582,944
Human Services 4,491,930 1,343,648 (70,982) 5,764,597
Total Community Welfare 7,858,836 2,644,254 (1,245,045) 9,258,045
Culture and Recreation:
Parks and Grounds Maint. 25,730,262 13,631,751 (7,219,346) 32,142,667
Arts Commission 1,017,758 - 1,017,758
Mussums 401,051 396,147 (377,658) 419,540
Total Culture ang Recreation 27,149,071 14,027,898 (7,597,004) 33,579,985
Total governmental funds
capital assets $ 527,616,168 $ 56,951,826 $ (41,135,223) $ 543,432,771

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of intemal setvice funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Discrete Component Units

The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority consists of proprietary funds that provide public
housing services within the City limits. The City is financially accountable for the
Housing Authority since it appoints a voting majority of its governing board and can
impose its will on the entity. The Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority is comprised of the
nine (major and non-major) programs listed below.

Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority — this proprietary fund accounts for the construction,
modemization and operations of housing for low-income families.

Capital Projects Fund — this fund is used to account for the activities of the
Comprehensive Grant federal program. This fund was created to assist with compliance
with Department of Housing and Development (HUD) requirements.

Santa Fe Housing Development Corporation — this proprietary fund accounts for the
100 units of housing occupied by elderly persons qualifying for assistance under Section
8 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937.

La Cieneguita Elderly Housing — this proprietary fund accounts for the 32 units of
housing occupied by elderly persons qualifying for assistance under section 202 of the
U.S. Housing Act of 1937.

Section 8 Housing Assistance Grants — this proprietary fund accounts for funds received
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for subsidizing low-
income housing.

Mainstream Voucher — this fund is used to account for the resources and expenditures
that are directly related to HUD’s Mainstream Voucher program.

Cielo Azul —is used to account for the activity of an affordable housing project purchased
in October 2004. The primary function is to house residents whose income is less than or
equal to 80% of the area’s median income.

Region II —1s used to account for the resources and expenditures that are directly related
to HUD’s Voucher program for Region II.

Mora County — is used to account for the resources and expenditures that are directly
related to HUD’s Voucher program for Mora County.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Component Unit - Enterprise

Combining Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash ang equlvalents
Cash, investments and equivalents-restricted
Tenant receivable
Federal grants receivable
Other receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Inventery

Total currant assets

Capital assets
Langd
Construction in process
Buildings & Improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment and machinery
Vehictes
Accumutated depreciation

Tota! capital assets (net of depreclation)

Loan issuance cost, net
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Tenant security deposits
Current portion of long term debt
Escrows and deposits
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Accrued Interest

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Notes payable
Bonds payabie
Due to other funds

Total noncurrent llabllitles

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets

SF Civic Housing

Housing Develepment La Section 8

Autharity Corporation Cieneguita Voucher
$ 1.641,404 § 3 2,330,663 $ 215,706 1,749.018
510,328 - - -
91,629 809 4,002 -
628,798 - - -
788,993 300,000 - 21,507
305,695 - - 1,504,514
80,706 9,134 5112 -
13.456 - - -
4,061,010 2,640.606 224,820 3,275.039
299,637 268.652 244,300 -
3,765,612 - - -
24,994,146 3,708,510 1473757 -
682,336 200.578 - -
191,553 2,907 4415 -
379,090 - - -
(17.091,848) (2,897.467) (330,014) -
13,220,426 1,283,180 1,382,458 -
- 82,269 - -
- 500.000 - -
17,281,436 4,506.055 1.817.278 3,275,038
245,858 6,500 49 60.000
181,353 - - -
56,080 14,343 5,306 -
500,000 63.032 - -
136,086 - - .
426,942 505,280 40,094 466,052
- - - 507,963
1,546.337 588.155 45,449 1,034,015
- 3,058,934 - -
- 3,058,934 - -
1,546,337 3,648,088 45,449 1.034.015
12,720,426 (1,838.788) 1.392.458 -
3.014.673 2,696,752 179,371 2,241,024
§ 15735.089 § $ B857.966 & 1,571,829 2,241,024




Clelo Regicn

Azul 1] Total
$ 139,402 § 377,817 § 6,454,010
- - 510,329
- - 96,440
- - 628,798
25,200 - 1,135,700
4,625 39,815 1,854,649
4,853 - 99,805
- - 13,456
174,080 417.632 10,793,187
300,000 30,000 1,142,589
- - 3,765,612
1,300,000 149,514 31,625,927
- - 882.914
- - 198,875
- - 379,080
(259.998) (18,956) (20.598,383)
1,340,002 160,558 17,398,624
- - 82,269
- 500.000
1,514,082 578,190 28,772,080
- - 312,408
- - 181,353
- - 75,739
211,506 6,408 781,038
- - 136,096
25 416,256 1,854,649
- - 507,963
211.621 422.664 3.848.241
638,352 90.762 3,788,048
500,000 - 500.000
1.138.352 90,762 4.288.048
1,348,973 513426 8,137,288
490,054 63.388 12.827.540
(325,845) 1,376 7,807,251
$ 184,109 $§ 64,764 § 20,634,791

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and equivalents
Cash, investments and equivalents-restricted
Tenant receivable
Federal grants receivable
Other recelivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

Total current assets

Capital assets
Lang
Construction in process
Buildings & Improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment and machinery
Vehicles
Accumulated depreciation

Total capltal assets (net of depreciation)

Loan issuance cost, net
Due from othes funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Acoounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Tenant security deposits
Current portion of long term debt
Escrows and deposits
Due to cther funds
Deferred revenue
Accrued interest

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabillties
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Due to other funds

Total noncurrent liablitles

Total liabllities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total nat assets
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enterprise
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
ang Changss in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Capital SF Civic Housing
Housing Projects Development La Section 8
Authority Fund Corporation Cieneguita Voucher
Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals $ 1,200,507 $ - $ 761,226 § 130,020 § -
HUD grant and subsidy 1,863,821 3,774,322 - - 7,148,070
Other revenue 247,119 - 28,406 9,424 13.383
Total operating revenues 3.311,447 3,774,322 789,632 139,444 7,161,453
Operating Expenses
Szlaries, wages and benefits 901,842 - 171,047 69,075 580,411
Community welfare 143,817 - - - 5,906,280
Contractual services and utilities 394,915 228,665 65.427 22,771 25,705
Repairs and maintenance 801,075 - 89,798 10,657 -
Depreciation expense 1,148,301 - 277,842 64,076 -
Insurance 121,054 - 24,010 6,607 -
Other 155,302 - 29,206 11,278 172,455
Total operating expenses 3,466,306 228,665 857,330 184,464 6,694,851
Ogperating income (154,859) 3,545,657 132,302 (45,020) 466,602
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest on investments 20,517 - 18,404 1,564 12,349
Interest expense - - (170,771) - -
State grants 440,627 - - - -
Loss on disposition of assets (1,826.499) - - - -
Operating transfers in 3,545,657 - - - -
Operating transfers out - (3.545.657) - - (50.000)
Total non-operating revenues
(expenses) 2,080,302 (3.545.657) (152,367) 1.564 (37.651)
Change in net assets 1,925,443 - (20,065) (43,456) 428,951
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year 13,809.656 - 878,031 1,615,285 2,272,294
Equity transfer - - - - (460,221)

Net assets (deficht), end of year $ 15735099 § - 8 857,966 & 1571.828 § 2,241,024
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enterprise
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cielo Region
Azul Il Total
Cperating Revenues
148,829 12218 § 2,252,801 Facilitles rentals
- - 12,786,213 HUD grant and subsigy
86.797 - 385,129 Other revenue
235,626 12,218 15,424,143 Total operating reveanues
Cperating Expenses
- - 1,732,375 Salades, wages ang benefits
- - 6,050,097 Community welfars
24,650 3.030 765,163 Contractual services and utilities
5,306 1,773 708,609 Repairs and maintenance
43,333 7,476 1,541,028 Depreciation expense
42,406 813 194,890 tnsurance
6,608 2,616 377,465 Other
122,303 15,708 11,369,627 Total operating expenses
113,323 (3,489) 4,054 516 Operating income
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
4,733 1747 59,314 Interest on investments
(17,912) (5,315) (193,098)  Interest expense
- - 440,627 State grants
- - (1,926,499)  Loss on dispositon of assets
50,000 - 3,595,657 Operating transfers in
- - (3,585,657)  Operating transfers out
Total non-operating revenues
36,821 (3,568) (1,620,558) (expenses)
150,144 (7,057) 2,433,960 Change in net assets
13,865 71,821 18,661,052 Net assets (deficit), beginning of year
- - (460,221) Equity transfer
164,109 64,764 $ 20,634,791 Net assets (deflclt), end of year
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enlecprise
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Capital SF Civic Housing
Housing Projects Development La Section 8
Authority Fung Corporation Cienequita Voucher

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash received from customers ang grantors $ 2,708280 8 3774322 & 360,302 § 135068 $& 7,139,946
Cash payments to suppllers for goods and services (1,904,829} (228,665) (200,199) {31,458} (6,348.,750)
Cash payments to employees for services (899,245} - (226,672) (69.075) (590.411)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activitles 704,206 3,545,657 (66.569) 34,535 200,745
Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
Acquisition and construciion of capital assets (4.266,820) - - - -
Net cash used by capltal financing activitles (4,266,820} - - - -
Cash Flows Irom Noncagilal Financing Activities
Cash transfers (to) from other funds 3,646.321 (3,545,657) - - {50,000)
Proceeds form long term debt 500,000 - 2,691,855 - -
Principal paid on debt maturlities - - (2,203,034) - -
Interest peid on debl - - (170.771) -
Net cash used by noncapital financing actlvities 4,146,321 (3.545,657) 318,050 - (50,000)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Loans made lo other entilies 440,627 - - - 324,671
Inlerest and dividends on investments 20.517 - 18,404 1,564 12,348
Net cash provided by Investing activities 461,144 - 18,404 1.564 337,020
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 1,044,851 - 269,885 36.099 487,765
Cash ang cash equivalenis at beginning of year 1,106,882 - 2.060,778 179,607 1,261,253
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $§ 2151733 % - § 2330663 $ 215706 $ 1,749,018
Reconciliation of operating income to nei
cash provided by operating aclivilies
Operating income $ (154,859) S 3541655 $ 132,302 % (45,020) $ 466,602
Adjustments to reconcile operaiing income lo
net cash provided by operating activities
Oepreciation/amortization 1,148,301 - 277842 64,076 -
Change in assets and liabilities
Acoounis receivable (646,334) - (298,554) (4.002) {21,507}
Prepaid expenses (362) - 3.283 {(1.311) -
Due from other funds 185,914 - - - (276,751)
Accounts payable 155,782 - 4,959 49 60,000
Accrued interest - 4,002 (55,625) - -
Escrow and deposits 39.996 - - -
Compensated absences payable 2,597 - - -
Deposits (20,184) - (1,297} - -
Due 10 other funds 23,355 - (129.479) 21,117 (27.599)
Deferred revenues - - - (374) -
Total adjustments 858.085 4.002 (198.871) 78,555 (265.857)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities _$ 704,206 $ 3545657 § (66,569) 3 34535 § 200.745
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enterprise
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Cielo Region
Azl 1l Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
$ 233,792 $ 12,219 § 14,363,929 Cash received from customers ang grantors
(79.845) (8.047) (8,001,633} Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
- - (1,785,403} Cash payments to employees for secvices
154,147 4,172 4,576,893 Net cash provided {used) by operating activities
Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
(4,266.820) Acquisition and construction of caplital assets
- - {4.266,820) Net cash used by capital financlng activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Aclivities
50,000 - 100,664 Cash transfers (to) from other funds
- - 3,191,855 Proceeds form long term debt
(557.050) 5.771) {2,765,855)  Principal paid on debt maturities
156.888 (5.315) (19.198) Interest paid on debt
(360.162) {11,086) 507.466 Net cash used by nongapital financing activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
- - 765,298 Capital contributions
4.733 1.747 59.314 Interest and dividends on investments
4,733 1,747 824,612 Net cash provided by Investing activities
Net Increase (decrease) In cash and
(191.282) (5,167) 1,642,151 cash equivalents
330.684 382.984 5,322,188 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
3 138,402 3 377,817 & 6,964,339 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Reconciliation of operating Income 10 net
cash provided by operating aclivities
3 113323 § (3,489) $§ 4,050,514 Operating income
Adjustments to reconclle operating income to
net cash provided by opersting activities
43,333 7,476 1,641,028 Depreciation/amortizzation
Change in assets and liabilities
(1.834) - (972,231) Acoounts receivable
(573) - 1,037 Prepald expensss
(127) 183 (120,779) Due from other funds
- - 220,790 Accounts payable
- - (51,623) Accrued interest
- - 39,996 Escrow and deposits
- - 2,697 Compensated absences payable
- - (21,481) Deposits
25 - (112,581) Due to other funds
- - (374) Deferred revenues
40,824 7.661 528,379 Total adjustments
$ 154,147 § 4172 § 4,576,883 Net cash provided (used) by operating actlvities
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enterprise
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Housing Authority
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating Revenues
Facilities renials
HUD grants and subsidy
Other operating revenues

Total gperating revenues

Operating Expenses
Operating
Community welfare
Uulities
Repairs and maintenance
General
Nonroutine Expenditures
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operaling income (loss)
Non-operating Revenue
Operating transfers in
Swune Grants
Loss on dispositon of assets
Interest on {nvestments
Insurance reimbursement
Total non-operating revenues
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net nssets, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Positive
Ongigal Final Actual Amount (Negative)

$ 1,320000 S 1,320,000 S 1,200,507 (119,493)

1,648,570 1,648,570 1,863,821 215,251
612,000 612.000 247.119 (364.881)
3.580.570 3.580.570 3311447 (269.123)

545875 545,875 368,602 177,273

283,000 283,000 229,900 53,100

382,320 382,320 373,602 8,718

975,030 975,030 923,769 51,261
389,340 389,340 422,132 (32,792)
78.030 878,050 1,148.301 (270.251)
2,653,613 3453618 3.466.306 (12.691)
926955 126,555 (154.859) (281.814)

- 3,545,657 3,545,657

- - 440,627 440,627
- - (1,926,499) (1,926,499)

9,000 9,000 20,517 11,517

9,000 9.000 2,030,302 2,071,302

935,955 135,958 1,925,443 1,789,488
14,738,342 14738342 13.809.656 (928,686)

S 15674297 % 14,874,297 § 15.735,099 860,802

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enterprise
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Positive
Onginal Final Actual Amount (Negative)

Operating Revenues
Intergovernmenta) § 515,790 % 5,151,790 § 3774322 § (1,377,468)
Interest income - - - -

Total operating revenues 5,151,790 5,151,790 3,774,322 (1,377,468)

Operating Expenses

Repairs and mainteneance 323,500 323,500 228,665 94,835
Total operating expenses 323,500 323,500 228,665 94,835
Operating income (loss) 4,828,290 4,828,290 3,545,657 (1,282,633)

Non-operating Revenue
Operatipg transfers in -
Operating transfers out (4,828,290) (4,828,290) (3,545,657) 1,282,633

Total non-operating revenues (4,828,250) (4,828,290) (3,545,657) 1,282 633

Change in net assets - - - -

Net gssets, beginping of year - - - -

Net assets, end of year 3 - 3 - 8 - $ -

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pars of this siaiement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

Component Unit - Enterprise
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual

Santa Fe Housing Development Corporation

For the Year Ended Juoe 30, 2010

Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses
Operating

Contractual services and utilites
Repairs and maintenance

General

[nsurance

Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Non-operating Revenue

Interest on investments

[nterest expense
Total non-operating revenues
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pari of this statement.

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budget Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amount (Negative)

$ 750,000 § 750,000 § 761,226 11,226
15,800 15,800 28,406 12,606

765.800 765,800 789,632 23,832

218,600 218,600 111,720 106,880

89,000 89,000 65,426 23,574

173,000 173,000 127,033 45,967

81,000 81,000 75,511 5,489

300,000 300,000 277,640 22,360

861,600 861,600 657,330 204,270

(95,800) (95,800) 132,302 228,102
20,000 20,000 18,404 (1,596)
(110,000) (110.000) (170,771) (60,771)

(90,000) (90,000) (152,367) (62,367)

(185,800) (185,800) (20,065) 165,735

878,031 §78.031 878,031 -

$ 692,231 § 692,231 § 857.966 165,735

179



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enterprise
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Lz Cienegulta
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Varance with

Final Budget -
Budget Araounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amount (Negative)
Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals 3 125,000 § 125,000 § 130,020 5,020
Other operating revenues 100 100 9,424 9,324
Total operating revenues 125,100 125,100 139,444 14,344
Operating Expenses
Operating 39,000 39,000 39,865 (865)
Community welfare 1,200 1,200 1,000 200
Contractual services and utilities 19,600 19,600 15,666 3,934
Repairs and maintenance 50,700 50,700 36,562 14,138
Depreciation 70,000 70,000 64,076 5,924
Genveral 27,000 27,000 27295 (295)
Total operating expenses 207,500 207,500 184,464 23,036
Operating income (loss) (82,400) (82,400) (45,020) 37,380
Non-operating Revenue
Interest op investments 4,000 4,000 1,564 (2,436)
Change in net assets (78.400) (78,400) (43,456) 34,944
Net assets, beginning of year 1,615,285 1,615,285 1,615,285 -
Net assets, end of year $ 1.536,885 § 1,536,885 § 1,571,829 34,944

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enterprise
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Sectiop 8 Voucher
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amount (Negative)
Operating Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 6,660,000 § 6,660,000 § 6,814,620 $ 154,620
Interest income 20,000 20,000 8.704 (13,296)
Other Revenue 2,000 2,000 13,383 11,383
Total operating revenues 6,682,000 6,682,000 6,836,707 154,707
Operating Expenses
Operating - - - -
Contractual Services - - - -
Community welfare 6,571,000 6,571,000 6,417,392 153,608
General - - - -
Insurance - - - -
Total operating expenses 6.571,000 6,571,000 6,417,392 153,608
Operating income (loss) 111,000 111,000 419,315 308,315
Non-operating Revenue
Transfers out (50,000) (50.000) (50,000) -
Port-in HAP reimbursement 300,000 300,000 304,669 4,669
Prt-admin fees 30,000 30,000 28,782 (1,218)
Port HAP (300,000) (300,000) (310,976) (10,976)
Change in net assets 91,000 91,000 391,790 300,790
Net assets, beginning of year 1,808,438 1,808,438 1,808,438 -
Unbudgeted equity transfer - - (460,221) (460,221)
Net assets, end of year $§ 1,809438 § 1,899,438 § 1,740,007 § (159,431)

The notes 1o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SANTA. FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unit - Enterprise
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets Budget and Actual
Cielo Azul
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating Revenues
Facilities rentals
Other operating revenues

Total eperating revenues

Operating Expenses
Operating
Contractual services and utilities
Repairs and maintenance
General
[nsurance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (Joss)
Non-operating Revenue

Transfers in

Interest on investments

Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues
Change In net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budget Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amount (Negative)

$ 140,000 § 140,000 3 148,829 § 8,829
- - 86,797 86,797

140,000 140,000 235,626 95,626
4,000 4,000 6,608 (2,608)

15,500 15,500 24,650 (9.150)
22,000 22,000 5,306 16,694
11,000 11,000 - 11,000
- - 42,406 (42,406)

50.000 50,000 43,333 6,667
102,500 102,500 122,303 (19,803)
37,500 37.500 113,323 75,823
50,000 50,000 50,000 "

- - 4733 4,733

(35,000) (35,000) (17,912) 17,088
15,000 15,000 36,821 21,821
52,500 52,500 150,144 07,644
13,965 13,965 13,965 -

$ 66,465 § 66,465 § 164,109 § 97,644

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Component Unjt - Enterprise
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes In Net Assets Budget and Actual
Region I1 Voucher
For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Vanance with

The notes (o the Financial Statements ave an integral part of this statement.

Fina! Budget -
Budget Amounts Positive
Qriginal Fina) Actual Amount (Negative)
Operating Revenues
Rental Incom $ 180 § 180 § 12,219 § 12,039
Interest income - - - -
Total operating revenues 180 180 12,219 12,039
Operating Expenses
Current

Operating 4,000 4,000 2,616 1,384
Comwunity welfare - . - -
Contractual services and utilities 4,000 4,000 3,030 970
Other - - - .
Repairs and maintenance 3,000 3,000 1,773 1,227
Insurance 1,500 1,500 813 687
Depreciation 15,000 15,000 7,476 7,524
Total operating expenses 27.500 27.500 15,708 11,792
Operating income (loss) (27,320) (27,320) (3,489) 23,831

Non-operating Revenue
Interest on investments 500 500 1,747 1,247
Interest expense (6,000) (6,000) (5.315) 685
Total non-operating revenues (5,500) (5.500) (3,568) 1,932
Change in net assets (32,820) (32,820} (7,057) 25,763
Net assets, beginning of year 71,821 71,821 71,82) -
Net assets, end of year $ 39,001 s 39,001 § 64,764 $ 25,763
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
STATISTICAL SECTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

This part of the City of Santa Fe statistical comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the city’s
overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the city's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedulas contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting
the city’s ability to generate its gross receipts tax.

Debt Capaclty
These schedules present information to help the reader the affordability of the city’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the city’'s ability to issue additional debt in
the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader under-
stand the environment within which the city’s financial activities take place and to help
make comparisons over time and with other governments.

Operating information
These schedules contain information about the city’s operations and resources to help
the reader understand how the city’s financial information relates to the services the
the city provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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TABLE V

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS, IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Personal

Year Real Property Property Estimated Exemptions Total Total Ratio of Total
Ended Assessed Estimated Assessed Actual Real Assessed  Estimated Assessed to Total

June 30 Value Actual Value  Valye Valus Property Value Actual Valuve Estimated

2001 1,836,438 5,809,895 67,293 201,899 24175 1,979,555 5,944,610 33.3%
2002 2,026,036 6,084,182 71,447 214,556 24,087 2,073,426 6,226,505 33.3%
2003 2,141.583 6,431,180 68,192 204,780 29,839 2,178,836 6.458,054 33.3%
2004 2,338,417 7,022,273 70,807 212,934 33,767 2,375,557 7,133,805 33.3%
2005 2,587,264 7,769,562 71,734 215,417 36,567 2,622,431 7,875,168 33.3%
2008 2,849,552 8,657,213 78,279 235,072 38,889 2,888,942 8,675,502 33.3%
2007 3,138,480 8,424,865 72,456 217,586 398,751 3,171,185 9,523,081 33.3%
2008 3,315,706 9,957,075 175,280 526,985 39,987 3,450,998 10,383,360 33.3%
2009 3,508,494 10,530,012 67,798 203,598 68,934 3,505,358 10,526,601 33.3%
2010 3,632,556 10,908,577 62,630 187,913 67,679 3,627,507 10,893,414 33.3%

Note: The New Mexico State constitution regulates areas of property tax. The assassed valuation is
set at 33 1/3% of markst valuation by New Mexico statutes.

Source: Santa Fe County Assessor’s Office
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TABLE VI

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
BOTH RESIDENTIAL AND NON-RESIDENTIAL
PROPERTY TAX RATES PER $1,000 ASSESSED VALUATION
ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
RESIDENTIAL
Tax Year Santa Fe Total
Ended School  Community Residential
June 30 City State County District College Tax Levy
2001 0.472 1.765 5.543 7.544 3.346 18.670
2002 0.468 1.123 5.360 7.578 3.318 17.847
2003 0.454 1.520 5917 7.488 3.264 18.643
2004 0.459 1.028 5.624 7.162 3.221 17.494
2005 0.440 1.234 6.319 7.022 4.046 19.061
2008 1.033 1.291 6.147 6.999 2.220 17.690
2007 1.026 1.221 6.282 6.960 3.119 18.608
2008 1.516 1.250 6.476 6.982 3.160 19.384
2009 1.595 1.150 6.600 7.038 3.238 19.619
2010 1.772 1.530 6.570 7.040 3.220 20.132

NON-RESIDENTIAL

Tax Year Santa Fe  Total Non-

Ended School Community Residential
June 30 City State County District College Tax Levy

2001 1.234 1.765 9.438 7.781 4.046 24.264
2002 1.268 1.123 0.648 7.798 4.046 23.883
2003 1.292 1.520 10.608 7.803 4.046 25.269
2004 1.266 1.028 10.868 7.440 4.046 24.648
2005 1.284 1.234 11.824 7.443 4.046 25.831
2006 1.901 1.201 11.835 7.269 4.046 26.442
2007 1.645 1.221 11.856 7.237 4.030 26.289
2008 2.459 1.250 12.500 7.247 4.046 27.502
2009 2.856 1.150 13.780 7.310 4.046 29.142
2010 3.247 1.530 13.723 7.350 4.015 29.865

Source: New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, Local Government Division
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TABLE VI

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
PRINGIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

(UNAUDITED)
2010 2000
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total City Total City
Assessed Taxable Taxable Taxable
Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Assessed Value Rank Asessed Value
Public Service New Mexico $ 117,749,732 1 325% § 33,303,855 2 1.82%
Qwest/ U.S. West 65,708,696 2 1.81% 64,083,640 1 3.50%
Singleton Properties 47,882,302 3 1.32% - - -
NM Gas Company 46,725,046 4 1.29% 15,724,364 6 0.86%
B & B Santa Fe Mall LLC 36,725,044 5 1.01% 19,338,678 4 1.06%
Truzaf Ltd. Partnership 33,717,436 6 0.93% - - -
Wal-Mart 28,209,389 7 0.78% - - -
Encantado LTD 26,303,770 8 0.73% - - -
La Posada 18,500,000 9 0.51% - -
De Vargas Mall 20,500,000 10 0.57% - - -
El Dorado Partnership - - - 18,294,500 5 1.00%
La Fonda Hotel - - - 12,714,390 8 0.70%
St. Vincent Hospital - - - 20,000,000 3 1.09%
IBM Credit Corporation - - - 13,274,887 7 0.73%
Meadows Apariments - . - 10,871,084 9 0.59%
Shadowridge Apartments - - - 10,169,778 10 0.56%
Total $ 442,021,415 12.18% § 217.776,156 11.91%

Source: Santa fe County Assessor's Office
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TABLE X

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GROSS RECEIPTS TAX RATES
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
City
Fiscal Direct Santa Fe
Year Rate County
2002 6.44% 5.88%
2003 6.69% 6.13%
2004 6.69% 6.13%
2005 7.31% 6.25%
2006 7.63% 6.31%
2007 7.63% 6.31%
2008 7.94% 6.63%
2009 7.94% 6.38%
2010 8.06% 6.50%

Source: New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Departmant
Note: The city gross receipts tax rate may be changed
only with the approval of the state legislature.

Note: GASB 34 Implemented 2002
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TABLE XI

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED REVENUES

FISCAL YEAR 2009 AND 2010
(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Year
2009 2010
0.05% Municipal Gross Receipts Tax (GRT) revenues $ 14,963,291 14,145,489
MGRT Infrastructure revenues 1,848,786 1,747,049
MGRT Environmental revenues 1,850,077 1,747,319
State shared GRT revenues 37,407,649 35,693,466
TOTAL $ 56,069,803 § 53,333,323
CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
SCHEDULE OF GROSS RECEIPTS TAX REVENUES
FISCAL YEAR 2009 AND 2010
(UNAUDITED)
Fiscal Year
2009 2010
Municipal general GRT (Including Capital Improvements) $ 20926581 $ 28,290,978
Infracture revenues 7,395,863 6,988,195
MGRT revenues 7,481,645 7,072,744
Environmental revenues 1,850,077 1,747,319
State-shared GRT revenues 37,407 649 35,693,466
Water Capital Outlay 7.356,853 6,957,221
TOTAL $ 091,418,668 $ 86,749,023

Source: City of Santa Fe Cash Management and
Investment Officer
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TABLE Xl

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE
AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
GENERAL FUND EQUITY DEBT
Ratio of
Total General Amount Net Long Net
Obligation  Available Term Debt General
Fiscal Year Debt Debt To Long Term
Ended Outstanding  Service Net Bonded Assessed Debt Per
June 30 Population’ Assessed Value? June 30 Fund Debt Value Capita
2001 63,000 1,979,555,408 - - - ~ -
2002 63,500 2,073,426,259 - - - - -
2003 64,700 2,179,835,636 - - - - -
2004 65,800 2,375,557,803 - - - - -
2005 66,500 2,622,431,696 - - - - -
2006 68,359 2,888,942,909 - - - - -
2007 69,142 3,171,185,528 - - - - -
2008 (3) 69,961 3,450,998,939 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 0.58% 286
2009 70,661 3,505,357,810 20,000,000 1,538,860 18,461,040 0.57% 261
2010 67,947 3,627,507,187 19,400,000 2,003,936 17,396,064 0.53% 256

7 Estimated population figures for 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2008, 2007, 2008
and 2009 were provided by the City of Santa Fe Planning Department staff. Estimated
population figures for 2010 were provided by US Census Bureau.

2 Assessment are made by the elected Santa Fe County Assessor. Assessment are made
each year in January. Amounts represent thirty-three and one-third percent of market value
as set by state statute.

3 The City issued its first general obligation debt in 28 years on June 10, 2008
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TABLE XII

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES
FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT
TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

RATI|O OF DEBT
TOTAL SERVICE TO

Ff;{: PRINCIPAL INTEREST SE:\?II‘.E GENERAL FUND GENERAL
EXPENDITURE GOVERNMENTAL
EXPENDITURES
2008 $ - 8 -3 - 8 - 0.00%
2009 - 541,860 541,860 68,683,865 0.0079
2010 600,000 829,457 1,429,457 67,956,485 0.0210

The City of Santa Fe issued its first general obligation bond in 28 years on June 10, 2008
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TABLE XIV

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
JUNE 30, 2010
(UNAUDITED)

Genecal Percentage
Obligation as of Applicable to City City of Santa Fe
June 30, 2010 of Santa Fe Share of Debt
State of New Mexico $ 398,580,000 6.44% $ 25,668,552
City of Santa fe 18,400,000 100.00% 19,400,000
Santa Fe County 176,512,507 52.78% 93,163,301
Santa Fe Public Schools 109,025,000 57.03% 62,176,958
Santa Fe Community College 23,300,000 57.03% 13,287,990
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 213,696,801
Ratios:
Total direct and overlapping debt to assessed 5.89%

valuation for tax year 2010 $3,627,507,187

Direct and overlapping debt 1.96%
to actual valuation of $10,893,414,976

Direct and overlapping debt per capita of 67,947 $ 3,145
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TABLE XVI

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
PLEDGED- REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Refuse System Bonds

Net Revenue

Less: Avalilable for
Fiscal Gross Operating Debt Debt Service
Year Revenues Expensas Service Principal Interest Coverage
2001 7,217,858 6,972,029 245,829 845,000 204,603 0.23
2002 7,686,945 6,407,879 1,279,066 855,000 173,020 1.24
2003 9,168,144 7,318,927 1,854,217 975,000 130,176 1.68
2004 8,758,678 7,389,506 1,369,172 830,000 79,800 1.50
2005 9,002,479 7,568,713 1,433,766 775,000 38,750 1.76
2006 9,586,034 8,177,846 1,408,188 - - -
2007 - - - - - -
2008 - - - - - -
2009 - - - - - -
2010 - - - - - -
Water Refunding Bonds
Net Revenue
Less: Available for
Fiscal Gross Operating Debt Debt Service
Year Revenues Expenses Service Principal (nterest Coverage _
2001 22,525,336 14,825,552 7,699,784 2,560,000 4,313,082 1.12
2002 28,391,646 9,782,972 18,608,674 2,680,000 4,197,892 2.71
2003 30,603,150 12,980,867 17,622,283 2,805,000 4,074,612 2.56
2004 28,068,292 16,399,297 11,668,995 2,935,000 3,942,778 1.70
2005 25,672,488 16,891,351 8,781,137 3,170,000 3,707,978 1.28
2006 27,989,331 16,124,320 11,865,011 3,425,000 3,454,378 1.72
2007 30,092,304 18,063,030 12,029,274 3,695,000 3,548,049 1.66
2008 30,583,912 17,138,584 13,445,328 3,995,000 2,725,818 2.00
2009 26,473,819 18,182,591 8,291,228 2,105,000 2,408,218 1.84
2010 32,456,123 20,144,274 12,311,849 2,185,000 2,316,756 2.73
Municipal Recreation Complex Bonds
Net Revenue
Less: Available for
Fiscal Gross Operating Debt Debt Service
Year Revenues Expensas Service Principal Interest Coverage
2001 3,244,066 1,190,557 2,053,508 335,000 1,014,747 1.52
2002 2,316,542 727,534 1,589,008 465,000 896,190 1.09
2003 2,288,481 740,862 1,547,619 495,000 973,632 1.05
2004 2,433,487 817,025 1,616,472 515,000 948,227 1.10
2005 2,392,543 1,740,581 651,962 545,000 923,133 0.44
2006 2,280,039 1,578,402 701,637 580,000 894,988 0.48
2007 2,097,707 1,583,318 514,389 670,000 606,128 0.40
2008 2,382,508 1,533,264 849,244 705,000 579,328 0.66
2009 2,661,658 1,564,447 1,087,211 735,000 554,652 0.85
2010 2,188,038 1,438,896 749,142 760,000 528,928 0.58
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TABLE XVIII

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

(UNAUDITED)
Personal Per
Income Capita
(thousands Personal Unempioyment

Year Population of dollars) Income Rate

2001 63,000 1,651,734 26,218 3.60%
2002 63,500 1,714,754 27,004 3.80%
2003 84,700 1,799,566 27,814 4.30%
2004 65,800 1,885,104 28,649 4.30%
2005 66,500 1,962,282 29,508 4.50%
2006 68,359 2,103,816 30,776 3.50%
2007 69,142 2,191,041 31,689 3.10%
2008 69,961 2.276,851 32,546 3.30%
2009 70,681 2,322,698 32,871 6.70%
2010 67,947 2,022,238 29,762 5.60%

Source: The City of Santa Fe's Planning Department

POPULATION:

YEAR CITY COUNTY STATE
2001 63,000 130,915 1,829,146
2002 63,500 134,525 1,855,058
2003 64,700 138,000 1,874,614
2004 65,800 144,000 1,903,289
2005 66,500 144,000 1,928,384
2006 68,359 144,808 1,854,599
2007 69,142 146,295 1,964,402
2008 69,961 147,781 1,984,356
2008 70,861 149,870 2,008,871
2010 67,947 144,170 2,058,179

Source: Estimated poputation figures for 2000, 2001,2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006,2007
and 2009 were provided by the City of Santa Fe Planning Dept. Staff.
Estimates for State for State population for 2000-2010 were provided by the
Bureau of Business and Economic Research and U.S. Census

AGE PROFILE:

UNITED

AGE Iy STATE _ STATES

019 20.80% 2820%  26.90%

20-34 17.60% 19.90%  20.30%

35-44 12.60% 12.10% 13.30%

45-54 14.60% 14.10% 14.60%

565+ 34.40% 25.70% __ 24.90%

100.00% 100.00%  100.00%

Source: Age profile for, "State and United States,” U.S. Department of Commerce released
December 2010.

(Continued)
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TABLE XVIII

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

INCOME PROFILE:

HOUSEHOLD INCOME DISTRIBUTION, SANTA FE COUNTY, 2000:

NUMBER OF PERCENT OF
INCOME $ HOUSEHOLDS HOUSEHOLDS

Under 10,000 i787 5%
10,000 to 14,999 3.157 8%
15,000 to 24,999 8.573 12%
25,000 to 34,999 6.834 13%
35,000 to 43,999 8,863 17%
50,000 to 74,999 0.672 18%
75.000 to 89,000 5.771 11%
100,000 and more 6,824 13%
Total Househotds 52,481 100%

The table above sets forth Income Profile based on the 2000 U.S. Census Bureau for 2000.

The table below sets forth the per-capita income, based on the total gross income divided
by population, for Santa Fe County, the State of New Mexico and the United States.

CALENDAR SANTA FE STATE OF NEW  UNITED
YEAR COUNTY MEXICO STATES
1989 29,346 20.920 27,859
2000 29,949 21,831 29,469
2001 31,568 23,081 30,413
2002 32,932 24,730 30,795
2003 32,378 24,903 31,487
2004 36,095 26,184 33,080
2005 37,934 28,042 34,685
2008 38,854 29,929 36,714
2007 40,020 31,474 38,611
2008 41,221 33.019 39,769

Source: Bureau of Business & Economic Research, UNM 2009 and 2010 information not avaitable

(Continued)
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TABLE XVIII

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

(UNAUDITED)

PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT ENROLLMENT

The Santa Fe Public School District consists of 21 elementary schools (which includes kindergarden),

4 mid-high schools, and 2 high schools.

PRE-

YEAR KINDERGARTEN 1-6 7-12 ESS(E:?T‘:(ISN TOTAL
KINDERGARTEN
2001 1,011 6,860 5,507 0 13,378
2002 1,015 6,879 5,198 0 13,098
2003 1,094 8,745 6,626 0 13,465
2004 1,056 6,819 5,682 0 13,557
2005 1,292 6,770 5,673 0 13,735
2006 1,269 6.796 5,675 0 13,740
2007 1,241 8,850 5,274 0 13,365
2008 1,216 6,947 5,395 0 13,558
2009 1,164 7,061 5,366 0 13,691
2010 1,256 7.157 5,271 0 13,684
The NM Department of Education no longer separately reports special education for public school.
Source; New Mexico Department of Education
PRIVATE SCHOOL DISTRICT ENROLLMENT-ASSESS EVALUATION UNIT
Santa Fe has 27 private and/or parochial schools, grades 1-12.
SPECIAL
YEAR KINDERGARTEN 1-6 7-12 EDUCATION TOTAL
2000 228 874 1,894 1 3,097
2001 263 868 1,700 0 2,831
2002 222 872 2,258 0 3,352
2003 275 847 2,244 0 3,366
2004 216 805 2,283 0 3.284
2005 188 820 2,379 0 3,387
2006 150 808 1,600 0 2,558
2007 195 859 1,643 0 2,697
2008 482 875 2,379 0 3,736
2009 304 835 2,326 0 3,555
2010 370 827 2,254 0 3,451
Source: New Mexico Department of Education
{Continued)
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TABLE Xvil!

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

(UNAUDITED)
HIGHER EDUCATION ENROLLMENT
Santa Fe .

School Year  College of Santa Community St. Johns  UNM Graduate  Institute of

Ending Fe College College Center indian Arts
2000 1,788 5,078 528 173 130
2001 2,392 8421 516 118 146
2002 2,369 8,535 467 118 194
2003 2,520 8,756 444 82 199
2004 2,565 8,747 450 15 182
2005 2,543 8,592 463 34 231
2008 2,576 8,537 473 40 239
2007 2,614 8,961 473 50 337
2008 2,121 9,039 483 33 270
2008 931 9,393 473 89 325
2010 268 9,798 463 Not Avail. 442

Source: Individual Institutions
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TABLE XIX

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION PERMITS AND UTILITY CONNECTIONS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

CONSTRUCTION PERMITS?

CALENDAR PROPERTY
YEAR VALUE' ISSUED VALUE
2001 3,616,542,015 5,209 164,772,016
2002 3,780,882,996 6,392 154,817,427
2003 4,053,243,194 6,006 135,332,034
2004 4,374,594,705 6,722 160,606,719
2005 4,887,341,479 6,871 487,596,832
2006 5,405,014,766 7,076 249,530,361
2007 6,074,890,747 6,224 213,697,011
2008 6,550,808,648 4,925 142,844,833
2009 6,736,975,380 3,864 136,960,866
2010 6,890,742,053 3,870 125,204,260

Utility Connections

CALENDAR WATER ELECTRIC
YEAR METERS® METERS*  GAS METERS®
2001 28,803 58,503 40,489
2002 31,477 60,515 41,968
2003 31,615 62,330 42,599
2004 33,734 64,199 43,876
2005 35,287 66,124 45,192
2006 36,169 68,107 46,547
2007 37,073 70,150 47,943
2008 37,991 72,254 49,381
2009 39,131 74,422 50,862
2010 39,393 76,654 52,387

Source:

! Santa Fe County Assessor: Value of property on which taxes

are assessed.

2 City of Santa Fe Building Inspectors Office.

% Sangre De Cristo Water Division

* Public Service Company of New Mexico

® New Mexico Gas Company
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TABLE XX

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS

SANTA FE METROPOLITAN AREA

JUNE 30, 2010
(UNAUDITED)
APPROXIMATE
TYPE OF NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
EMPLOYER BUSINESS EMPLOYEES '

State of New Mexico Govemment 8,443 12.1%
Santa Fe School District Education 1,850 2.4%
U.S. Federal Government Govemment 1,750 2.2%
City of Santa Fe Govemment 1,719 2.2%
St. Vincent Hospital Medical 1,450 1.9%
Santa Fe County Government 815 1.0%
Santa Fe Community College Education 717 0.9%
Santa Fe Opera Entertainment 650 0.8%
College of Santa Fe Education 564 0.7%
Santa Fe Ski Company Recreation 437 0.6%
Totals 19,395 24.8%

'These parcentages are based on a total civilian labor force (Santa Fe County) of 78,148
from the New Mexico Dapitment of Labor for 2010.
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TABLE XXl

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE
June 30, 2010

(Unawghea)
Coverage Annual
\rsurance CamerDezeription Paficy # Tem Limits Premlum Deductbie Misoelfanedus
| Clty of Santa Fe Self Insurarice
A Worker's Ccmpensaticn Jut 0% - Jun 30 Maximum henefits under lew $800,862 5400.000 (Medical and Indemnlty)
d Group Heakh Insurance unlimaed §13,862,924
Il. Midweel Employers Casuality Gumpsny
Excess Werker's Ccmpensaton SP-9339-NM July 1+ Jure 30 Statutery limit $107.976 3400.000 Seli-Insured Retentlon
Ill. St. Paul lnsuranca Cornpany.
Publlc Entity Pacxage GROBI0141d July 1 - une 30 $1.939,929
A Fublic Bri'dirg Gontents/Pers. Prop $260,000,000 $76.€00
B. Genersl diaility Aggregsate 33 millien, $50,L00 SoMnsured Retenton
$1,050,C00 fort firmit
C. Forelgn Jurisdiction $1,050,000 §50,000 Self-insured Retentidn
D. Auto Llabllity $1,050,000 §50,000
E. Aulo Physical Damage Actual Cash Value $25,000 SeX-Insured Retenticn
F. Heslthca-e Prefesslonal $1,089,000 $50,000
G. Inl3nd Mzrine Varlcus $25,000
H. Law Enforcemnent $4,065,000 3326.461 $50,069
1. Public Offcials & Employiment Practices $4,060,009 $96.674 $100.650
V. Travelers Inde 7 nity Campany
BailepMacnery BAJEMRIIRNESEQTI.07 duly 1+ June 30 $10.¢90.0¢5 $28.458 $5.600
Hazargous Substance $100.600
Water Darmage $100,000
Arnmanla Contamminayon $100,000
Expeulting Expenses $100,000
Ordinance of Law $500.000
V. The Haord Insurance Company
A. Cnime (TD&D - Maney & Securties) 5SBPEDKS427 July 1 - lune 30 3100,000 §3.152 $5,000
B. €mployew Dizhonesty S4BPEDKR42Y Juiy 1 - Iune 30 §500,000 35,711 $5,000
V1. HUB Intsmabonal
A Ace Property & Cauuaity Insurance Company
Alrpent Genesal Liablilty AAPNOQS7367A Juty 1 - June 3d $20,000,000 314,900 $2.560
VII. Ing Benefits {RehaStar)
A_ Spewfic Stop Loas 26091-1 Aug 31 - Aug 31 Mexical in excess of §200,000 $536.530 Stapinss
B. Agaregate Stop Loss $2.000.060 $E0.021
C. Sugplemental Life 2x annual salary-Natural death, $424 318
4x annval salary-Accidentsl dealh
VIIL. Zurich Amencan Insuraace Campany
Underground Storage Yank Llabliity USC 92723845 July 1- Juna 30 $1,000.000 Total 34,8268 $5.000
IX. Chartls
A Pollution Legal Liabiity PLS2673057 July 1« June 30 $2.600.000 aggregale $74.185 $50.0CD
B. Santa Fe Salld Wasle Mgmi. Agency EG 26713508 July 1 - Junre 30 $1,000.000 $53,228 $25.000
C Flduclary Empioyee Benefit Plan 672-82-88 Juiy 1+ June 30 $2,620.000 aggregate $2,980 $25.000 Retsntion
X Tireman‘s Fund
Cxhiblilen Flaater MX3-58387070 July 1 - June 30 §25.000 $1.000 3500
XI $% Paul tnsurance Co.
Skaleboard/BMXTrack/P arks GPOB3D1413 duly 1 - Juns 20 $1,000,0G9 aggregate ey in Blanket Pollsy $50,000 Self Insurance Reterrion
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TABLE XXIII

CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

(UNAUDITED)

Form of Government

The City has a mayor/council/city manager form of government with the mayor and eight member council
elected by district for four-year overlapping terms. The non-partisan elections are held each March of odd
numbered years.

The City Charter provides for a City Manager appointed by the Mayor and approved by the Council who is
responsible for the administration of the merit system and, subject to the authority of the Mayor, supervises
the operation of all departments.

Notes:

Year of incorporation
City area (square miles)

Fire Protection
Number of stations (Manned and Unmanned)
Total employees (Includes 6 Civilians)

Police Protection
Number of stations
Total employees (Includes 42 Civilians)

Parks
Acreage (developed, not open space or frails)
Number of parks
Community centers and recreational buildings
Swimming pools
Tennis courts

Libraries
Holdings
Circulation

Municipal Sewer

Number of sewer accounts
Miles of sanitary lines

Data as of June 30, 2010

212

1891

448

1,225
87

2

4

23

379,896
728,477

35,643
345

items
per year
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CiTY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
COMBINED SCHEDULE Of DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
(RECONCILIATION OF BANK BALANCE TO CARRYING BALANCE)

ALL FUNDS

June 30, 2010

Type of Bank Outstanding Deposits Carrying FAIR
Account Balance Checks In Transit Balance VALUE
Primary government
Charge. imprest funds Pelty cash $ - $ 247,635 $ 247,835
Deposits with financlal instdutions*

Wells Fargo Bank - General Liabiity Checking 758,711 12,448 - 63.2683 63,263
Wells Fargo Bank - Workers' Comp, Chacking 69,010 32,675 447 36,782 36,782
Wells Fargo Bank - HUD Loan Repayment Checking 27.024 - - 27024 27,024
Wells Fargo Bank - HUD Debl Service Reserve Checking 40.036 40,036 40,036
Wells Fargo Bank - Common Cheek ng 592.033 . - 590,033 590,033
Wells Fargo Bank - Ovecand Sweep Sweep 11,198,305 1.237.256 1,313,940 11,275 989 11,275,989
Wells Fargo Bank - Credil Carg Checking - - 68,879 68,879 68,672
Wells Fargo Bank - Payroll Checking 1,249,449 41,211 123.788 1,332,018 1,332,018
Wells Fargo Bank - Businsess Savings Savings 38,796,274 - - 38,796,274 38,796,274

Los Alamos National Bank Savings Savings 2,005,818 - 2,605,818 2.005,818

Furs\ Nationa) Bank of Santa Fe Checking Checking 3013527 - - 3,013.527 3.013.527

New Mexico Finance Auth. Flre Veh cle Laan-Reserve Teust 116,868 - 116,868 116,869

New Mexico Finance Auth.-Fire Vebicle Trust 193 - 199 199

New Mexico Finance Auth.-Par<ing Garage Trust 4 - 4 4

New Mexico Finance Auth.-Land Acquisition Trust 3 - - 3 3

New Mexico Finance Auth. - Railyard | Tax Exempt Trust 6 - - 6 8

New Mexico Finance Auth. - Railyard I( Taxable Trust ] 1 1

New Mexico Finance Auth. - Railyard | Reserve T-Ex Trust 420,133 - 429,133 429,133

New Mexico F nance Auth - Rallyard | Reserve Taxable Trust 52,833 - - 52,833 52,833

New Mexico Finance Auth - Coliege of Santa Fe Trust 10 - 10 10

New Mexico Fimance Auth.~SWAMA Regserve Trust 100,175 - 100.175 100,175

New Mexico Finance Auth ~SWAMA Trust 3 - 3 3

New Mexico Finance Auth.-Buckman Trusi 7 - 7 7
Century Bank-Cenificate of Deposit Time Oeposii 250,000 - 250,000 250,000
Guadalupe Credil Union-CD Time Deposht 250,000 - 250,000 250,000

First Community Bank-CD Time Deposit 500,000 500,000 500,000

State Employees Credit Union-CD Time Deposil 250,000 - 250,000 250,000

Los Alamos National Bank-CD Tir~e Deposit 250.000 250,000 250,000

Los Alamos Nanonal Bank-CD Time Deposit 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Commumty Bank-CD Twme Deposit 250,000 - 250,000 250,000
Community Bank-CD Time Deposit 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 2,500,000
Community Bank-CD Time Deposit 2.500,000 - 2.500.000 2,500,000

First National 8ank of Sama Fe Time Deposit 278,136 - 278136 278,136

First National Bank of Sania Fc Time Oeposit 3,000,000 - 3.000,000 3,000,000

First National Bank of Sarnta Fo Time Deposit 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total bank and carrylng balances 80,783,558 1,323,580 1,506,852 80,976,820 80,976,820

Welis Fargo Govl Money Market - 2009A&B Reserve-Cash Investment 2,525,038 - 2,525,038 2525038
Wells Fargo Govt Money Market - 2009A3B Reserve-Bonds Investment 2,775,000 2,775,000 2,775,000
Wells Fargo Govit Money Market - 2009B BA8s Acounl-Cash 15 15 15
Wells Fargo Government Money Market - Cash Invesiment 86,552 - - 668,552 66,552
NM Stale Loca) Government Investment Pool (LGIP) invesiment 43,768 - £43.768 643,768
NM State LGIP Reserve Contingency Fund (nvesiment 159,981 159,981 159,981
0.5, Governmenl Agency Secunties (nvestmen 99,235,703 989,235,703 100,667,936
U S. Treasunes (nvestment 10,500,000 - - 10 500,000 10,566.665
New Mexico Municipal Secunties Invesiment 11.665.000 11,665,000 11,967,412
Total Investment balances 127,571,057 - - 127,571,057 129,372,367

Total Accounts 208.364.615 1,323,590 1,506,852 208,795,512 210.596.822
Less' joint venlure share of pooled cash (17,849,183) - (17,849,183) (18,030,654)
Total primary government 190,515,432 1,323,580 1,506,852 190,946,329 192,566,168

(continued)
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Component unit
Change, imprest lunds

Deposits whth fimancial instltutlons.
NM Bank & Trus!(
Operating (Camino ensuelo)
Markel max 57 (Ja Cieneguita)
Market max 85((a Cleneguita)
Market max 56 (Je Cleneguita)
Market max 64 (s Cieneguita)
Ogerating (Camino Consuelio)
Valiey National Bank
Operating (Espanola)
Operating (Espanola Vaucher)
F58 Escrow (Espanola Voucher)
First Community 8ank
General Fund Operating
Operating (Voucher)
FSB Reserves
FSB Escrow
Los Alames National Bank
Board account
QOperating {Camino Consuela)
Security deposit (Camino Consuelo)
Rehabilitation (SF Hsg Dev Corp)
Repair ang Replace (SF Rsg Dev Corp)
Operatng (Cielo Azu)
Debt Senvice Reserve (SF Hsnp Dev Corp)
Security deposit (Housing Authonity)
Employse Fund
Operating (Reglon ()
TBRA (Section B)
FSS PH (Operating)
Tota) bank and carrying bslsnces
Investments
Los Alamos National Bank
Certificete of Daposil (Operating)
First Community Bank
Centificate of Deposlt

Total component unit

TOTAL BANK BALANCE ALL FUNDS

Petty cash

Savings
Savings
Savings
Savings
Savings
Checking

Checking
Checking
Savings

Checking
Checldng
Savings
Checking

Savings
Chetking
Checking

Savings

Savings
Checking

Savings
Checking
Checking
Checking
Checking
Checking

Certificate of Depasit

Certificate of Deposst

$ -8 $ 225§ 225

272,633 . 272,633 272,613
11,534 183 11.351 11,351
130,022 . 130,022 130,022
46,953 - 46,853 48,353
5,220 - - 5,220 5,220
78,962 54,802 - 22,160 22,160
494,228 28,196 - 466,032 466,032
486,151 . 486,151 486,151
700 - - 700 700
1,157,038 267,105 - 289,933 889,933
1.305,200 50,866 - 1,254,334 1,254,334
78,282 - 30 78,312 78,312
119,562 414 - 119,148 119,148
856,604 - - 858,804 856,804
604,208 5,444 508,764 598,764
18,591 . 18,591 18,581
283,989 . 263,981 283,981
130,373 - 130,373 130,373
147,825 10,839 - 138,786 136.786
169,517 - 189,517 169,517
19,960 807 - 19,353 19,353
2,618 - 2,616 2,616
380,723 2905 - 377,817 377,817
7.430 - 703 7.833 7,833
17,244 - 1,187 18,401 18,401
6.823,227 421,362 1,920 3.404,010 6,404,010
50,000 - 50,000 50,000
510,328 - - 510,329 510,329
560,328 - B 580,320 560,329
7,383,556 221,362 1,920 5,564,335 5,964,339
$ 1744952 §1,508,772  $197,010,668 g 199,530,507

214




CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED COLLATERAL
(MARKET VALUE)

June 30, 2010

Bank Total Unsecured Pledged Securitles Maturlty
Balance Publlc Funds Market Value Date
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
WELLS FARGO BANK:
General Lability Checking 75,711
Worker's Comp. Chacking 69,010
HUD Detit Service Reserve Checking 27,024
Common Checking 590,033
Payroll Checking 1,248,441
Totat Checking Requiring Collatera) 2,011,219
Federal Depository Insurance (250,000)
Total Unsecored Public Funds (Checking) 1,761,219
HUD Debt Service Reserve Checkiag 40.036
Total Checking Requiring Collateral 40,036
Federa) Depository (nsurance (250,000)
Total Unsecured Public Funds (Checking) -
Business Savings and Certificales of Deposit
Savings 38,796,274
Total Requiring Collatera) 38,796,274
fed Depasiiory [nsurance (250,000)
Total Unsecursed Public Funds (Savings) 38,546,274
Total Unsecures Public Funds 40,307,493
Collateral beld lis Farpo Bank, California:
FNMA, CUSIP 31408CV68 (26.122.815) 05/01/36
FNMA, CUSIP 31416BTB4 (22,572.831) 12/01/35
Total Pladged Collateral (48,695,448)
Difference Between Pledged Collateral and Unsecured Funds (8,387,953)
102% pledged collatera) requirement 41,113,643
Tota) Pledged Collateral (48,695.446)
Pledged collateral {over) under 102% requirement (7,581,803)
FIRST COMMUNITY BANK:
Certificate of Deposit 500,000
Federa) Deposit Insurance {250,000)
Total Unsecured Public Funds 250,000

Collatersl held at Federal Home Loan 8ank of Dallas;

GNMA, CUSIP 38373AQS8 (270,710) 01/16/37
Tota) Pledges Colateral {270.710)
Difference Between Pledged Collateral and Unsecured Funds {20,710)
102% pledged collateral requirement 255,000
Total Pledged Collateral (270,710)
Pledged collateral (over) under 102% requirement (15,710)
= {continued)
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FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF SANTA FE:

Checking 3,013,527
Total Checking Requiring Collateral 3.013,527
Federal Deposil ingurance (250,000)
Total Unsecured Public Funds

Cenificate of Deposit 3,000,000
Cenificate of Deposit 3.000,000
Centificate of Deposit 278,138
Total Checking Requining Collatera) 6.278,136

Federal Oeposit lnsurance
Total Unsecured Public Funds

(250,000)

Collateral Issued by Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas
Letter of Credit
Letter of Credit **

Sublotal Goflateral

Total Pledged Colatera)
Difference between Pledged Collateral and Unsecured Funds

100% pledged collateral requiremeant
Total Pledged Collaters(
Pledged collgteral (over) under 100% requiremant

LOS ALAMOS NATIONAL BANK

Certificate of Deposit 10,000,000
Centilcate of Deposit 250,000
Savings 2,005,818
Federal Deposit Insurance (250,000)

Tota) Unsecured Public Funds

Collateral (ssued by Federal Home Loapn Bank of Dallas
Letter of Credit ™

Letter of Credit **

Total Pledged Collsteral

Difference between Plgdged Collateral and Uasecured Funds

100% pledged collateral requirermeant
Total Pledged Collateral
Pledged collateral (over) under 100% requirement

COMMUNITY BANK

Centificate of Deposit 2,500,000
Certificate of Deposit 2,500.000
Certificale of Deposit 250,000
Total Requiring Collateral 5,250,000

Eederal Deposit Insurance
Total Unsecured Public Funds

(250,000)

Collatecal Issued B deral Home Loan Bank Of Dall
Letter of Credit =
Lelter of Credit ™

Subtolal Collateral

Total Pledged Collateral
Difference between Pledged Collateral and Unsecured Funds

100% pledged collateral requirement
Total Pledged Collateral
Pledged collateral (over) under 100% requirement™

2,763,527

6.028.136

12,005,818

5,000,000

{8.000,000)

(4,000,000)
(10.000,000)

10,000,000
(1,208,337)

8,067,436

{10.000.000)
(1,032,504)

(6.130,000)

(6,000,000)
(12,130,000)
(124,182)

12,005,818

(12,130,000)
{124,182)

(2,500,000)
(2,500,000)
(5,000,000)

(5.000,000)
0

5,000,000
5,000,000

07112110
07112110

10/20M0
05/12/11

01/14/11
0714111

(continued)

*The Citys 102% requirement is necessary for those types of pledged collateral thal change value. Letters of credit 3o not chaage value so face value
equal to or over the value of the unsecored public funds is sufficient. FHLE LOCs at First Nationa) Bank, Los Alames National Bank and Community
Bank are 2ll equal to or greater than 100% of the value of unsecured public funds, so collateralization is sofficient.
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COMPONENT UNIT:

New Mexico Bank and Trust

Checking and Savings $ 543,324

Federal Depository Insurance (326,962)
Tota) Unsecured Public Funds

Collateral

Easter NM Univ Rev, CUSIP 276785UD2

Total Pledged Coflateral

Difference between Pledged Collateral ang Unsecured Funds

50% pledged collateral requirement
Total Pledged Collateral
Pledged collateral (over) under 50% requirement

Flrat Community Bank

Checking and Savings $ 2,660,082
Certificate of Deposit 510,329
Federal Depository Insurance

and Temp. (nvestment Guarantee

Program (2.831,801)

Total Unsecured Public Funds

Collateral held at FRB Dallas

GNR 2009-65 CB, CUSIP 38373ARC3

GNR 2009-87 CA, CUSIP 33376KNRS

Tolal Pledged Collateral

Difference between Pledged Collateral and Unsecured Funds

50% pledged collaleral requirement
Tola) Pledged Coltatera)
Pledged collateral (over) under 50% requirement

Los Alamos Natlopal Bank:

Checking and Savings & 2,638,742
Certificate of deposit 50,000
Federal Depository Insurance (497.059)

Total Unsecuregd Public Funds

Collatera)

FHLB, cusip 31339XLHQ9

Total Pledged Collateral

Diffarence between Pledged Collateral and Unsecured Funds

50% pledged collatera) requirement
Total Pledged Coflateral
Pledged collateral (over) under 50% requirement

Valley National Bank

Checking and Savings 981,079

Federal Depository Insurance (250,000)
Total Unsecured Public Funds

Collateral

FNMA Pool #80591 Cusip 31362GKC4

Ft Bend CO TX Mug #118 Cusip 3468160R9

FNMA Pool{ #800447 Cusip 31405VHY8

Total Pledged Coilateral

Difference between Pledged Collateral and Unsecured Funds

50% pledged collateral requirement
Tota) Ptedged Collateral
Pledged cotiateral (over) under 50% requirement

216,362

(244,277)
(244,277
{27.915)

108,181

(244.277)
(136,096)

338,610

(308,796)

(300,039)
 (6oams)
(270,225)

169,305

(608,835)
(438,530)

2,191,683

(1.078,143)
(1.078,143)

1.113.540

1,095,842

(1.078.143)

17,699

731,079

(41,376)
(247.428)

(571.478)

(860,282)
(129,203)

365,540

(860.282)
{494,743)

217

41117

9/16/24
1/20/33

6/10/11

01/01/2018
09/01/2017



CiTY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Proprietary Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units
Schedule of Capital Asgets and Depreciation
For the Yaar Ended June 30, 2010

ASSETS ALLOWANCE FOR DEPRECIATION
Balance Balance Current Accumulated Net Asset
July 1, June 30, Flscal Year Balance Value
2009 Addltiens Deletlons 2010 Depree, June 30,2010 June 30,2010
Eqterprise funds
Pidmary government
Langd $ 27095773 3 14,456,000 3% - $ 416551773 S - 8 - § 41,551,773
Watar Rights 173,160 168,119 - 341,279 - - 341,279
Buildings 2ang structures 147,474,760 36,656,561 - 183,831,321 4,172,889 29,740,639 154,090,682
Jmprovemants 64,491,560 2,686,673 - 67,178,233 4,805.289 41,283,745 25,889,488
Sewerlines and Utlity Sysiems 82,020171 10,180,065 (1.415) 102,198,821 3,865,634 51,536,394 50,662,427
Equipment and machlinery 19,745,358 430,501 (103,289) 20,132,570 1,411975 13,547,355 6.585,215
Famiture ang fixtures 768,505 8,843 (3.305) 775143 11,966 733.412 41,731
Vehicles 20,985,506 1,560,178 (871.,533) 21,674,151 1,687.388 14,057,767 7.516,384
(ntangidle plant 57,825 - - 57825 - 57,625 -
Data processing and softwace 2,750,639 687.524 (63,010) 3,375,153 184,768 2,191,647 1,183.506
An 185971 - - 185,871 - - 185971
Construction in progress 116,876,241 79,585,279 (28,423,307) 168,037,613 - - 168,037,613
Total - primary govemment 492,326,269 146,479,843 (29,466,459) 609,339,653 18,139,909 153.153,684 456,186,069
Component ung
Housmg Authority:
Lang 885,152 277,437 - 1,142,589 - B 1,142,589
wiP 28,953 4,354,032 (617,373) 3,765612 - - 3,765,612
Bulldings and improvements 28,740,522 41,825,032 (8,943,627) 31,825,927 1,472,987 18,519,251 12,106,676
Equipment and machinery 238,391 4,318 (41,834) 198,875 9,263 195,421 3,454
Fumiture and fixtures 243,761 633,153 - 882,914 41,122 847,708 235,208
Vehices 240,331 138,758 - 378,090 17,656 235,005 143,085
Tota) 30,355,110 17,242,731 (9,602,834) 37.995,007 1,541,028 20,588.383 17.396,624
Total component onit 30,355,110 17,242,731 (8,602,834) 37.295,007 1,541,028 20,598.383 17,396,624
Tofal Enterprise funds 522,681,372 163,722,574 (39,069,293) 647,334,660 17,680,837 173,751,967 473,582,693
Total Proprietary funds:
Primary government 492,326,269 146,479,843 (29,466,459) 609,339,853 16,138,909 153,153,584 456,186,083
Companent unit 30,355,110 17,282,731 (9,602,834) 37,995,007 1,541,028 20,598,383 17,386,824
Total Proprletary funds $ 522,681,370 S 163,722,574 § (39,060,293) § 647,334,660 $ 17,680,937 § 173,751,867 § 473,582,693
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Industrial Revenue Bonds Authorized and Outstanding
As of June 30, 2010
(Unaudited)

Year Year of Intarest Amount
Recipient Issue Retirement Rate of Issue Purpose
Hillhaven Corporation 1983 2013 68% of prime 4,060,000 Construction of
rate of Bank Nursing Home
of New York
First Interstate Plaza Assoc. 1983 2013 10.25% 4,000,000 Commercial Office
St. John's College 1998 2024 4.50%-5.50% 6,900,000 Refund outstanding
balance on the 1992
debt issue and
construction of campus
facilities
Ridgetop Road LLC 2007 2037 15.00% 45,000,000 Commercial office
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Bonds and Loans Payable
Classlifiad by Fund and Purpose
June 30, 2010 (UNAUDITED)

Amount Date of Outstanding June 30, 2010
nterest Date of of Final Serles
Fund and Purpose Rate Issue lssue Maturity Issug Total
Revenua bonds payabie solely
from state-ghared taxes:
Gross receipts tax - Series 2002 3.00% - 5.25% 02/01/02 17,995,000 June 1, 2015 15,200,000
Serles 2004A 2.00% - 4.00% 01/14/04 18,660,000 June 1, 2018 14,415,000
Serles 2008 4.00% - 5.00% 02/14/06 17,790,000 June 1, 2023 15,035,000
Serfes 2008 3.25% - 5.50% 04/07/08 20,435,000 June 1, 2022 20,115,000
Series 2008B 4.00% - 5.00% 12/08/08 22,760,000 June1,2012 13,895,000
Tolal bonds payable solely
from stale-shared taxes 78,860,000
General obligation bonds payable solely
from property tax:
Property tax - Series 2008 3.75% - 5.00% 06/10/2008 20,000,000 Jung 1, 2028 19,400,000
Total bonds payabie solely
from property tax 19,400,000
Total bonds paysble from
tax revenue (govermnmental) $ 98,060,000
Revenue bonds payable from
Enterprise funds (primaty government)
Convention Center - NMFA Serles 2006 3.75% - 4.75% 03/28/06 42,220,000 June 15,2035 40,310,000
Series 2008 GRT/CCir Share 3.250% - 5.50% 04/07/08 8,570,000 June 1, 2022 8,290,000
N
Total bonds payable from Convantion Center fung 48,600,000
Solid Wasle - Serles 2006B 4.25% - 5.00% 07/31/06 15,160,000 Jone 1, 2023 12,455,000
Total bonds payable from Solid Waste fund 12,455,000
Municipal Recreation Complex - Sertes 2005 4.00% - 4.25% 08/30/05 18,315,000 June 1, 2024 11,645,000
Total bonds payable from Municipal Recreation Comptex fund 11,645,000
Water Revenue Bonds - Serles 2006D 4.25% - 5.00% 08/09/08 49,790,000  June 1, 2025 45,430,000
Series 2008A 2.00% - 5.00% 12/15/09 18,080,000 June 1, 2027 17,830,000
Series 2009B BABs 6.00% - 6.20% 12/15/09 41,890,000 June 1, 2039 41,890,000
Total bonds payable from Water fund 105.310.000
Wastewater Bonds - Series 19978 4.00% - 8.00% 12111/97 20,800,000 June 1, 2022 16,700,000
Series 2006C 4.125% - 5.00% 09/29/06 9,780,000 June 1, 2027 7,835,000
Total bonds payable from Wastewater fund 24,535,000
Tolal revenue bonds payable
from Enterprse funds (business-type) 202.545.000
TOTAL LONG-TERM BOND INDEBTEDNESS $ 300,805,000
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LOANS PAYABLE
Loans payabie from 1/2% Munlclpal GRT

NMFA SANTAFE#18 - Land Acquisition 1.95% - 4.79%
Santa Fe Public Schools - Land puichase 1.78%

Tolz) loans payable from 1/2% Municipal GRT

Loans payable from Municipal GRT - Rallyard
NMFA SANTAFE#7 - Railyard Infrastructure  .83% - 4.25%

NMFA SANTAFE#S - Rallyard Infre. 1.15% - 5.19%
NMFA SANTAFE#15A - Rallyard Infra. 3.42% - 4.20%
NMFA SANTAFE#15B - Rallyard Infra. 519% - 5.87%
NMFA SANTAFE#13 - Parking Gerage 3.02% - 4.24%

Total {oans payable from 1/2% Municipal GRT
Total loans payable from tax revenue
Loans payable from Water Enterprise Fund

NMFA SANTAFE#16 - Buckman (City share 0.25%
NMFA SANTAFE#19 - Buckman (City share 0.25%

NMFA SANTAFE#23 - Conservation 0.75%
NMFA SANTAFE#DW-2 - Buckman 1.75%
NMFA SANTAFE#WRPF3 - Canyon Road 0.25%
NMFA SANTAFE#WPF4 - Canyon Road 0.25%

Total loans payable from Water Fund
Total loans payable from Enterprise Funds

Loans payable from State Fira Grant
NMFA SANTAFE#10 - Fire Equipment 82% - 2.84%

Total loans payable from State Fire Grant
Loans payable from third parties
Laurezste Education, Inc. facility lease:
NMFA SANTAFE#20 - College of Santa F 1.81% - 6.07%
Santza Fe Business Incubator, (nc. loan payment:
HUD Section 108 Loan 3.0%
Total loans payable from thirg parties
Total loans payable from Special Sources

TOTAL LONG-TERM LOAN INDEBTEDNESS

TOTAL OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS

08/01/08
01/05/2010

06/24/2004
09/24/2004
10/20/2009
10/20/2009
03/28/2008

11/02/2007
03/27/2008
06/04/2010
05/16/2008
06/12/2008
05/07/2010

01/14/2005

08/14/2009

06/30/2004
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3.610,000
840,000

5,107,852
579,025
7,642,231
892,227
14.986.587

100,000
400,000
127,500
15,150,000
400,000
800,000

1,166,667

28,615,000

300.000

06/01/28
06/01/2012

05/01/2024

05/01/2024

06/01/2026
06/01/26
06/01/36

06/01/27
06/01/38
06/01/40
06/01/29
06/01/39
06/01/30

05/01/13

06/01/38

08/01/24

3,385,258
560.000

3,045,298

4,493,002
515.600
7.321,292
860,083
14,9868 587

28,178,564

74,903
372,264
127,500

14,526,787
380.472
800,000

16.281,916

462,819

462,619

29,815,000

261,000

—_79.876,000_

32,121,862

16.281,916

30,338,619

78,742,397

379,347,397



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
Schedule of Mortgage Revenue Bonds Authorized
As of June 30, 2010
(Unaudited)

Year Year of Interest Amount
Recipient Issue Retirement Rate of Issue Purpose

Single Family Mortgage 1995 2028  4.55%-6.30% $10,500,000 Finance a Single
Revenue Bonds - FNMA Family Mortgage
And GNMA Mortgage - Loan Program
Backed Securities

Program—-Series 1995A

Single Family Mortgage  1995B1 2028  4.65%-6.25 10,000,000 Finance a Single
Revenue Bonds - FNMA  1995B2 2028  5.66%-5.80 10,000,000 Family Mortgage
And GNMA Mortgage - Loan Program
Backed Securities

Program—Series 1995B
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CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
SCHEDULE QOF OTHER FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED

June 30, 2010

(UNAUDITED)
Cash/Accrued Cash/Accrued
Grantor Stata or (Deferred) Cash or ar (Deferred)
Program Name Program or Revenue at Receipts  Disbursements/ Revenue at
Grant Number Award Amount July 1, 2009 Recognlzed Expenditures June 30, 2010
N.M. HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT
Operation 8uckie Down FY08-07 16,509 $ 4725 § 4725 § - 8 -
Operation CWI FY06-07 36,593 8,379 6.379 -
Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) 18,382 4,115 4,115 - -
Click (t or Ticket 6.000 4,350 4,350 - -
Operation DWI FY08-09 - 3.405 - - 3.405
Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) - 4,688 - - 4,688
Operation Buckle Down Fy09-10 7.735 - 1,275 3.825 2,550
Operation DW( FY09-10 43,680 - 19,683 29,569 9,886
Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) 7,969 - - 4,014 4,014
Click 1t or Ticket FY09-10 5,015 - - 5.015 5015
Teen Seat Belt Demonstration FY08-10 4,590 - - 4,420 4,420
100 Days and Nights FY09-10 8,415 - - 2,044 2,044
Traffic Safety Bureau Projects 59,085 - 58,085 58,085 -
Airport Road Improvements 100,000 56,007 100,000 43,983 -
Small Sigewalks 50,000 - 50,000 50,000 -
Small Drainzge 264.814 30,000 32,777 23,758 20,981
Barrio de ta Canada Entrance Way 80.000 - 3713 3.713
Intersection Safety 25,000 - 21,802 21.802 -
Arrouo Chimiso Tail 80,000 - 80.000 80,000 -
Paved Street Resurfacing 98,287 - 64,670 98.287 33,617
El Camino Real Scenic Byways 151,352 325 2,849 2,524 -
Siler Road Extension 3,656,300 934,415 3,649,237 2,721,886 7.064
Old Pecos Trail Design 160,000 - 160,000 160,000 -
Tralls 30,000 - 30.000 30,000 -
Airport Improvements 6,000 1,024 1,024 - -
Airport Improvements 195,868 322 322 - -
Airport Improvements 18,200 240 - - 240
Alrport Improvements 75,000 - 49,032 48,032
Airport Improvements 62,500 24,268 51,821 31,788 4,233
Airport Improvements 1,875 - 1,875 1.875 -
Airport Improvements 12,500 10,628 10,832 304
Airport Improvements 200.000 - 140,718 140.718 -
Airport improvements 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 4,200,000 -
Airport Improvements 72,500 24,571 39,818 15,247
Airport Improvements 101,800 - 50,598 50,599 -
TOTAL Highway and Transportation Department 6,856,569 $ 1,074,263 ¢ 5,821,637 §$ 4,868,795 3% 121,421
N.M. DEPARTMENT OF TOURISM
Marketing Grant Program 16.515 $ - $ 2,000 $ 16,514 § 7,514
Beautification and Litter Control Prograra 74.400 11,368 11,368 - -
Beautification and Litter Control Program 35,000 - 20,520 34173 13653
TOTAL N.M. Department of Tourlsm 125,915 $ 11,368 § 40,888 § 50,687 § 21,167
N.M. PUBLIC REGULATION COMMISSION
Fire Protection 471,847 $ - § 398504 $ 398,504 $ -
TOTAL Publlc Regulation Commission 471,847 $ - $§ 393504 $ 398,504 § -
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(UNAUDITED)
Cash/Accrued Cash/Accrued

Grantor State or (Deferred) Cashor or (Deferred)

Program Name Program or Revenue at Receipts  Disbursements/ Revenue at

Grant Number Award Amount July 1, 2609 Recognizad  Expenditures June 30, 2010
N.M. OFFICE OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS

400th Anniversary $ 350.000 $ - § 350000 $ 350,000 $ -
TOTAL NM Office of Cultural Affairs $ 350,000 $ - $ 350,000 $ 350,000 $ -
N.M. HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

Emergency Medical Service 3 29,000 3 - 5 29,000 $ 28,000 $ -

Sewer Line 2400 Block Aqua Fria 320,523 - 11111 § 115,74¢ 104,638

Water Project Grant/Loan 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -

Effluent Line-Tierra Contenta 25,000 10,452 - - 10.452
TOTAL Health and Environment Department $ 1,374,523 $ 10,452 § 1,040,111 § 1,144,749 § 115,080
N.M. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Design Week S 14,000 8 8,000 § - $ - 3 8,000

Cooperative Grant for Advertising 9.900 - 17,835 17.835 -
TOTAL Economle Development Department $ 23,900 3 8,000 % 17,635 § 17,635 § 8,000
N.M. ENERGY, MINERALS, NATURAL RESOURCES

Fire Hazard Reduction Grants 5 149,438 $ -9 - 8 63383 § 63.383

Santa Fe River Trail 815,000 224,070 416,827 192,757

Transit Bus 80,000 80,000 80,000 -

Methane Gas 100,000 - 85,000 65,000 -
TOTAL Energy, Minerals, Natural Resourcas $ 1,144,438 $ 304,070 $ 561,827 § 321,140 § 63,383
STATE AGENCY ON AGING

Senior Companion Program $ 129,369 $ 24084 § 108518 § 129.369 $ 43.945

Senior Employment Program 35,384 4,944 33,411 35,322 6.855

Foster Grangparent Program 112,821 9.783 96,224 112,821 26,480

Retired Senior Volunteer Program 37,855 12,529 26.092 35.393 21,830

HB-2- Nutrition 370,243 38,544 303,344 370,243 105,443

HB-2- In Home Support 106,803 10,874 80,189 106.803 37.488

HB-2- Assisted Transportation 95,246 9.620 78.233 05,246 26,633

State Area On Aging Capital improvements 172,570 - 30.103 66,591 36,488
TOTAL State Agency on Aging $ 1,060,491 $ 110,388 § 757,114 § 951,888 § 305,162
COUNTY OF SANTAFE

Senior Program-County Grant 8 560,000 $ 389,604 § 685006 $ 560,000 $ 264,688

Southside Library 15,000 - - 15,000 15,000

Siler Road Extension 250,000 - 250,000 250,000 -

Santa Fe Paratransit 288,033 - - 86,011 96,011

Santa Fe Rail/River Trail 285,000 35,699 35,699 -

TOTAL County of Santa Fe $ 1,398,033 $ 425383 §¢ 970,705 § 921,011 § 375,699
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Cash/Accrued CashiAccrued
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Program Nams Program or Revenue at Receipts Disbursemants/ Revenue at
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SANTA FE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Crossing Guards Grant 3 175.000 $ 23473 48638 § 120671 $ 85.508
TOTAL Santa Fe Public Schools $ 175,000 23,473 48,638 120,671 § 95,506
N.M. DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
Planning for Transit Oriented Development $ 200,000 $ 6,187 § 6,187 § ~ 8 -
Monica Roybal Center 50.000 4,264 4,264 - -
Parque del Rio Renovation 8,000 8,000 8,000 -
Villa Real de la Santa Fe de St. Francisco de Assisi 40,000 7.065 7,065 - -
400th Annlversary 122,218 - 113,349 122,215 8.866
Santa Fe Business Incubator 2,387 - 2,387 2,387
Municipal Court Automation 32,871 8,823 8.823 - -
Razardous Equipment & Training 14,000 - 14,000 14,000 -
Law Enforcement Protection 117.800 - 117,600 117,600 -
Santa Fe Boys and Gids Club 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
Natlonal Dance Institute 148,500 1,418 1,418 - -
National Dance Institute 297,000 290,945 297.000 6,055 -
National Dance Institote 282,150 - 282,150 282,150 -
Rape Crisis Center 371.250 25,453 70.956 45503 -
Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority £0.000 - 50,000 50,000
Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority 235,000 - 235,000 235,000
Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority 50,000 50,000 50,000
Site Santa Fe 247.500 2,159 32,500 30,341 -
Library General Obligation Bonds 188,792 85476 151,244 65,768 -
New Mexico State Library 41,925 21,925 35,289 13,364 -
Santa Fe Police Department 247,500 - - 247500 247,500
Barmo Canada 25,000 1,208 14,314 13,105 -
Botanical Gardens 135,000 5,858 5,858 - -
Botanical Gardens 50,000 18,244 18,244 31,756 31,756
Botanical Gardens 95,000 - - 79,941 79.841
La Familia 346.500 344,852 346,500 1,648 -
La Famiita 198,500 - 90,754 90,754 -
Ragle Park Exp 50.000 42,076 42,076 - -
Ragle Park Exp 50,000 25,638 25.638 -
Ragle Park Exp 24,362 - - -
Ragle Park Exp 50,000 - - -
Santa Fe Boys & Girls Club 65.000 45217 46,981 1,764
Santa Fe Boys & Girls Club 75,000 184 184 .
Santa Fe Boys & Girts Club 25,000 - 24,183 24,183 -
Santa Fe Boys & Giris Club 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 -
Franklin Miles Park Improvements 25,000 16,933 16,833 - -
El Museo Cultural 198,000 5.683 5,883 - -
El Museo Cultural 222,750 296 18,786 18,480 -
Ortiz Park 20,000 15,483 15,493 - -
Santa Fe River and Rail Trails 200,000 - - 200,000 200,000
Santa Fe River and Rail Trails 500,000 - - 410,840 410,840
Santa Fe Youth Consortium 486,400 178,700 178,700 - -
Bikeways/Horse Trails, Grant 3,000,000 1.570,592 1,119,244 2,689,836
Santa Fe Convention Center 100.000 44,468 100,000 55,531 -
(continued)
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MRC Rugby Fields 85,000 - 75,000 75,000 -
MRC Rugby Fields 100,000 14,873 100,000 85127 -
MRC Rugby Fields 230,000 75,000 230.000 155,000 -
MRC Rugby Fields 48,567 - 398,453 39,453 -
MRC Rugby Fields 50,000 - 50.000 50,000 -
MRC Rugby Fields 50,000 - 50,000 50.000 -
MRC Rugby Fields 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 -
MRC Rugby Fields 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 -
Genoveva Chavez Genter 30,000 12,405 29,434 17.029 -
Genoveva Chavez Center 295,000 274,143 274,143 - -
Santa Fe Rallyard-Park and Plaza 2,225,000 10,000 - - 10,000
Ratlyard Property -Teen Art Center - Warehouse 21 95,000 85,000 95,000 - -
Railyard-Youth Center - Warehouse 21 75,000 75,000 75,000 - -
Raltyard Teen Art Center - Warehouse 21 108.900 7.404 12,087 4,653 -
TOTAL Dapt. of FInance and Adminlstration § 12,129,959 $ 3,361,468 §$ 3,508,131 § 3,856,691 $ 3,710,029
NM FINANCE AUTHORITY
NMFA 2382 ADW $ 424,200 $ - § 207,500 $ 476,709 § 179,209
Woater Project Grant/Loan (thru NMFA) 700,000 - 900.000 1,600,000 700,000
NMFA 170-WTB 4,000,000 - 3,932,580 3,932,580 -
NMFA 2378-DW 141,400 - - 141,400 141,400
NMFA 2388-ADW 425,000 - 25,000 425,000 400,000
NMFA 2431-DW 161,807 - - 161,807 161.807
TOTAL NM Mortgage Finance Authority $ 5,428,207 $ - $ 4857580 § 6,260,787 § 1,408,207
NM ARTS COMMISSION
NM Ars Grant $ 12,600 - 8 12827 § 12,527 -
TOTAL NM Arts Commiss{on $ 12,600 $ - 8 12,527 % 12,527 § -
OTHER
McCune Charitable Foundation $ 5,000 $ - 3 5,000 $ 5000 $ -
Millstream Fund 1,500 - 1,500 1.500 -
Witter Bynner Foudation for Poetry 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 -
8lack Foundation 5,000 - 5,000 5,000
Santa Fe Public Schools Fund 15.000 - 15,000 15,000 -
Dickenson Fund 1.020 - 1,020 1,020
Beitina Baruch Foundation 2,350 - 2,350 2,350 -
TOTAL Other $ 34,870 $ - 8 34,870 ¢ 34,870 % -
GRAND TOTAL $ 30,236,352 3 5,328,875 $18,070,186 $ 18,959,955 ¢ 6,218,664
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CITY OF SANTA FE
SCHEDULE OFf EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED

Juno 390, 2010
CashiAccrued cY Cash/Accrued
Federal Grantor/ Faoeral Pass-Through Federal or (Deferrad) Cash or (Deferred)
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFOA Geantor's Program or Revenue at Receipts  Disb @ R at
Program or Cluster Title Numb Numb Award Amaunt July 1, 2009 Recognizod  Expenditures  June 30, 2090
Primary Government
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAR DEVELOPMENT
Deparkmeat of Heusing and Uiban Developmeat Oirect Programs
COBG-Entitlement and (HUO-Adminisiered) Small Clues Cluster
Communily Ocvalap Blozk Grant 14218 B08MC3S0003 S 532,206 ] - 3 283308 3 515986 § 232676
Community Develop 8iock Grant 14218 BCOMC350003 574,237 245,034 378.280 133,046 -
Total CDBG-Enfittement aag (HUD-Administered) Small Cikias Cluster 1.138,445 245034 €51.388 648,030 232,676
Shetter Plus Care Granls
Shalter Plus 14238 NMD2C5-01-608 524,460 12,238 128,903 128,884 10,219
Shelter Plus 14238 NMO2C7-01-001 308.680 5,854 $5,485 50,631 -
Shetter Plus 14,238 NM02CT7-01-013 122,052 8,840 £.340 . -
She'ter Plus 14 238 NM02C7-01-014 203,628 15,593 15,09¢ - -
She tor Plus 14238 NM0026C68010801 214,056 - 174,2.2 210,288 36,056
Sheter Plus “4,7238 NMGD34CH8010891 214,848 - 181,087 212,442 31,318
Sheter Plus “473% NMOD2Z9CERO10851 128,124 B 111,548 123.375 11.82¢
Total S»¢le: Plus Care Grants 1714128 37530 876.861 773,570 89439
Dcpartment of Housing and Urban Devetopment § 2,870,573 S 287,564 $ 1,338,069 § 1,372,600 5 322,005
US DEPARTMENT Of JUSTICE
Passed-through NM Chilaren Yeuth and Famllles.
Juvenile Justice - Education 16,523 0469030002061 s 89,000 & 220 $ 220 § - S -
Juvenile Jugiice - Continuum 64/05 16.523 05-690-7090-7062 150.000 1.684 1.684 - -
Juvenite Justice - Continuum 08,09 16.523 09-680-6597 209,000 28,779 139.373 112,654 -
Juvenile Justice - Continuum 09/0 16.523 10-690-10491 185,595 - 10,306 183,598 165,292
Juvenile Juslice - Continuum 09/10 16.523 10-690-10770 35,300 - 35,500 35,500 .
Tolal passed-thirough NM Children Yeulh and Familizs €7*.008 28,623 187,083 343,752 185,292
Passad-ihrough NM Crime Viclms Reparaton Commission
Recovery a2t STOP Violance Against Women Grar 16.8C6 2008-WF-AX-6018 31,322 - 4,287 15,927 11,240
Total passad-through NM Cnme Vichms Reparation Commission 31,322 - 4,287 15,527 11,240
Passad-hrough Santa M'e County
£Y 08 Local Sclizltatlon-Edward Byine Graat 16.580 20038-DJ-BX-0726 48,153 - 48,153 45,153 -
€dward Byma Memanal 16.580 2008-58-83-2733 202,676 . 37,242 37,242 -
Total passed-thrgugh Santa Fe Counly 250,827 - 85,395 85,395
Juvenlle Justize JABG 16.540 05-890-7000-7093 12.600 5,400 5,400 - .
12,600 5,400 5.400 - B
Ocmestic Viotenca and Sexual Assaull Probation Oificers 4 £80 2009-WE-AX-0048 200.000 - . §3,094 80.094
Cops Hiring Recovery Pragram 16.710 2009-KRWX0842 1,479,328 - 11,240 11,249 -
Targeling Viclenl Cnime 16.58) 08-DJ-BX-066 330,000 - 184,605 164,605 -
2007 Justizo Assltance Grant -Edward Byme Grant 16.580 08-HE-B4-£13D 48,189 . 48,169 46,169
2,057,497 . 175,845 314,108 135.263
US Department of Justice § 3023344 § 34023 S 458010 % 758,782 5 334,795
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Federal Avration Adminisiabon Oirecy £rogram
Ainpont Improvement Granl #28 20.1C6 AP 3-35.0037-23-20 § 1.736.142 8 128 503 3 56,325 S 62,354 § 134,632
Airgarl Improvement Grant #29 20.°Cé AP 2-350037-29-20 2,387,506 Q22 /C 1.952,695 1,281,642 251,117
Aot Impravement Grant #31 26106 AlP 3.35-0037-31-20 498.857 - 317,051 412,922 95,871
Airpert Improvement Grant 32 20.106 AP 3-35-0037-32-20 1,000.000 - 933 713 1,€00,000 86,287
Airport Impravement Granl #33 20,106 AlP 3-35-0037-33-20 776.000 - - 524,226 581.826
Tola Foeoara Aviaion Adminlstration Direct Pregiam €,2/8,50% 1.080.773 3,259,784 3,338,744 1,129,733
Oepartment of Transocrtaticn Direzl Program
Secton 5309 20 290 NM0O3X042 185,738 13,089 13,939 - -
Secticn 5309 20.£00 NMD3IX035 2,963.029 658,583 656,583 - -
Seeticn 5309 20.500 NMS3X002 500,000 208,339 452,286 246,147 -
Secticn 5309 20,500 NMO3X056 45D.050 - 378,210 378,210 .
Section 5309 20 500 NMO4X008 294,000 - . 20.875 29,875
AA79.815 877.411 1501.768 854.232 28,875
Seclon 5307
Operatlng 20.307 NMR0X072 850,658 - - 5.487 5.487
Operating 20.507 NMSOX075 1,115,859 - - 37.436 37,634
Operating 20 507 NMIOX081 1.136,242 . - 11.383 11,363
Qperating 20507 NMIOX087 1,222,151 - - 12,222 12,222
Operating 20.507 NMIDX090 1,173,605 - 1,161,864 1,173,605 11,738
’ 5,498,615 = 1.161.869 1,240,111 78,243
Sectic~ 5316 (JARC) 20 518 NM37X008 630,000 79,578 78.578 - -
Sectio~ 53168 (JARC) 20.516 NM37X012 206.473 282.512 262,512 - -
Sectio” 5316 (JARC) 20.516 NM3I7TX014 146 232 . - 146,232 146,232
Sactin~ 5316 (JARC) 20.518 NIIOX0ES 142,592 - 106,548 108.946
] 1,315,297 342,090 342,090 252,778 252,778
»h __(continued)

Total Depamment of Transpartation Oirect Program S 1767223 & 2.270.274 $ 6.265511 § 5485865 5  1.400.628




" CITY OF SANTAFE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED
June 30, 2010 .
CashfAccrues (434 Cash/Accrued
Federal Grantor! Fedarai Pass-Through Federal o {Deferred) Cash or (Deferred)
Pass-Through Gramtor/ CFDA Grantor's Program oc Revenue at Receipts Disbursements/ Revenuve at
Program or Clusier Title Number Number Award Amount July 1, 2008 Recognized  Expendiiures  Juvna 30, 2010
Passed-lhrough N M. Bighway and Transponation Department
Highwway ang Planning Clusler
Section 112 20 205 FTA-PLO2ZA3(69) $ 106,423 & 22,330 $ 22330 § 23536 § 23,534
Secton 112 20.205 FTA-PL-82A-3(72) 20,06) 4,952 9,928 5.871 897
Sechian 112 Unobligated Fongs Oisldbution 20.205 FTA-PL.GZA3(47}) 123,756 - 26,302 123,756 97,454
Senla Fe Railyard Park and Plaza 20.205 STP-HPP -7849(8) 2,378,23¢ 362,926 403.427 45,501 -
Total Highway and Planang Clusler 2,826.428 389,208 466,985 198,662 121,885
Secton 5303 08409 20.505 MOA # MO0489 30,696 11,001 19,404 18,886 10,463
Sectian 5303 04/10 20.505 MOA # MD04SY 34 869 - & 11,548 “1,548
65,585 11,00 19.404 30,414 22,011
Federal Transit Cluster
Ridefinders 08/09 20.507 TPO-7749(8) 87,653 28,807 28,807 . .
Ridefinders G9/19) 20.507 TPO-7749(9) 67.853 . - 51,890 51,830
Tolal Feceral Teans. Cluster 135.306 28,807 28.607 51,880 51,890
Toual Depariment of Transponallon passed-ihrough $ 2829318  § 430,016 § 51519 $ 280.868 § 195,786
Oepaniment of Transportation $ 20,501,551 $ _ 2700,280 $ 8,780,707 $ 5766831 & 1,685,414
NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS
Anworks 45.024 08-5100-8089 3 55,000 5 16,661 s 18.681 ¢ - $ .
Artworks 45024 (3-5109-8105 £0.000 - 28.043 50,00 21,957
National Endowment for the Arts ] 105,000 $ 16,661 $ 44,704 § 50,000 $ 21,957
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed-through MM State Agency on Aglng/NCNMEOD
Aging Cluslen
Title 1118 33.044 2009-10-60028 3 107,669 3 - $ 87,2268 § 107.689 ¥ 20,443
Title 11-C-1 93,045 2005-10-80028 118,494 1.631 68,650 118,494 51,475
Title 11-C-2 93.045 2009-10-60026 51,306 . 51,304 51,304 -
NSIP 93.083 2009-10-58028 153,929 14.481 87.828 153,829 80,582
Nitle 1-€ §3.052 2009-10-60026 76,340 23.330 59,535 76,340 40,135
Total Aging Cluster i 507,736 38,442 354,543 507,726 182,615
Passed-trough Mid Region Councll of Govamments
Temporary Assis'ance ta Needy Families 93,558 TANF 2308-09 50,000 14,043 14,013 - -
Yemoorary Assleance lo Nesdy Families 93,558 TANF 2008-10 50,000 - 42,081 59,060 7,919
Total Mid Region Ceuncil of Governmenis 100.000 14.013 $6.09% $0.000 7.919
Depantment of Health and Human Services $ £07,736 $ 53,455 $ 410,637 ¢ 557,738 § 200,554
CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
Passed-ihrough NM Siate Agency on Aging/NCNMEDD-
Foster Grandparent Program 94,011 10-824-4000-9024 S 25,506 § 8.735 S 2262 S 25,506 $ 11.615
Re: rad Senigr Volunteer Program 94,002 10-624-4000-0065 35,087 19,659 35,741 33.373 17,491
Tolal Passec-inrcugh NM Siate Agency cn Aging: $ 60,593 s 28,594 < 58,367 & 58879 § 29,106
Corporation for Natlonal and Community Serviee $ 80.593 - 28,534 $ 58367 S _ 58,879 % 29,106
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Emergancy Management Performancs 97,042 2W008-EMPG 30,690 8,638 32,046 30,500 7,494
Emempncy Manggement Parformance 97.042 Z008-EMPG 321,380 . - 220,381 220,381
Emergzncy Managemeat Perfomance 97,042 2009-F0-092325 92,260 - 87,234 87,234 .
US Department of Homeland Security $ 444,510 5 8,638 $ 119.275 8 338,512 ] 227.875
AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT GRANTS (ARRA)
ARRA - Alrpon (mprovemant Gran #30 20.4¢6 AIP 3-33-0032.030-2 § b22,204  § - $ 474720 § 486,835 § 11,906
ARRA - Community Development Block Grant 14,253 B0IMY3=0002 135,061 58,000 144,220 86,220
ARRA - Neighbaorhood Stabilization Program 14.256 69-0250 2,000,060 1,566,691 1,655,208 83,518
ARRA - Engrgy Efficency Bulldings - Adminisieied by S 81.128 DE-SCGD002836 781,600 . 77456 77.456
ARRA - £nevgy Efficency & Conservation Bicck Grant f 81,128 OE-EE0QC0861 500.000 2000 27.441 25,441
ARRA - Roden Road Landscaping 20.205 ECO4727(%) 150,000 - 132,313 132,213 -
ARRA - Nutrltlon Contract 93 705-83.707 2009-10 8028 29.661 29,667 29.681
ARRA - Pavemant Resurfacing 20.208 ECO-4726(2) 2.000.000 - 138.742 156,742
American Recovery and Reinvestmeat Act Grants {ARRA) $ 6,139,476 s - 5 2,233,733 § 2,709.677 § 475,944
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - Piimary Government $ 33,752,783 $ 3,129,225 -1 11\4-63.593 H] 11,613,017 § 3,298,740




CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30. 2010

General

The following is a reconciliation of the total Federal Awards of the City of Santa Fe and its

component unit Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority for the year ended June 30. 2010:
City of Santa Fe Federal Expenditures as reported on page 231
Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority Federal Expenditures as reported on page 248
Combined Federal Expenditures of the Primary Government and Component Unit

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is
presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting , which is described in note 1
to the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Repont.

Relationship to the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Special Revenue Funds
Community Development Grants
Community Development Block Grants

Sheiter Plus
Shetter Plus
Shelter Plus
Sheiter Plus
Shelter Plus

Component Unit
Enterprise Fund - Housing Authority

Public Housing Subsidy
Resident Opp. & Support Serv
Capital Fund Program
Competititve CFP Stimulus
Formula CFP Stimulus
BTOP
Section 8 Housing

U.S. Department of Justice
Special Revenue Grants
Law Enforcement Grants
Juvenile Justice - Continuum
Recovery act STOP Violance Against Women Grant
FY 09 Local Sclicitation-Edward Byrne Grant
Edward Byre Memorial
Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault Probation
Officers
Cops Hiring Recovery Program
Targeting Violent Crime
2007 Justice Assitance Grant -Edward Byrne Grant

Department of Transpaortation
Enterprise Fung - Transit Bus System
Welfare to Work (JARC)
Section 5307
Section 5309
Airmport Improvement Grants

232

CFDA #

14218

14.238
14.238
14.238
14.238
14.238

14,850
14.855
14.870
14.884
14,885
14.557
14.870

18.523
16.806
16.580
18.580

16.580
16.710
16.580
16.580

20.516
20.507
20.500
20.106

11,613,017
12,382,892

23,996,008

AMOUNT

648,030

126,884

50.631
210,288
212,412
123.375

1,733,499
54,551
1,693,655
1,172,315
908,351
75,771
€.744,850

343,752
15,527
48,153
37,242

90,094
11,240
164,605
48,169

252,778
1,240,111
654,232
3.338,744



CITY OF SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2010

Special Revenue Fund
Transportation Grants

Section 112 20.205 153,161
Santa Fe Railyard Park and Plaza 20.205 45,501
Section 8 20.508 30,414
Ridefinders 20.507 51,890

National Endowment for the Arts
Special Revenue Fung
Artworks 45,024 50,000

Department of Health and Human Sarvicas
Special Revenue Funds

Senlor CitizensGrants
Title 1 B 83.044 107,669
Title 111 C-1 93.045 118,494
Title 1 C-2 93.045 51,304
Title Il E 93.052 76,340
NSIP 93.053 153,929
Temporary Assistance Needy Famifies 83.558 50,000
Foster Grandparent Program 84.002 25,508
Retired Senior Volunteer Program 94.002 33,373

US Department of Homeland Security
Enterprise Fund -Airport
Emergency Management Performance 97.042 338,512

AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT GRANTS (ARRA)
Special Revenue Funds

ARRA - Ajrport Improvement Grant #30 20.106 486,635
ARRA - Community Development Block Grant 14.253 144,220
ARRA - Neighborhcod Stabilization Program 14.256 1,655,209
ARRA - Energy Efficency Buildings - Administered by
State of NM 81.128 77,456
ARRA - Energy Efficency & Conservation Block Grant 81.128 27,441
ARRA - Redeo Road Landscaping 20.205 132,313
ARRA - Nutrition Contract 93.705-93.707 29,861
ARRA - Pavement Resurfacing 20.208 158,742
23,996,009
TOTAL $ 23,996,009
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City of Santa Fe

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Honorable Mayor and City Council
and

Hector H. Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund of City of Santa Fe (the City) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents, and have issued our report dated July 15, 2011. Our reports include a reference to other
auditors. We have also audited the financial statements of each of the City of Santa Fe’s nonmajor
governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service funds and respective budgetary comparisons
for the major capital projects and debt service funds and the nonmajor governmental and enterprise
funds presented as supplementary information in the accompanying combining and individual fund
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority, which is a discretely presented
component unit of the City of Santa Fe. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors as
described in our report on the City of Santa Fe's financial statements.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s intemnal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
intermnal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal controls such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be preventsed, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
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material weaknesses, as defined above. However, as discussed below, we did identify a deficiency in
internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency in internal confrol over financial
reporting. This item can be referenced as finding 06-05. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As a part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the defermination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or cther matters that are required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards,
paragraph 5.14 and 5.18 and Section 12-6-5 NMSA 1978 which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 06-06, 08-04, and 09-03.

The City’s responses to the findings indentified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, the Office of the

State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, Department of Finance and Administration and applicable
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used

by anyone other than these specified parties.
Ao e 8

Atkinson & Co., Ltd.
Albuquerque, New Mexico
July 15, 2011
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

City of Santa Fe

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Honorable Mayor and City Council
and

Hector H. Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

Compliance

We have audited the City of Santa Fe, New Mexico's (the City) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City’'s major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2010. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the City’'s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s
compliance based on our audit.

The City of Santa Fe's basic financial statements include the operations of the Santa Fe Civic Housing
Authority which expended $12,382,992 in federal awards which is separately reported the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards during the year ended June 30, 2010. We did not audit the
compliance of the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority, which is a discretely presented component unit of
the City of Santa Fe. The compliance of the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority was audited by other
auditors whose report thereon has been fumished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to
compliance of Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issuad by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance reqguirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with
those requirements.
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In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major programs for the year ended
June 30, 2010. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of
noncompliance with those requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
as item 08-02.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Santa Fe is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. I|n ptanning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A maferial weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency as described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and guestioned costs as item 08-02. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

The City's response to the finding indentified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of

findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, the Office of the
State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be

used by anyone other than theses specified parties.
Moy e B8

Atkinson & Co., Ltd.
Albuguerque, New Mexico
July 15, 2011
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City of Santa Fe
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the year ended June 30, 2010

. Summary of Audit Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

o Material weakness(es) identified? No
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted? No
Federal Awards

Internal control over financial reporting:
o Material weakness(es) identified? No
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on
compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section
510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? Yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14.256 Neighborhood Stabilization Program ARRA

20.106 Airport Improvement Grants (Both ARRA and Non-ARRA funds)
81.128 Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant ARRA

20.208 Pavement Resurfacing Project ARRA

20.205 Rodeo Road Landscaping Project ARRA

14.253 Community Development Block Grant ARRA

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $348,391
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City of Santa Fe

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Summary of Audit Results — Continued

Auditee qualified as fow-risk auditee? No

Findings — Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Award Programs Audit

Neighborhood Stabilization Program

Airport Improvement Grants

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant
Pavement Resurfacing Project

Rodeo Road Landscaping Project

Community Development Block Grant

Status of Prior Audit Findings

06-05 Due Date of Audit Report

06-06 Budget Overages

08-02 Data Collection Form-Late Filing
08-04 IT Policies and Procedures
09-01 Contract Compliance

09-02 Bank Reconciliations

09-03 Parking Permit Receivables
09-04 Contract Lapse

Current Audit Findings

Questionad
Costs

None
None
None
None
None
None

Repeated and Modified
Repeated and Modified
Repeated and Modified
Repeated and Modified
Resolved
Resolved
Repeated and Modified
Resolved

Financial Statement Findings Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

06-05 Due Date of Audit Report (Repsated and Modified)
Findings in Accordance with 2.2.2. NMAC

06-06 Budgset Overages (Repeated and Modified)

08-04 [T Policies and Procedures (Repeated and Modified)
09-03 Parking Permit Receivables (Repeated and Modified)
Finding in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

08-02 Data Collection Form-Late Filing (Repeated and Modified)

240



City of Santa Fe
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

For the year ended June 30, 2010

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS-REPEATED AND MODIFIED

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS
06-05 Due Date of Audit Report (Significant Deficiency)

Condition:
The June 30, 2010 audit report was not filed with the State Auditor by the applicable date noted in the
contract. The report was not submitted until July 19, 2011.

Criteria:
According to State Auditor Rule NMAC 2.2.2.9A, the audited financial statements are due by December
1 following the fiscal year-end, which would be December 1, 2010 for the year under audit.

Effect:

The City is not in compliance with State Auditor Rule NMAC 2,2.2.9A for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. The users of the financial statements such as legislators, creditors, bondholders, state and
federal grantors, oversight agencies, eftc., do not have timely audit reports and financial statements for
their review. Late audit reports could have an effect on state and federal funding and the City's internal
budgeting.

Cause:

The City segregated a payroll bank account from its main operating account in fiscal year 2010.
Implementation of the account change took additional time Reconciliations related to payroll bank
account required additional time to complete and additional time to make correcting entries.

Accruals related to year-end compensated absence liabilities took an unusual amount of time to
prepare and record in the general ledger.

Accounts receivable accounts related to utility billing required additional time to reconcile.

Electronic wires to the New Meaxico Tax and Revenue department for payment of gross receipts taxes
took an unusual amount of time to record in the general ledger.

Capital assets and debt service adjustments took an unusual amount of time prepare and record in the
general ledger.

Turnover in key areas related to CAFR preparation contributed to the late filing.

The audit of the component unit (Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority) was not completed and submitted
to the state until April 5™ 2011,

The City does not have enough human resources to handle current work-load.
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City of Santa Fe

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

For the year ended June 30, 2010

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS-REPEATED AND MODIFIED - CONTINUED

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS —

CONTINUED

06-05 Due Date of Audit Report (Significant Deficiency) - Continued

Recommendation:

We recommend the City evaluate whether there is adequate personnel resources to produce a timely
CAFR and identify areas where additional training and procedures could be established

Management Response:

The City of Santa Fe migrated into a web-base financial system and new human capital software. This
delayed the completion of the audit. The City of Santa Fe will work with the augitors on giving the
information needed to assist in completing the audit on a timely basis.

FINDINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 2.2.2. NMAC

06-06 Budget Overages

Condition:

During our testwork over budgetary compliance for the year ended June 30, 2010, we noted the

following budget overages for the City.

Reporting Budgetary Final Actual Overage

Unit Level Budget Amount Amount
| General fund-education expenditures Function Level 2,782,817 2,988,945 206,128
Impact fee projects-total transfers out Fund Level 179,291 199,023 19,732
Historic preservation grant-total expenditures | Fund Level 50 450 400
Debt Service Fund-total expenditures Fund Level 13,432,364 | 13,457,590 25,226
CIP Reallocation Fund-total expenditures Fund Level -0- 86,191 86,191
Special Projects-total expenditures Fund Level 621614 1,018,644 397,030
Special Recreation League-total transfers out | Fund Level -0- 8,000 8,000
Worker’'s Compensation-operating expenses Division Level 1,085,300 2,180,090 1,094,790
Union Sick Leave Bank-operating expenses Division Level -0- 73,910 73,910
Retiree Health Care-total operating expenses | Division Level -0- 21,172 27,172
Santa Fe Dental-operating expenses Division Level -0- 611,458 611,458
Parking-operating expenses Division Level 5,146,999 5,271,354 124,355
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City of Santa Fe
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

For the year ended June 30, 2010

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS-REPEATED AND MODIFIED - CONTINUED

FINDINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 2.2.2. NMAC - CONTINUED
06-06 Budget Overages - Continued

In addition we noted the Capital Equipment Reserve fund, Community Development Grants, NEA
Grants fund, and the City Parks funds’ final budgeted expenditures and transfers were in excess of
budgeted revenues and beginning fund balance.

Criteria:

New Mexico State Statue 6-6-6 NMSA 1978 requires that local government spending does not exceed
budgeted amounts, unless approved budget adjustments are made. State law mandates that
municipalities develop and operate within the confines of a balanced budget.

Effect:
The possibility existed for the City to incur a significant budget overage that would have had financial
impact. The city is not in compliance with state statutes.

Cause:
Year-end adjustments of budgeted and actual expenditures were not completed for certain funds.

Recommandation:
Management should update policies and procedures that specifically include reviews that compare
actual to budget expenditures

Management Response: The City of Santa Fe migrated into a web-base financial system and new
human capital software. This caused delay in reviewing actual to budget expenditure to ensure actual
did not exceed budget

08-04 IT Policies and Procedures

Condition:
During our review of information technology policies and procedures, we noted the following conditions
related to change controls and backup recovery testing procedures:

1) Application data users do not perform periodic reviews of user access rights for all in-scope
applications (and network access when required). Additionally when user access rights are
modified (due to job transfers or other reasons), the access rights of these users are not
reviewed in order to remove access rights that are no longer needed.
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City of Santa Fe
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

For the year ended June 30, 2010

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS-REPEATED AND MODIFIED - CONTINUED

FINDINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 2.2.2. NMAC - CONTINUED
08-04 IT Policies and Procedures - Continued

2) File server and application recovery procedures are not tested at least once annually to ensure
data integrity and recovery.

3) IT polices appear to be outdated. The most recent policy available for review was titled
“Technology Resource Acceptable Use Policy” and had a revision date of October 2, 2003.

Criteria:

State audit rule 2.2.2.8 L (7) states “Any violation of law or good accounting practice including instances
of noncompliance or internal control weakness must be reported as an audit finding per section 12-6-5
NMSA 1978.”

Policies and procedures should provide the basis for internal control activities that ensure backup
recovery testing is performed and change controls are implemented. All intenal control criteria and
requirements apply to the IT function as well that protect the integrity of information.

Effect:

Lack of backup recovery testing could result in unexpected backup failure in the event of a catastrophe.
This could impair the City's ability to prepare reliable financial statements if relevant information is lost.
Lack of change control could result in unauthorized changes to application, database, and operating
systems.

Cause:

Lack of written polices pertaining to backup recovery testing procedures and change procedures
combined with inadequate staffing levels contribute to the internal control weakness, which can affect
operations of the City.

Recommendation:

We recommend policy confrols surrounding Information technology processes, responsibilities for
recovery testing, change controls related to application, databases, and user rights should be present
to ensure only valid changes are made.

Management Response;

The City of Santa Fe will establish written policies pertaining to backup recovery testing procedures and
change procedures to ensure testing data integrity and recovery once annually.
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City of Santa Fe
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

For the year ended June 30, 2010

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS-REPEATED AND MODIFIED - CONTINUED

FINDINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 2.2.2. NMAC - CONTINUED
09-03 Parking Permit Receivables

Condition:
During our audit of the City's Parking Permit Receivables we noted the following conditions:

The Parking Division was unable to provide the external auditor with a customer listing of permit
receivables at year-end.

Criteria:

State audit rule 2.2.2.8 L (7) states “Any violation of law or good accounting practice including instances
of noncompliance or internal control weakness must be reported as an audit finding per section 12-6-5
NMSA 1978."

Good internal control over financial reporting requires reconciliation between customer parking permit
receivables and gross parking permit receivables recorded in the general ledger at year-end.

Good accounts receivable management requires the City to maintain a separate account ledger for
each individual parking permit customer that accounts for the individual invoices for permits, receipts,
age of each invoice, and balance at year-end.

Effect:
Parking receivables net of allowances reported in the Parking Enterprise Fund could be overstated as
of June 30" 2010.

Cause:

In previous years the City maintained a detail of parking permit receivables by customer within their
utility billing software. In fiscal year 2009 the City migrated to a new web-base financial system
(Enterprise One) and fransferred the customer permit receivable data to Enterprise One. The
Enterprise One system is currently not being used to generate a detail of parking permit receivables by
customer, thus a listing could not be provided to the external auditor.

Recommendation:
We recommend the Parking Division work with the IT Department to run a customer aging report as of
a point in time from Enterprise One.

Management’s response:

Parking Division will diligently work toward migrating the parking permit account receivables information
into the new web based financial system so that a listing of the parking permit receivables can be
printed and verified on a daily, weekly or monthly basis.
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City of Santa Fe
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

For the year ended June 30, 2010

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS-REPEATED AND MODIFIED - CONTINUE

FINDING IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133
08-02 Data Collection Form-Late filing (Significant Deficiency)

Condition;
The City did not file form SF-SAC (Data collection form), by the prescribed deadline of March 31, 2011.
It was submitted on July 28, 2011.

Criteria:

For all entities that undergo a single audit, standard form SF-SAC is required to be submitted to the
federal clearinghouse to summarize the single audit results. OMB A-133 section 320 (a) requires the
report to be submitted within 9 months of the date of the audit period (March 31, 2011%).

Effect:
The City was not in compliance with the filing deadline of the SF-SAC to the federal clearinghouse
pursuant to A-133 standards.

Cause:

The audit report for the City was not submitted to the Office of the State Auditor until July of 2011,
which was past the stated deadline. A completed audit forms the basis for filing the SF-SAC. The audit
was late due to several accounts that required additional time to reconcile and additional time to make
correcting journal entries.

Recommendation:
Atkinson & Co., Ltd. recommends that the office work closely with our staff for fiscal year 2011 to
prevent a reoccurrence of this finding by filing the required reports by the deadline.

Management's Response:

The City of Santa Fe will work with the auditors on giving the information needed to assist in filing the
required reports by the deadlines.
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City of Santa Fe
EXIT CONFERENCE

For the year ended June 30, 2010

* ok kAR N

The content of the financial statements is the responsibility of management. The financial statements
were prepared by the City of Santa Fe with assistance from the independent auditor. An exit
conference was held on July 11, 2011, to discuss the audit. The following individuals were in
attendance:

City of Santa Fe

Teresita Garcia Assistant Finance Director

Robert Romero City Manager
Independent Auditor

Martin Mathisen, CPA, CGFM Audit Director

Morgan Browning, CPA, CGFM Audit Manager
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Ricci & Company LLC

CERTIFIED PUSLIC ACCOUNTANTS
6200 UPTOWN BL.VD. NE - SUITE 400
ALBUQUERQUE, MM 87110

Independent Auditor's Report on Intergal Control
Over Financial Reporting aud on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors, Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority and
City Counctl, City of Santa Fe, New Mexico and

Mr. Hector Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

Santa Fe, New Mexico

We have andiled the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major
fund, the aggregate reraining fund information, and the combining and individual funds and related
budgetary comparisons presented as suppfements! information of the Santa Fe Civic Housing
Authonty (the Authority), a coraponent unit of the City of Santa Fe, as of and for the year ended
Tune 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2011. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority's intemal contro! over financial
reporling as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial stateraents, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express ab opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal controls exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detec! misstaterments on a imely basis. A material weakness s a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibiity that a matenal
misstaterment of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis.
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To the Board of Directors, Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority and
City Council, City of Santa Fe, New Mexico and

Mr. Hector Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we did identify certain deficiencies
in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting, 09-01. A significant deficiencyis a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that 1s less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaiming reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could bave a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was nat an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that are required to be reported pursuant to Government Auditing
Standards paragraphs 5.14 and 5.16, and Secton 12-6-4, NMSA 1978, which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 05-01, 07-04, 09-02 and 10-S.

The Authonity’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accorpanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Authority's response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the

Authority, Office of the State Auditor, New Mcxico Legislature, and applicable federal grantors, and
is not intended 10 be and should sot be vsed by anyone other than these specified parties.

Rrec ¥ Wwy;zzo

Albuquerque, New Mexica
March 28, 2011
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Ricei & Company LLC

CERTTFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
6200 UPTOWN BLVD. NE - SUITE 400
ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87110

Report on Compliance With Requirements That Could Have a
Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and Iuternsl Control
Over Cowmpliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Directors, Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority and
City Council, City of Santa Fe, New Mexico and

Mr. Hector Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the State of New Mexico Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority (the
Authority) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Authonty’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 20{0. The
Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the Authority’s managerment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Authonty’s compliance based on our audil.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with audsting standards generally accepted in
the Unyted States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements refeired to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, o 2 test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirenents and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requireroents
referred to above that could have a direct and matenal effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2010. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed
iustances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs as items 10-01, 10-02, 10-03 and 10-04.
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Board of Directors, Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority and
City Council, City of Santa Fe, New Mexico and

Mr. Hector Balderas

New Mexico State Auditor

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over comphance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts ang grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal
control over compliance wilh the requirements that could have a direct and mateda) effect on a
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on the intemal control over campliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
intemnal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal contro) over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complicce exists when the design or operation of a control
over corupliance does not allow management ot employees, inthe normal course of pecforming their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of 2
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal contro) over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a imely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over comphance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did
not 1dentify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

The Authonty’s responses to findings identified in our audit are described in the accormpanying
schedule of findings and guestioned costs. We did not audit the Authority's responses and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This teport is intended solely for the information and use of management, othecs within the

Authority, Office of the State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, and federal awarding agencies
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyene other than these specified parties.

ﬁ(b@d 4 C_d/mfﬂwﬂ 29C
Albuquerque, New Mexico
March 28,2011
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

05-01  Cash Deposits and Related Liabilities Resolved

07-04 Budgetary Compliance Updated and Included
09-01  Financial Status Updated and Included
09-02 Employee Travel and Per Diem Updated and Included
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended Jupe 30, 2010

A. SUMMARY OF AUDJIT RESULTS
Financial Statemenis
Type of auditors' report issued Unqualified

Intemal control over financial reporting:

s Material weakness(es) identified? __ Yes _X No
»  Significant deficiency(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? _ Yes _ X _None Reported
Non-compliance material to financial staterments noted? __ Yes _ X Wo
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

= Material weakness(es) identified? Yes - X._No
. Significant deficiency(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es) Yes X__Nore Reported
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
Major programs: Unqualified

Aoy audit findings disclosed that are required
1o be reported in accordance with Section 501(a)
of Circular A-133? X Yes No

Identification of Major Programs Tested

#14.87] Section 8 Housing

#14.884 Public Housing Capital Fund Competitive
(Recovery Act Funded)

#14.885 Public Housing Capital Fund Stimulus, Formula
(Recovery Act Funded)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X __Yes No
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
09-01 FINANCIAL STATUS - LATE AUDIT
CRITERIA

The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations' (COSQO) defintion of internal control over financial
reporting states thal the intemnal controls over financial reporting should be effective and efficient.

In addition, the 2010 Stale Audit Rule 2.2.2.9 requires the Authority’s audit report to be submitted
by December 1, 2010.

CONDITION

In August 2010, the Authority was notified that it was responsible for all activity related o the
Espanocla Housing Authority, retroactive to July 1, 2009. Due ta the timing of this notification,
accounts related to Espanola for the year ended June 30, 2010 were not reconciied until December
2010. In addition, since the most recent andit related (o the activity at Espanola was for the year
ended June 30, 2009, in which the activity of the Espanola Housing Authority was disclaimed upon,
sigrificant procedures had to be corpleted to determine beginrung balances.

In addition, as field work began, the Authonty had not recouciled all balances, specifically
completing the analysis related to intercompany accounts and matenal adjustments were required to
be made to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. However, once the reconciliations
were completed, additional adjustments were not required to be made to the accounts as a result of
our audit on those account balances.

EFFECT

Since the year-end adjusted balances were not completed in an efficient and timely manner, the
submission of tbe Audit Report was late,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30,2010

B. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT (Continucd)

09-01 FINANCIAL STATUS ~ LATE AUDIT (Continued)

CAUSE

Due to the timoing of the notification regarding the incluston of the Espanola Housing Authority audit
with the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority audit, the Authority was unable to complete the
reconciliations in 2 timely manner. In addition, due to the timing and complexity of expending
federal funds, the reconciliation of grant expenditures was not completed timely.

RECOMMENDATION

The Authority should prionitize a more timely reconciliation process for the year ended June 30,
2011,

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

We concur, circumstances were outside of our control but we take responsibility.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

C. FINDING - FEDERAL MAJOR AWARD PROGRAMS

10-01 Reporting
14.872 — Capital Fund Program Questioned Costs — Nane

CRITERIA

Per the OMB A-133 Compliance Supplement, the Authority is required to submit a Form HUD
60002, Section 3 Summary Report by January 10™ each year.

CONDITION

The Authority did not submit the required HUD 60002 report for the funds received from the Capital
Fund Recovery Grant (Grant FNMQ0900000105G).

CAUSE

The Authority submitted three other required HUD 60002 reports related to different capital fund
grants, but failed to submit the quarterly repart for the Capital Fund Recovery Grant because they
failed to identify those funds had been spent prior to December 31, 2009. There is a lack of controls
surrounding identification of required reports.

EFFECT

If the Authonty does not comply with all reporting requirements, there is a risk that they could lose
future funding.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that the Authority establish intemal controls around reporting, posgibly a reporting
checklist, to belp identify what reports need to be submitted and by what date.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

We concur, intemnal controls required are now in place, requiring the Finance Bureau to review the
Section 3 reports and ensure timely and complete reporting.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

C. FINDING - FEDERAL MAJOR AWARD PROGRAMS

10-02 Cash Management
14.872 — Capital Fond Program Questioned Cosis — $§166,629.50

CRITERIA

Per the OMB A-133 Compliance Supplement, when an entity is funded on 2 reimbursement basis,
program costs must be paid for by entity funds before reimbursement is requested from the Federal
Govemnment.

CONDITION

While testing a sample of six reimbursement requests, we identified one instance where the
reimbursement request was made (3/8/10) prior to entity funds being disbursed (3/17/10).

CAUSE

There are internal contro] procedures in place swrounding reimbursement requests. However, in this
instance, there were cash flow problems and the request was made prematurely.

EFFECT

Ifthe Authority does not comply with cash management requirements, there is a risk that they could
lose future funding,

RECOMMENDATION

We cecommend that already established internal control policies swrrounding cash management be
followed.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

On February 22, 2010, the Authority received an jrivoice for construction work. On March 5, 2010
the Authority submitted a draw request for Capital Fund program funds related to that invoice
believing it to be approved. Subsequent to that draw, the Authority determined that additional
information was needed prior o our architect’s signing off on the AIA document. Because of the
additional information requirement, we did not process payment until March 17, 2010,
approximately four days longer than allowed under CFP guidelines.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30,2010

C. FINDING - FEDERAL MAJOR AWARD PROGRAMS

10-03 Rent Reasonableness
14.871 — Section 8 Voucher Questioned Costs — None

CRITERIA

Per 24 CFR 982.4, .54(d)(15), .158(f)(7), and .507 SFCHA is required to maintain records which
document the basis for the determination that rent to the owner 15 reasonable,

CONDITION
In our testwork, we have determined that for five of twenty five individuals selected, SFCHA failed
lo mainiain these records. It was determined that several other lenants located in the same

complexes a3 those without documentation had similar rent and the rent charged was deemed
reasonable.

EFFECT

Rent deterrnination for individuals in the Section 8 program may be inappropnately determined and
result in rent paid to a landlord which is above the average Fair Market Rate (FMR).

CAUSE

Management was nnaware that the files did not contain all required documentation.
RECOMMENDATION

The Authority should develop a docurnentation checklist which can be included in each tenapt’s file
allowing for quick determination of all required documents, which may be reviewed by supervisors
of the program.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

We concur with the errors. This is due mostly to one staff member. Quality assurance programs are
now in place and disciplinary action has been addressed.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30,2010

C. FINDING - FEDERAL MAJOR AWARD PROGRAMS
10-04 Data Callection Form

CRITERIA

The Data Collection Form and related reporting package have to be filed witbin nine montbs of the
Authority’s year ead per the Single Audit Act.

CONDITION

The Authonty did not file its Data Collection Form on a timely basis with the Federal Clearing
House for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

CAUSE
Previous to the year ended June 30, 2007, the federal awards for the Authority were included with
the City of Santa Fe’s major programs determioation and included as part of the City's Data

Collection Form. Starting with the year June 30, 2007, the Authority and the City started obtaining
separate single andits and separate Data Collection Forms were not submitted by the Authority.

EFFECT
The submission was not made available on a timely basis for use by Federal grantors.
RECOMMENDATION

The Authority is required to submit Data Collection Forms for all years and should submit all
required Data Collection Forms to the Federal Clearing Housing as soon as possible.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
Management has begun working with its current audstors to submit the 2008 and 2009 Data

Collection Forms. Discussions have also been had with Lhe auditors 1o make sure the June 30,2010
Data Collection Form 18 submitted before March 31, 2010.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended Junc 30, 2610

D. FINDING - COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
07-04 Budgetary Compliance

CRITERIA

Actual expenses exceeded budgeted expenses for the Espanola Public Housing Authority by
$40,5895.

CONDITION

Per SAORule 2.2.2.10 P(1), “If actual expenditures exceed budgeted expenditures at the legal level
of budgetary compliance, that fact must be reported in a finding.”

CAUSE

The adopted budget budgeted $78,050 for depreciation expense. However, actual depreciation
expense was $348,162. This is the primary reason why the fund was over budget.

EFFECT
The Authority may jeopardize federal funding if budgets are not complicd with.
RECOMMENDATION

We recormmend that the Authority coroply with Jegal budget requirements as outlined in the State
Audrtor Rule.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

We concur. This resulted from financial data relative to the Espanota Public Housing Authority
which 18 resotved due 1o final transfer of the Authority to Santa Fe.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30,2010

D. FINDING - COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

09-02 Employee Travel and Per Diem Questioned Costs - $258
CRITERIA

Per 10-8-4 NMSA 1978 and 2.42.2.8 (A) NMAC, “Where lodging and/or meals are provided or paid
for by the agency, the governing body, or another entity, the public officer or employce is entitled to
teimbursement only for actual expenses under 2.42.2.9 NMAC.”

CONDITION

During our review of employee trave] and per diem, in three of four items tested, individuals were
paid per diem for meals when the Authority paid the actual cost of lodging. Because of this
misinterpretation, trave) request forms were not completed and receipts for actual mea{ expenses
were not tumed in, resulting in $258 being paid to employees. The amounts paid were in
compliance with the maximum allowable costs.

CAUSE

Management was unaware that, with the exception of the return day, it was not allowed to pay both
actual and per diem on overnight travel.

EFFECT

The Authority is not in compliance with Section 10-8-4, NMSA 1978 and 2.42.2.8 NMAC.
RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that the employees in charge of reviewing and approving travel vouchers review 10-
;2 Eﬁi:[ﬁA 1978 and 2.42.2.8 NMAC to become more farniliar with the requirements on partia) day

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

We concur and change in policy has been communicated to the all employees that review and
approve travel requests and reimbursements,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

D. FINDING — COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
10-05 Pledged Collateral

CRITERIA
Section 6-10-17 NMS A 1978 states that any financial institution designated as a depository of public
money shall deliver securities having an aggregate value of at [cast onc-half of the amount of public

morey to be deposited to a custodial bank and shall deliver a joint safekeeping receipt issued by the
custodial bank to the public official from whom the money is received for deposit.

CONDITION
During our review of cash, we noted that the Authority keeps checking and savings accounts for
several of the Authority’s funds at Los Alamos National Bank (LANB). Although collateral was

provided, there was not enough to cover at least one-half of the public funds deposited with the bank
as of June 30, 2010. The Authority was under collateralized by $17,698.

CAUSE
Upon conversation with LANB, they stated in the event of failure, any lost funds would be off-set

against the debt the Authonty has with LANB. It was determined that this does not meet pledged
collateral requirements.

EFFECT

The Authority 1s not in compliance with State Jaw and does not have its cash balance properly
secured.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that the Authority work with LANB to ensure that pledged cellateral is maintained
at adequate levels.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

We concur; additional vigilance will be placed on individual accounts.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE CIVIC BOUSING AUTHORITY
EXIT CONFERENCE

Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exit Conference

An exit conference was held on March 1, 201 { to discuss the annual financial ceport. Attending were
the following:

Representing the Santa Fe Civic Housing Authority:

Board of Directors
Michael Gonzales, Chairperson
Virginia Soto, Member

Management

Ed Romero, Executjve Director

Rudy Gallegos, Deputy Executive Director
Anpa Chavez, Administrative Supervisor

Representing the lndependent Auditor:
Herman Chavez, CPA, Manager

Jake Bowe, Staff

Note: Management is responsible for the context of the repart, even though the financial statements
were prepared substantially by the independent auditor.
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Finance and Budget Department

Financial Management Division
P.O. Box 909, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504
505-955-6531



